
           
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Safer Communities Executive Board  

 
 
THURSDAY, 4TH NOVEMBER, 2010 at 12:00 HRS – CANTEEN, CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
ROAD, WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
MEMBERS: Please see the table below for details of the Membership  

 
 
AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES    
 
 To receive any apologies for absence.  

 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items of Urgent Business. (Late items of Urgent Business will be 

considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items of Urgent Business 
will be considered under Item 13 below).   
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 Members of the Board must declare any personal and/or prejudicial interests with 

respect to agenda items and must not take part in any decision made with respect to 
those items.  
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 12)  
 
 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 3 June 2010 as a correct record.  

 
DISCUSSION ITEM: 
 
5. STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT - HEADLINE FINDINGS AND PRIORITIES FOR THE 

NEXT FIVE YEARS    
 
 A presentation will be given.  

 



 

2 

BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 
6. TERRORISM UPDATE    
 
 A verbal update will be provided.  

 
7. HALF YEAR PERFORMANCE REPORT QUARTER 1 AND QUARTER 2: 2010/11  

(PAGES 13 - 22)  
 
8. PROPOSALS REGARDING THE FUTURE OF SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE 

BOARD’S ALLOCATION OF AREA BASED GRANT  (PAGES 23 - 26)  
 
9. TOWARDS INTEGRATED OFFENDER MANAGEMENT  (PAGES 27 - 34)  
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
10. RESPONSE TO THE GOVERNMENTS CONSULTATION ON THE DRUG 

STRATEGY  (PAGES 35 - 62)  
 
11. QUARTER TWO UPDATE ON IMPLEMENTATION OF ALCOHOL ACTION PLAN 

(PAGES 63 - 88)  
 
12. UPDATES ON KEY DEVELOPMENTS FROM PARTNERS    
 
 Partners to provide a verbal update on the key issues affecting their organisation.  

 
13. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any new items of Urgent Business admitted under Item 2 above.  

 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 To raise any items of AOB.  

 
15. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS    
 
 Please note the dates of future meetings as set out below: 

 

• 27 January 2011, 11am, at Civic Centre, High Road, Wood Green, N22 8LE.  

• 21 April 2011, 11am, at Civic Centre, High Road, Wood Green, N22 8LE. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 

 
 
 
 
Ken Pryor 
Deputy Head of Member Services  
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Xanthe Barker 
Principal Committee Coordinator 
Tel: 020-8489 2957 
Fax: 020-8881 5218 
Email: xanthe.barker@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 
       Published 25 October 2010  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

 

ORGANISATIONS NO. 
OF 
REP
S 

NAME OF REPRESENTATIVE 

Haringey Council 
 

7 Councillor Bernice Vanier (Chair) 
Niall Bolger  
Peter Lewis 
Barbara Nicholls 
Claire Kowalska 
Marion Morris 
Jean Croot 

Haringey Teaching 
Primary Care Trust  

1 Stephen Deitch 
 

Haringey 
Metropolitan Police 

1 Dave Grant (Vice-Chair) 
 

Haringey Fire Service 
 

1 Richard Mills 

Haringey Probation 
Service 

1 Kate Gilbert 

Homes for Haringey 1 Paul Bridge 
 

Mental Health Trust 1 Lee Bojtor 
 

Community Link 
Forum 

3 Sajda Mughal 
Rev Nims Obunge 
X1 TBC 

HAVCO 1 Pamela Pemberton 
 

Haringey Community 
Police Consultative 
Group 

1 Enid Ledgister 

Metropolitan Police 
Authority 

1 Joanne McCartney 

Haringey Magistrates 
Court 

1 Stephen Carroll 
 

Haringey Crown 
Prosecution Service 

1 Hywel Ebsworth 
 

TOTAL  
 

21  

 
 



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 
Present: Councillor Bernice Vanier (Chair), Jean Croot, Stephen Deitch, Hywel 

Ebsworth, Sarah Hart, Paul Hoare, Jennifer James, Claire Kowalska, 
Enid Ledgister, Joanne McCartney, Richard Mills, Saja Mughal, Rev. 
Nims Obunge, Yemesi Onigbinde, Mike Snowdon.  

 
 
In 
Attendance: 

Xanthe Barker, Elaine Cunnea, Samantha Evans, Chris Hannington, 
Eliza Meechan, Wayne Longshaw. 

 
 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 

HSP23.   
 

APOLOGIES  

 Apologies for absence were received from the following: 
 
Niall Bolger   - Mike Snowdon substituted  
Dave Grant                         - Paul Hoare substituted 
Kate Gilbert 
Peter Lewis                        - Jennifer James substituted  
Marion Morris  - Sarah Hart substituted 
Barbara Nicholls 
Pamela Pemberton  - Yemesi Onigbinde substituted 
James Slater                      - Stephen Deitch substituted  
 

 
 

   

HSP24.   
 

URGENT BUSINESS  

 There were no new items of Urgent Business.  
 

 
 

HSP25.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 No declarations of interest were made.  
 

 
 

HSP26.   
 

MINUTES  

 Prior to the confirmation of the minutes the following points were raised: 
 
HSP07 – Jean Croot and Eliza Meechan had visited the Kurdish Youth 
Group referred to under this minute and it was intended that links would 
be developed with the group.  
 
HSP14 – the Board was advised that the next MPA Joint Engagement 
Meeting was provisionally scheduled for April/May 2011 and the theme 
would be Serious Violent Crime. Details would be circulated nearer the 
time.  
  
HSP22 – as set out an email sent on 30 March, following confirmation of 
the Council’s Calendar of Meetings for 2010/11, it was noted that the 
dates of future meetings had been amended as set out below: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

 
14 October – now 7 October 2010  
26 January – now 27 January 2011  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2010 were 
confirmed as a correct.  
 

 
 
 
 
All to note 
 
 
 
 
 
Xanthe 
Barker 

 

HSP27.   
 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR 2010/11  

 RESOLVED: 
 
That Councillor Bernice Vanier be appointed as Chair of the Safer 
Communities Executive Board for 2010/11.  
 

 
 
 
 
Xanthe 
Barker 

 

HSP28.   
 

APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  

 RESOLVED: 
 
That Dave Grant be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Safer Communities 
Executive Board for 2010/11.  
 

 
 
 
 
Xanthe 
Barker 

 

HSP29.   
 

APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE TO THE HSP STANDING 
LEADERSHIP CONFERENCE FOR 2010/11 

 

  
ESOLVED: 
 
That Rev. Nims Obunge be appointed as the Safer Communities 
Executive Board’s representative on the HSP Standing Leadership 
Conference for 2010/11.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Xanthe 
Barker 

HSP30.   
 

CONFIRMATION OF MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 
FOR 2010/11 

 

 The Board received a report that sought confirmation from Partners of 
the Safer Communities Executive Board (SCEB) Membership and Terms 
of Reference for 2010/11.  
 
The Board discussed its membership and it was noted that Community 
Police Consultative Groups (CPCGs) were usually included within the 
membership of Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships (CDRP). 
Over the previous two years the Director of Haringey CPCG had been a 
member of the SCEB by virtue of her appointment as HAVCO’s 
representative.    
 
There was a general consensus that, given that the CPCG played a key 
role in fostering public confidence and that improving this was a key 
priority for the Police, it would be appropriate for the SCEB’s Terms of 
Reference to be amended to allocate a place to the CPCG in its own 
right. 
 
In addition the following amendments to the Terms of Reference were 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Claire 
Kowalska  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

also agreed: 
 

• The MPA’s status as a statutory partner should be reflected and 
that one observer place should be retained.  

• The membership of the SCEB Performance Management Group 
(PMG) should be amended to include the Probation Service.  

• That reference to the Government Office for London (GOL) as an 
observer should be removed. 

 
It was also requested that consideration be given to offering a place on 
the SCEB PMG to HAVCO and the Chair requested that this suggestion 
be considered by the PMG a its next meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, subject to the amendments set out above, the Membership and 
Terms of Reference for the SCEB be confirmed for 2010/11. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Claire 
Kowalska  
 
 
 
Claire 
Kowalska  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Claire 
Kowalska 

HSP31.   
 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  

 A presentation was given on the HSP Community Engagement 
Framework (CEF) and the ‘top line’ results of the Annual Residents 
Survey 2010, with respect to crime.  
 
It was noted that the CEF had been developed in 2009 and that the 
Delivery Plan attached ran from 2009-12. The CEF had been 
established in order to improve the way the HSP engaged with 
communities and to provide a single portal for the HSP. 
 
The following items were included within the current CEF Programme: 
 

• Sustainable Community Strategy 2010  

• Child Poverty Consultation 2011/2 

• Corporate Budget Consultation 2011/12  

• Managing the Annual Residents and Place Surveys 
 
The Board was advised that the Annual Residents Survey had been 
undertaken in February 2010 and that this had been based on two 
sample groups consisting of one thousand and fifty-five adults and two 
hundred and forty-two young people (aged eleven to seventeen years 
old).    
 
The Board discussed the results of the survey and in response to a 
query it was noted that the survey had been undertaken by an 
independent company. As each London Borough was required to carry 
out an Annual Residents Survey the information gathered could be 
easily benchmarked.  
 
The company used had made provision to ensure that BME groups and 
other minority and hard to reach groups were represented proportionally 
within the survey; where this was not possible a weighting was attached 
to certain responses to ensure that the Borough’s profile was properly 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

reflected.  
 
It was noted that in addition to the Annual Residents Survey partners 
were likely to be carrying out their own respective surveys. It was 
suggested that it would be useful to analyse how the data gathered by 
each of these compared in order to obtain a better understanding of 
trends. This type of analysis would also form a useful tool for the Needs 
Assessment.   
 
In response to a query the Board was advised that once all of the data 
was received it would be analysed in more depth and broken down by 
age, ethnicity and other groupings. This breakdown would provide a 
clearer picture of the areas that were of concern to specific groups. Once 
available this would be circulated to the Board.  
 
The Board was advised that at the last CPCG and Ward Panel meeting it 
had been agreed that the information would be broken down by Ward 
and supplied to each of the Safer Neighbourhood Teams.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be noted.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wayne 
Longshaw 
 
 

 

HSP32.   
 

END OF YEAR PERFORMANCE AND PROJECT EXCEPTION 
REPORT 

 

 The Board considered a report that provided an overview of performance 
against key community safety targets during 2009/10.  
 
The Board was given an overview of the key highlights and successes 
achieved during the period: 
 
Overall level of recorded crime – this had dropped by 6.2% overall in 
comparison with figures recorded during 2008/09 and was the seventh 
consecutive year that had seen a reduction in overall crime.  
 
Serious acquisitive crime -   this had dropped by 10% in comparison with 
the figures recorded during 2008/09 and had exceeded the associated 
LAA target by 3%.  
 
Personal robbery – this had dropped by 4.7% in comparison with the 
figures recorded during 2008/09 and this was the forth consecutive year 
where there was a reduction. Haringey continued to perform well in 
terms of the sanctioned detection rates with respect to personal robbery 
and this was directly attributable to the investigation process adopted in 
Haringey.  
 
Domestic violence – both of the Stretch Targets with respect to this had 
been met.  The number of sanctioned detections had exceeded the 
target by 8.4% and the number of instances of domestic violence 
recorded had been one hundred and ten, which was under the target of 
one hundred and forty-two.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

Preventing violent extremism – it was noted that measures including 
training had been rolled out, in line with the Home Office Self 
Assessment Framework, in order to achieve Level 3. An independent 
evaluation and further measures were being planned to improve work in 
this area.  
 
First time entrants into the Youth Justice System – performance in this 
area had been good and the prevention work undertaken by youth 
offending staff working in Custody Suites, as part of the triage 
programme, had been key to this. Further intensive prevention 
programmes were being developed as part of the Challenge and 
Support scheme and Intensive Intervention Project.  
 
Serious violent crime – the LAA target with respect to this, which 
required an overall reduction of 4%, had not been met and as of the end 
of Quarter Four a total increase on 14.7% had been recorded.  
 
Drug users in effective treatment – to date one thousand and fifteen 
people had been assisted against the LAA target of one thousand and 
sixty-eight. It was unlikely that the target would be met as the number of 
new clients coming into treatment had dropped significantly.  
 
Treatment Effectiveness – the LAA target of 82% had been exceeded by 
6% and this was also higher than the London average of 84%.  
 
Alcohol related admission rates – provisional figures for the first half of 
2009/10 indicated it was unlikely that the LAA target with respect to this 
would not be achieved. New investment to address this had only 
become available in September and the impact of this was unlikely to be 
felt until 2010/11.  
 
The Board discussed the report and it was noted that NHS Haringey had 
been informed that NHS London had assessed Haringey’s performance 
against N140 as being ‘Good’.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

HSP33.   
 

PARTNERSHIP PRIORITY PLAN 2010/11  

 The Board received a report that set out the draft Partnership Priority 
Plan for 2010/11. The plan built on the previous iteration and included 
thirteen key priorities and a series of actions with respect to each of 
these.  
 
It was noted that improving public confidence was a key priority for the 
Police and there was agreement that this should be reflected in the Plan.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Partnership Priority Plan for 2010/11 be noted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Claire 
Kowalska  

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

 

HSP34.   
 

DRAFT COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 2010/11  

 The Board received a report that presented a draft Communications Plan 
for the Partnership.  
 
The Board was advised that ‘Communicating for Confidence’ was a 
Home Office expectation and a locally adopted priority. Although 
progress had been made in this area there was a need to form an 
agreed approach for communicating the work of the Partnership and the 
Plan set out how this could be approached over the forthcoming year.  
 
Support was expressed for strengthening the way in which the 
Partnership communicated its work. It was noted that provision would 
need to be made to ensure that duplication did not occur and the Board 
was advised that existing mechanisms, within the respective Partner 
organisations, would be used where appropriate to avoid this.  
 
In terms of the funding required to support the Plan, the Board was 
advised that the Council would meet the costs attached to the ‘quick 
communications’ outlined in the Plan; statutory partners were asked to 
make a contribution of £4K towards the publication costs attached.  
 
The Board discussed the how the information would be disseminated 
and it was recognised that when a target group was identified 
consideration would need to be given to the way in which they would be 
most likely to access the information. This was particularly important in 
reaching young people and there was agreement that consideration 
should be given to using Social Networking sites and other data 
platforms in addition to leaflets and poster campaigns.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
i. That statutory Partners were asked to consider making a 

contribution of £4K during 2010/11 towards the publication of one 
annual joint publication.  (The Community Safety Team would 
follow this up with an email). 

 
ii. That a Communications Working Group should be established 

and that Partners organisations should be nominate a 
representative to sit on the group.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Elaine 
Cunnea 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Statutory 
Partners / 
Elaine 
Cunnea 
 
 
Statutory 
Partners / 
Elaine 
Cunnea 
 

HSP35.   
 

HARINGEY REDUCING RE-OFFENDING PROGRAMME 2010/2011  

 The Board considered a report that set out the work carried out to date 
as part the Haringey Reducing Re-offending Programme (HARRP).  
 
It was noted that, since the previous meeting, the following actions had 
been undertaken: 
 

• Reducing Re-offending Action Plan - as suggested by the SCEB 
Children and Young People’s Services were consulted.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

• Reducing Re-offending Conference – this had highlighted the 
absence of mental and physical health services and these 
agencies were now being engaged with. 

• The Haringey Reducing Re-offending Network (HARREN) – this 
was established in April 2010 and thirty organisations had been 
engaged with. A ‘Working Level Agreement’ and online forum had 
also been established. 

• Recruitment of Caseworker – unfortunately this had been delayed 
due to the HR processes that had to be undertaken. In the 
meantime the Reducing Re-offending officer was taking on a 
small cohort of prisoners leaving Pentonville Prison.  

 
In response to a query, as to how this fitted in with the work of the 
Probation Service, the Board was reminded that the Probation Service 
did not work with offenders serving sentences of less then twelve 
months and that the Programme was specifically targeted at providing 
support to this group. In addition offenders also had to be Haringey 
residents in order to be eligible.   
 
The Board discussed the wider context within which the programme sat 
and how it would be integrated with new initiatives such as the Total 
Place agenda, Diamond Districts and existing DAAT services. It was 
noted that the Police and Probation Service would continue to be 
consulted as the programme developed to ensure that work was 
properly integrated.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

HSP36.   
 

SAFER COMMUNITIES RISK REGISTER (AMENDED)  

 The Board received a report setting out the key risks against service 
objectives and Local Area Agreement (LAA) targets.  
 
It was noted that each Thematic Board was required by the HSP to 
adopt a Risk Register in order to manage the risks attached to achieving 
LAA targets within their responsibility. The risk rating attached had been 
assessed in conjunction with colleagues from NHS Haringey and the 
Police.  
 
The Board discussed the document and it was contended that the 
emphasis placed on financial risk was too heavy and that the impact 
upon residents and communities should be given increased weighting. 
There was a general consensus that consideration should be given to 
better reflecting this within the document.  
 
It was noted that gang related crime and violence had a particularly 
significant impact upon local communities and it was contended that 
local intelligence suggested that the likelihood of a major incident 
happening in the Borough was higher than the document suggested. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jean 
Croot/ 
Claire 
Kowalska  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

The Board was advised that Police in the thirteen worst affected 
Boroughs (of which Haringey was one) in London had been instructed to 
hold weekly meetings to review knife and gang related crime and the 
intelligence received with respect to this.  At present Haringey was the 
only one of the thirteen Boroughs that was making progress in this area. 
This was due to the proactive approach that was taken in targeting 
known gang members; the continuous pressure that was placed on 
these individuals played a significant role in reducing the level of crime 
they were able to commit.  
 
It was noted that the targeted work undertaken to prevent young people 
becoming involved in gang crime had been effective; however, there had 
been an increase in the level of gang related crimes recorded amongst 
the slightly older age group of eighteen to twenty-four year olds. In 
addition the recent incident at Victoria Station had been the first murder 
of its type where none of the people charged had any previous 
convictions or were known to the Police.  
 
This demonstrated the ongoing need to analyse knife and gang related 
crime and target interventions at the relevant groups.  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
i. That the Risk Register be adopted.  

 
ii. That consideration be given to revising the weighting attached to 

financial risk and incorporating a set of risks to recognise the 
impact upon local communities.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jean 
Croot / 
 

HSP37.   
 

ACTION PLANS FOR SUB-BOARDS  

 The Board received, for information, the Action Plans for each of the 
Sub-Boards for 2010/11.  
 
It was noted that the Action Plan for the Other Violent Crime Board had 
been omitted from the agenda and pack and there was agreement that 
this should be circulated with the minutes.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Action Plans presented by noted.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
Xanthe 
Barker 

 

HSP38.   
 

COMMUNITY RESILIENCE PLAN  

 The Board received, for information, a report setting out the measures 
being taken to raise public awareness around being prepared for 
emergency situations.  
 
It was noted that ‘z-cards’ had been produced setting out a list of things 
that people should do in the event of an emergency. These would be 
distributed through Libraries, Leisure Centres and Council Customer 
Service points throughout the Borough.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

 
In addition posters and leaflets, available in a number of languages, 
would also be distributed.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the report be noted.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HSP39.   
 

THREE YEAR PARTNERSHIP STRATEGY - UPDATE  

 The Board received a verbal update with respect to the three year 
Partnership Strategy.  
 
It was noted that the new Partnership Strategy was currently being 
drafted to replace the existing strategy, which would come to an end in 
2011. The Plan was being developed in conjunction with the Police and 
a range of other partners and there would be a series of targeted 
consultation events in the autumn. The issues arising from these would 
form the basis of the strategy.  
 
It was anticipated that the first draft of the strategy would be completed 
in January and brought to the Board for discussion; the final version 
would then be brought back to the Board for approval in April.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the update be noted.  
 

 
 

HSP40.   
 

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 No new items of Urgent Business were raised.  
 

 
 

HSP41.   
 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 The following items of AOB were raised: 
 
Council Budget  
 
It was noted that the new coalition Government had announced that 
Local Government funding would be reduced by approximately £1.2B 
this year. The reduction of funding that Haringey would face was 
estimated to be between £6m and £9M and this would be split between 
both revenue and capital budgets.  
 
It was anticipated that the Area Based Grant would be heavily reduced 
as it was one of the most flexible streams of funding. The Board was 
advised that at its meeting on 27 May the HSP Executive had agreed 
that it would hold a dedicated session (in July, once the Government’s 
emergency budget had been announced on 22 June) to develop a 
process and criteria against which priorities for funding could be 
established. It had also been agreed that no new financial commitments 
should be made.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

 
Once further information was available the Thematic Boards would be 
advised.  
 
Police Budget 
 
It was noted that the Police Service was also expecting significant cuts 
to funding during the current financial year. At present the Government 
was being lobbied to give an indication of the funding available prior to 
the Comprehensive Spending Review in the autumn.  
 
Once further information had been received the Board would be advised.  
 
Problem Solving Awards 
 
It was noted that this event was being held at the end of the month and 
partners were asked to advise the MPS of any initiatives or examples of 
work that they felt should be recognised.  
 
The Board was advised that Haringey had put forward a problem solving 
project on burglary.  
 
National Peace Week 
 
The theme for this year’s Peace Week would be ‘giving back’ and this 
was intended to highlight the message that everyone had something to 
give back to their communities. This would be targeted at nineteen to 
twenty-six year olds.  
 
The Chair requested that more information with respect to this was 
circulated once it became available.  
 
Young Haringey Hero Awards 
 
This event was being held on 9 July at the Bernie Grant Arts Centre and 
members of the Board were invited to attend. Further details could be 
obtained from Jennifer James.  
 
It was noted that this would be last meeting that Eliza Meechan would be 
attending before she went on Maternity Leave in August. The Board 
wished her well and thanked her for contribution.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
To note the items of AOB raised above.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All to note 

 

HSP42.   
 

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 The dates of future meetings, set out below, were noted: 
 

• 7 October 2010, 11am, Council Chamber 

• 27 January 2010, 11am, Council Chamber 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



MINUTES OF THE SAFER COMMUNITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD (HSP) 
THURSDAY, 3 JUNE 2010 

 

• 21 April 2010, 11am, Council Chamber  
 

All to note 

The meeting closed at 12.50pm. 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR BERNICE VANIER 
 
CHAIR 
 
………………………………………. 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board  
    
Date:   4 November 2010 
 
Report Title: Half Year Performance Report Quarter 1 and Quarter 

2010/11 
 
Report of:  Claire Kowalska, Community Safety Strategic  
 Manager  

 

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

To inform the Board of performance for the first half of the financial year 2010/11 
against the key community safety targets and responsibilities 

 

2. State link(s) with Other Plan Priorities and actions and /or other 
Strategies: 

2.1. Addressing the prevention and reduction of crime, the fear of crime, the harm 
caused by drugs and alcohol and anti-social behaviour are all key parts of the 
cleaner, greener and safer priority. Collectively, these remain top priorities for 
residents 

 

3. Recommendations 

         That SCEB note the highlights and the mitigating actions to address 
         any areas of concern 

 
4. Summary – See purpose of the report above 
 

5.  Chief Financial Officer Comments (N/A) 

          All planned actions are deliverable within agreed and existing budgets,  
          primarily, through the Area Based Grant.  See point 9 for further comment 
 

6.  Head of Legal Services Comments (N/A) 

           There are no areas of obvious concern from a legal perspective 
 

7.  Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments 

People from black and ethnic minority communities, and young people, have a 
disproportionately high risk of becoming a victim of crime.  In addition, women and 
older people tend to suffer from higher levels of anxiety about crime. There are 
several actions which have directly addressed this over the year and these include: 
Targeted interventions of the most vulnerable streets and houses in the borough; an 
increase in outreach to young people by Victim Support; development of the third 
party reporting process for hate crime; delivery of the Preventing Violent Extremism 
agenda; increased response by the YOS to ethnic changes in their caseload; 

Agenda Item 7Page 13



 

 2 

additional support with resettlement for non-statutory offenders.  A Scrutiny Review 
of support to victims has recently been undertaken in the borough.   

 

8.  Consultation  

          All issues relating to performance are shared and discussed with the multi- 
          agency Performance Management Group (PMG), reporting to the SCEB 
 

9.  Service Financial Comments 

          A high proportion of the Safer Communities Service is funded externally and  
          through the Area-Based Grant (ABG).  This leaves the Service without the  
          security of stable and ongoing funding.  Significant reductions across all  
          external grants are expected to be announced in October 2010. 
 

10.  Use of appendices /Tables and photographs 

         A project/ budget highlight report is attached giving details of funding, progress                
being made and areas of concern identified. 

 

11. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

11.1. Background papers are as follows: 
      Cutting Crime:  Home Office Strategy 2008-2011 
      Safer for All Strategy 2008-2011 
      National Drug Strategy 2008-2011 

       
 

12.  Background 
 

12.1 The Safer Communities Partnership is responsible for a number of key 
priorities under the Local Area Agreement (LAA).  These are: 

 

• Reducing serious violent crime, domestic and gender-based crime 

• Reducing serious acquisitive crime 

• Improving perceptions of how well the police and local authority deal 
with crime and ASB in the local area   

• Preventing violent extremism 

• Increasing numbers of people in effective drug treatment 

• Reducing the number of young people (aged 10-17) entering the 
youth justice system 

• Increasing local confidence in the criminal justice system 

• Reducing re-offending and the impact of re-offending 

• Increasing support to young victims of crime 
 
13.   Key highlights and successes from Q1 & Q2 
 
 Overall crime  (Total Notifiable Offences) 
13.1 Haringey police recorded 6.7% fewer total recorded offences (12,055 against 

12,862) during April – September 2010 compared with the same period last 
year.  Without exception, all crime targets are performing well and exceeding 
their annual targets.  This also compares noticeably and favourably with the 
0.4% overall reduction across the Metropolitan Police Service area.  Haringey 

Page 14



 

 3 

has now seen seven consecutive years of reduction for total recorded 
offences.  We believe that this is due to a combination of effective prevention, 
better problem-solving, smart use of a range of data and intelligence, robust 
case work, neighbourhood policing and a focus on the most vulnerable 
locations and people. 

 
Key crime types 

13.2 Last year the rate of serious violence was a significant concern.  However, 
‘most serious violence’ in Haringey has now fallen by over a fifth (21.4%) 
compared to its annual target of 4% (fall of 49 from 229 to 180 offences).  
Contributing factors include the Gang Action Group work and the Tackling 
Knives Action Plan (TKAP).  The former is delivering a multi-agency response 
to gang related violence and some early successes have been achieved.  
New referrals continue to be received from a range of partners, demonstrating 
that they see the benefits of referring individuals to the group.  10 individuals 
referred to as ‘nominals’ have been removed from the main monitoring list due 
to reduced risk. 

 
13.3 Acquisitive crime overall is down by 13% compared with the same time last 

year and despite anticipated rises due to the economic downturn (fall of 490 
from 3,713 to 3,223 offences).  Performance is primarily being driven by 
reductions in residential burglary (down 17%) and theft from motor vehicles 
(down 15%).  Better use of data and shared intelligence is paying dividends 
as well as joint tasking and targeted action. 

 
 Drug treatment 
13.4 The first part of 2010-11 has seen a reverse in the recent trend of fewer 

people entering treatment.  This trend was responsible for our missing the 
target for drug users in effective treatment last year as opposed to issues of 
ineffectiveness.  There are now 48% more new clients in treatment compared 
with previous years (117 in Q1 compared with 70 in Q1 last year).  Haringey 
has consistently ranked above the London average for the proportion of 
clients completing treatment drug free (44% against 33%).  Efforts to 
understand the reasons for drop out have intensified as has activity towards 
full recovery rather than stabilisation and maintenance.  A full needs’ 
assessment is being prepared and will also include alcohol.  Results will be 
shared with SCEB members early in the new calendar year. 

 
 Preventing Violent Extremism (PVE) 
13.5 Preventing violent extremism work has reached its target of level 3 based on 

the Home Office self-assessment framework.  However, projects are already 
running at reduced capacity as funding has been cut in year.  Furthermore, 
the future of this work remains uncertain and there is a strong sense that it will 
not continue in its current form.  This belief is affecting morale and the third 
sector delivery agencies are beginning to focus on how they might survive 
beyond April 2011. 

  
 Youth crime prevention 
13.6 Haringey has already achieved its challenging target this year for prevention 

of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-17 (NI 111).  There 
were 1,491 new entrants recorded against a final target of 2,313.  This reflects 
a reduction of 37.5% compared with last year.  A key success factor has been 
the multi-agency approach and the prevention work of trained youth offending 
staff working in custody suites as part of the ‘triage’ programme.  Further 

Page 15



 

 4 

intensive intervention programmes are running as part of the Challenge and 
Support scheme and the Intensive Intervention Project.  

 
13.7 The July 2010 figure for those not in employment, education or training 

(NEETs) was 7.4% which compares with 6.9% last month and 7.7% last July.  
This is comfortably below the NEET target (8.9%).   

  
13.8 Anti-social behaviour 

In relation to enforcement against ASB offenders, the ASB Action Team is 
using all available tools and powers.  Enforcement rates remain well above 
the national average.  They have a 94% success rate for enforcement action 
following surveillance.  The weighting in Haringey is towards the use of 
injunctions and Acceptable Behaviour Contracts as early intervention 
measures.  However, ASBOs continue to be used sparingly and to good 
effect, most recently against long-term street drinkers in Wood Green.   
Prevention work and training continue and the parenting programme has been 
highly successful with no further enforcement required for 150 families 
engaged.   This work is all subject to short-term and uncertain funding. 

 
13.9 Reducing re-offending 

Pilot work with non-statutory offenders is progressing steadily towards the 
target of helping 30 offenders to resettle in the borough.  The case worker is 
currently working with 21 people and using the full resources of the Haringey 
Reducing Re-offending Network and supporting programmes such as 
mentoring and employer engagement.  Conversations are underway with 
Probation and others regarding integrated offender management, pending 
announcements around resettlement budgets and offender management 
structures in the Autumn/Winter. 
 

13.10 Domestic violence 
 

Hearthstone continues to provide support and advice to survivors of domestic 
violence in Haringey. The key performance points from Q1 and 2 are as 
below: 

 

• Hearthstone received 601 contacts from agencies and members of the public 

• Hearthstone supported a total of 232 survivors of domestic violence in 
Haringey. This is a slight decrease from 249 survivors during the previous six 
month period (Oct 09 – Mar 10). However, the centre is generally quieter 
during the summer months 

• The service supported 5 male survivors, compared to a total of 15 in 2009-10. 

• The average age group of clients is 20-29, accounting for 41% of clients 
during the period.  

 
Ethnicity of clients 

 

• The largest represented ethnic groups accessing Hearthstone remain 
unchanged. During Q1 and 2: 
17% of clients defined themselves as White British 
16% as Black Caribbean 
12% as Black African 

 
Support provided 

 

Page 16



 

 5 

• 16 clients were provided with Sanctuary installations, to help them stay safe in 
their homes 

• 14 clients were placed in a domestic violence refuge 
 
13.11 Police recorded repeat victims of domestic violence show the majority relating 

to a second offence.  This dropped from 88 to 78 between April and 
September.  This does not account for the actual number of incidents which 
may have occurred prior to police contact. 

 
13.12 Perception target (NI 21) 

In response to the Residents’ Survey 2009/10 (Question 12:  How much 
would you agree or disagree that the police and other local services are 
successfully dealing with anti-social behaviour and crime in your area?) - 53% 
agreed and 16% disagree (of all 1,276 respondents).  When asked a similar 
question in 2008/9 in the Place Survey 2008/9 (NI21), respondents answered 
with the following - 28% agree and 25% disagree.  This represents a 
considerable increase in positive perception.  Targets of this ilk are due to be 
cease from April 2011. 

 
14. Issues and areas of concern  
 
14.1 Reductions to external funding and internal finances will affect many areas of 

the Safer and Stronger Communities Service and wider Safer Communities 
Partnership.  The main areas of vulnerability are around prevention and 
diversionary work, case work and intensive support, delivery arrangements for 
drug treatment and reducing re-offending.  A further important issue is that all 
case loads are set to increase due to the likely knock-on effects of increased 
financial pressures and unemployment.  Changes to the benefit system could 
significantly affect some Haringey residents and families. 
 

14.2 Delays have been experienced with our support to young victims due to an 
amended contract with Victim Support and the need for further recruitment.  
The current ABG funding anticipates mainstreaming most of this activity within 
existing youth and children’s services in order to eliminate or greatly reduce 
the reliance on partnership grants.  The successful candidate is currently 
capacity building, strengthening the volunteer base and creating relationships 
with the relevant services to help secure sustainable support. 
 

14.3 The Coalition Government has indicated its intention to remove central targets 
as far as possible and to expect partnerships to set local priorities on the 
basis of robust data, intelligence and consultation.  Measuring Total Notifiable 
Offences may be the only police target.  However, the partnership should 
agree on which key targets should remain subject to measurement and 
monitoring for the purposes of continuity and comparison. 

 
14.4 Several Green Papers are due this Autumn/Winter on Overall Crime, Anti-

social Behaviour (ASB), Rehabilitation and Resettlement.  The Green Paper 
on crime is expected in October with consultation from November to February. 
The paper is likely to concentrate on the adult system with the Youth Justice 
System inter-woven or as a separate section. It is envisaged that in relation to 
youth justice it will cover: 

 

• sentencing reform, including a second stage of review of out of court 
disposals;  

Page 17



 

 6 

• payments by results and local delivery  and  

• the governance of youth justice 

 

Page 18



P
ro

je
c
t 

H
ig

h
li
g

h
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

P
e
ri

o
d

: 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1
0
 -

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

0
9

/1
0

S
p

e
n

d
 T

o
 

D
a

te

B
u

d
g

e
t 

L
e

ft
 t

o
 

S
p

e
n

d
P

ro
je

c
t 

o
b

je
c

ti
v
e
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

 0
9

/1
0

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro
b
le
m
 s
o
lv
in
g
 m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
 t
o
 b
e
 

w
id
e
ly
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs

P
ro
b
le
m
 s
o
lv
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 

e
v
a
lu
a
te
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn
 f
ro
m
 m
is
ta
k
e
s

P
ro
b
le
m
 s
o
lv
in
g
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
(w
a
rd
) 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

B
u

d
g

e
t 
S
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t 
- 
A
u
g
u
s
t 
s
p
e
n
d
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
. 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
w
a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro
m
 £
5
0
K
 t
o
 1
0
K
.

R
e
d
u
c
e
 c
ri
m
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

s
e
t 
b
y
 M
P
S
, 
G
o
L
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 

ta
rg
e
ts
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 L
A
A

D
e
liv
e
r 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
p
o
lic
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 t
y
p
e
s
 i
n
 

o
rd
e
r 
to
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
 

s
o
lv
in
g
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
s
 t
h
e
y
 a
ri
s
e

D
ir
e
c
t 
w
o
rk
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
re
n
d
s
 a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 D
a
ta
 R
e
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 P
o
lic
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 I
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 U
n
it
 P
ro
b
le
m
 

P
ro
fi
le
s

D
e
liv
e
r 
m
o
n
th
ly
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 

ty
p
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
re
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is

D
ir
e
c
t 
w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 t
a
s
k
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

in
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
re
n
d
s
 a
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 “
S
a
fe
r 
fo
r 
A
ll”
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

o
u
tc
o
m
e
s

T
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 v
io
le
n
t 

c
ri
m
e
 (
n
o
n
-d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
).

T
o
 p
re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
 (
re
s
id
e
n
ti
a
l 
b
u
rg
la
ry
, 

th
e
ft
 o
f 
a
n
d
 f
ro
m
 m
o
to
r 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 a
n
d
 

ro
b
b
e
ry
.

T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

re
h
a
b
ili
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
tt
le
m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

fo
r 
a
d
u
lt
s
 (
e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 s
h
o
rt
 t
e
rm
 

p
ri
s
o
n
e
rs
 n
o
t 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
)

T
o
 m
e
a
s
u
ra
b
ly
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
e
rc
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

h
o
w
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 p
o
lic
e
 d
e
a
l 

w
it
h
 a
n
ti
-s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 

c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
J
 a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 l
o
c
a
lly

T
o
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a
c
ro
s
s
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
 2

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 H
IG

H
L

IG
H

T
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 -

 S
A

F
E

R
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

IE
S

 

R
R

G

P
ro

je
c
ts

P
ro

je
c

t

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

F
in

a
n

c
e
s

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

Monitoring Return

C
o

m
 S

tr
a
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

� ��� � ���

A
G

G

B
u

d
g

e
t:
 T
h
e
 s
p
e
n
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 c
u
ts

. 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
: 
D
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty
 o
f 
A
B
G
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 s
o
m
e
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 w
e
re
 

te
m
p
o
ra
ily
 f
ro
z
e
n
. 
 T
h
is
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a
 r
e
d
 s
ta
tu
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t.
  

W
a
it
in
g
 f
o
r 
 i
n
v
o
ic
e
s
.

A A G

P
ro
b
le
m
 S
o
lv
in
g

C
la
ir
e
 

K
o
w
a
ls
k
a

G
A

R

£
1
0
,0
0
0

£
5
,7
2
7

A
G

£
4
,2

7
3

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
o
lic
e
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
/O
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 

C
ri
m
e
 I
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e

C
h
ri
s
 B
a
rc
la
y
  

(M
e
t 
P
o
lic
e
) 

� ���

C
la
ir
e
 

K
o
w
a
ls
k
a

S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

P
ro
v
is
io
n

£
2
9
5
,0
0
0

£
6
1
,8
9
8

£
2
3
3
,1

0
2

A
£
3
8
0
,0
0
0

£
1
6
9
,3
0
3

£
2
1
0
,6

9
7

G
A A

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\8
\3
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
3
5
3
8
\Q
2
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
2
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/1
0
/1
0
 1
5
:1
9

1
 o
f 
4

Page 19



P
ro

je
c
t 

H
ig

h
li
g

h
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

P
e
ri

o
d

: 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1
0
 -

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

0
9

/1
0

S
p

e
n

d
 T

o
 

D
a

te

B
u

d
g

e
t 

L
e

ft
 t

o
 

S
p

e
n

d
P

ro
je

c
t 

o
b

je
c

ti
v
e
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

 0
9

/1
0

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c

t

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

F
in

a
n

c
e
s

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

Monitoring Return

C
o

m
 S

tr
a
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

T
o
 m
a
x
im
is
e
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 a
g
re
e
d
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s

T
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 a
n
d
 e
m
b
e
d
 a
 p
ro
b
le
m
-

s
o
lv
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
-l
e
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h

T
o
 r
e
g
u
la
rl
y
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 h
o
m
e
 v
is
it
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 

p
e
rs
o
n
s
 a
g
e
d
 5
5
y
rs
 p
lu
s
.

T
o
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 a
u
d
it
s
 

a
t 
th
e
 h
o
m
e
s
 o
f 
b
u
rg
la
ry
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 a
n
d
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

T
o
 f
o
llo
w
 u
p
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 s
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
.

B
y
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r 
2
0
1
0
 

th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
w
o
u
ld
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 2
0
0
 

e
n
q
u
ir
e
s
, 
v
is
it
e
d
 1
5
0
 c
lie
n
ts
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
d
 s
e
c
u
ri
ty
 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 t
o
 1
5
0
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
s
.

In
c
re
a
s
e
 w
o
m
e
n
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
's
 s
a
fe
ty

H
o
ld
 a
b
u
s
e
rs
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le

U
n
d
e
rm
in
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
to
le
ra
n
c
e
/a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 G
e
n
d
e
r 
A
b
u
s
e
 

o
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 i
n
a
c
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

e
it
h
e
r 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 o
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s

P
ro
v
id
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
k
ill
s
 t
o
 b
u
ild
 

re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 r
e
s
p
e
c
t,
 m
u
tu
a
l 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
, 
w
it
h
 s
h
a
re
d
 p
o
w
e
r 
a
n
d
 

a
 c
o
m
m
it
m
e
n
t 
to
 n
o
n
-v
io
le
n
c
e

C
o
m
b
a
t 
g
e
n
d
e
r 
a
b
u
s
e

T
o
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
 a
ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 o
f 
A
S
B
 i
n
 b
o
th
 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 
a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 n
o
n
 

te
n
u
re
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
n
c
id
e
n
ts
 (
e
.g
. 
p
u
b
lic
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
).
 

T
o
 w
o
rk
 c
lo
s
e
ly
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 t
h
e
 p
o
lic
e
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

is
s
u
e
s

T
o
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
a
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 t
h
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 A
S
B
 o
n
 

o
th
e
rs
 a
n
d
 w
h
a
t 
to
 d
o
 i
f 
s
u
b
je
c
te
d
 t
o
 

in
c
id
e
n
ts
 o
f 
h
a
ra
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
r 
b
u
lly
in
g
.

� ���
G

A
n
ti
-S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 T
e
a
m

M
ik
e
 B
a
g
n
a
ll

G
£
1
4
2
,0

8
1

£
1
4
2
,4
1
9

£
2
8
4
,5
0
0

A
G

G

R
R

� ��� � ���

B
u

d
g

e
t:

 S
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Is
s
u

e
: 
ra
is
e
d
 w
it
h
 S
n
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M
e
m
b
e
r.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

R
is

k
: 
D
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 t
a
k
in
g
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 H
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 r
e
 f
u
tu
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
.

R
G

A
n
ti
-B
u
rg
la
ry
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

P
ro
je
c
t

S
te
v
e
 F
a
llo
n
 

(C
a
re
 &
 R
e
p
a
ir
)

G
£
3
5
,0
0
0

A
G

G
E
v
e
 

F
e
a
th
e
rs
to
n
e

A
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
/N
ia
 P
ro
je
c
t

B
u

d
g

e
t:

 S
p
e
n
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 5
K
 c
u
ts
. 
 

S
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 y
e
t.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Is
s

u
e

: 
L
o
w
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 l
ia
is
in
g
 w
it
h
 c
ri
m
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
ff
ic
e
r.

£
1
7
,5
0
0

B
u

d
g

e
t:
 T
h
is
 w
a
s
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 d
o
w
n
w
a
rd
s
 f
ro
m
 £
4
2
0
K
. 
 S
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
 

ta
rg
e
t,
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 y
e
t.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

Is
s

u
e
: 
T
h
e
 m
a
jo
ri
ty
 o
f 
k
e
y
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
p
o
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 C
S
T
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 c
e
n
tr
a
l 
ro
le
s
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

R
is

k
: 
 F
a
ilu
re
 t
o
 m
a
in
ta
in
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
e
x
c
e
lle
n
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fa
c
e
 o
f 
ri
s
in
g
 u
n
e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t.

£
1
7
,5

0
0

B
u

d
g

e
t:
 S
p
e
n
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
ju
s
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
  
£
2
,0
0
6
 c
u
ts
. 
 

S
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t.
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
s
p
e
n
d
  
h
a
s
 n
o
t 
g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 y
e
t.

G
G

G
£
1
1
2
,9
9
4

£
4
1
,8
2
2

G
G

£
7
1
,1

7
2

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\8
\3
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
3
5
3
8
\Q
2
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
2
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/1
0
/1
0
 1
5
:1
9

2
 o
f 
4

Page 20



P
ro

je
c
t 

H
ig

h
li
g

h
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

P
e
ri

o
d

: 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1
0
 -

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

0
9

/1
0

S
p

e
n

d
 T

o
 

D
a

te

B
u

d
g

e
t 

L
e

ft
 t

o
 

S
p

e
n

d
P

ro
je

c
t 

o
b

je
c

ti
v
e
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

 0
9

/1
0

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c

t

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

F
in

a
n

c
e
s

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

Monitoring Return

C
o

m
 S

tr
a
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

T
h
e
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 o
ff
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 m
o
re
 p
ro
lif
ic
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 

e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 i
n
 A
S
B
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 p
a
re
n
ti
n
g
 s
k
ill
s
. 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 t
h
e
 ‘
tr
ip
le
 t
ra
c
k
’ 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

in
 d
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 A
S
B
 a
s
 o
u
tl
in
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

D
C
S
F
/H
o
m
e
 O
ff
ic
e
. 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 M
e
n

to
r:

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 

c
a
s
e
lo
a
d
 o
f 
2
0
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 N
1
 4
5
. 
 C
o
-

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 m
o
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 g
ro
u
p

D
ru

g
s
 W

o
rk

: 
A
s
s
e
s
s
 a
ll 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 c
o
m
in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 Y
O
S
 

v
ia
  
th
e
 c
o
u
rt
s
. 
C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 T
ri
a
g
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 

b
y
 a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 t
h
o
s
e
 a
rr
e
s
te
d
 o
n
 d
ru
g
 

o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 d
iv
e
rt
 a
w
a
y
 f
ro
m
 C
ri
m
in
a
l 

J
u
s
ti
c
e
 S
y
s
te
m
. 
F
a
c
ili
ta
te
 c
a
n
n
a
b
is
 a
n
d
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 s
e
s
s
io
n
s
 a
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
.

F
o

re
ig

n
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
W

o
rk

: 
N
O
 O
B
J
E
C
T
IV
E
S
 

G
IV
E
N

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f,
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
, 

M
u
s
lim
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
.

K
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 
th
e
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 V
io
le
n
t 
E
x
tr
e
m
is
m
 a
g
e
n
d
a
. 

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 a
c
ti
o
n
 p
la
n
 

to
 b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
ili
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
ls
.

T
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
k
e
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 i
n
 

p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
n
d
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r.
  
T
o
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 k
e
y
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
, 

e
s
p
e
c
ia
lly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 r
e
p
e
a
t 

v
ic
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o
f 

v
ic
ti
m
 t
u
rn
e
d
 p
e
rp
e
tr
a
to
r.
 T
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
, 

B
M
E
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
c
ri
m
e
 w
it
h
 

a
n
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c
ri
m
e

£
4
4
,0
0
9

£
1
1
,6
3
4

£
3
2
,3

7
5

B
u

d
g

e
t:

 T
h
is
 i
s
 r
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 w
h
ic
h
 t
o
o
k
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 M
a
y
 

a
n
d
 J
u
n
e

. 
 £

9
9
1
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
p

e
n

d
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

 £
8
K

 

u
n

d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

G
R

R
R

A
A

B
u

d
g

e
t:

 S
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
 T
a
rg
e
t.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

G
G

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 a
n
d
 V
ic
ti
m
 

W
o
rk

C
la
re
 W
ill
ia
m
s
o
n
  

(V
ic
ti
m
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
)

S
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
Y
o
u
th
 C
ri
m
e
 

P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n

L
in
d
a
 J
a
m
e
s

� ���
£
5
8
,9

1
0

£
5
6
,5
9
0

£
1
1
5
,5
0
0

G
G

G
G

G
G

£
1
4
4
,0
0
0

P
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 V
io
le
n
t 

E
x
tr
e
m
is
m

S
e
a
n
 S
w
e
e
n
e
y

B
u

d
g

e
t :
S
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
 T
a
rg
e
t.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 s
p
e
n
d
 p
ro
fi
le
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th
e
 c
u
ts
.

A
A

A
A

£
7
4
,9

6
8

£
6
9
,0
3
2

� ���

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\8
\3
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
3
5
3
8
\Q
2
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
2
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/1
0
/1
0
 1
5
:1
9

3
 o
f 
4

Page 21



P
ro

je
c
t 

H
ig

h
li
g

h
t 

R
e
p

o
rt

P
e
ri

o
d

: 
J
u

ly
 2

0
1
0
 -

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

People at the Heart of 

Change

An Environmentally 

Sustainable Future

Economic Vitality and 

Prosperity Shared by All

Safer for All

Healthier People with a 

Better Quality of Life

This Quarter

Timescale

Resources

Issues

Risks

Budget

T
o

ta
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t

0
9

/1
0

S
p

e
n

d
 T

o
 

D
a

te

B
u

d
g

e
t 

L
e

ft
 t

o
 

S
p

e
n

d
P

ro
je

c
t 

o
b

je
c

ti
v
e
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

 0
9

/1
0

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

d
a
te

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
P

ro
je

c
ts

P
ro

je
c

t

M
a

n
a

g
e

r

F
in

a
n

c
e
s

R
A

G
 S

ta
tu

s

Monitoring Return

C
o

m
 S

tr
a
t 

O
u

tc
o

m
e
s

 E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o
v
e
rs
ig
h
t,
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 a
n
d
 

e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
n
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
.

T
o
 b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

to
 l
e
a
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
 A
d
u
lt
 D
ru
g
 

T
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
P
la
n

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 m
e
a
n
in
g
fu
l 
c
a
re
r/
u
s
e
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
, 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
a
d
u
lt
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
D
A
A
T
 i
s
 d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 o
ff
e
r 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
m
o
n
e
y

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 s
tr
u
c
tu
re
s
 f
o
r 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 
Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M
is
u
s
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

tr
e
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
 b
y
 e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
it
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
g
re
e
d
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
’s
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 a
n
d
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 t
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
m
o
d
e
l 
is
 

w
id
e
ly
 u
n
d
e
rs
to
o
d
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
s
 a
s
 a
n
 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
, 
h
o
lis
ti
c
 s
y
s
te
m
 r
a
th
e
r 
 t
h
a
n
 

a
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s

T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 h
a
rm

T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 h
a
rm
 t
o
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le

T
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 m
o
rt
a
lit
y

N
o
te
: 
T
ra
ff
ic
 l
ig
h
t 
a
n
n
o
ta
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
:

G
re
e
n
 S
ta
tu
s
- 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 o
n
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
a
g
re
e
d
 m
ile
s
to
n
e
s
/o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
p
la
n

A
m
b
e
r 
S
ta
tu
s
- 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
h
a
s
 e
n
c
o
u
n
te
re
d
 s
o
m
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 c
o
u
ld
 a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
, 
c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
. 
R
e
c
o
v
e
ry
 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
, 

b
u
t 
h
a
s
 e
it
h
e
r 
n
o
t 
y
e
t 
b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 o
r 
te
s
te
d
.

R
e
d
 S
ta
tu
s
- 
D
e
liv
e
y
 o
f 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 w
it
h
in
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
im
e
, 
c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 i
s
 n
o
t 
p
re
s
e
n
tl
y
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 
T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
m
a
y
 h
a
v
e
 s
ta
lle
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 u
rg
e
n
t 
a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

� ���
B

u
d

g
e

t:
 S
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 o
n
 t
a
rg
e
t,
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
s
p
e
n
d
 n
o
t 
g
o
n
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 y
e
t.

D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
M
is
u
s
e

M
a
ri
o
n
 M
o
rr
is

£
4
1
5
,4
1
0

£
1
1
6
,9
1
6

£
2
9
8
,4

9
4

G
G

G
G

G

E
:\
m
o
d
e
rn
g
o
v
\D
a
ta
\A
g
e
n
d
a
It
e
m
D
o
c
s
\8
\3
\5
\A
I0
0
0
2
3
5
3
8
\Q
2
H
ig
h
lig
h
tr
e
p
o
rt
S
a
fe
rC
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
2
.x
ls
H
ig
h
le
v
e
l 
p
ro
je
c
t 
re
p
o
rt

L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 2
5
/1
0
/1
0
 1
5
:1
9

4
 o
f 
4

Page 22



 

 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board   
  
Date:   4 November 2010  
 
Report Title: Proposals Regarding the Future of Safer 

Communities Executive Board’s Allocation of Area 
Based Grant 

 
Report of: Jean Croot, Corporate Head of Safer Stronger 

Communities 
 

Purpose   
 
To report to the Safer Communities Executive Board the proposals drawn up 
regarding allocation of Area Based Grant for 2011/12, and the suggested 
priorities for next year. 
 

Summary 
 
The HSP requested that all Theme Boards draw up proposals for their 
2011/12 allocation of Area Based Grant (ABG) if there are 25%, 50%, 75% 
and 100% reductions compared to the allocation for 2010/11. 
The HSP also asked us to draw up proposals on the draft priorities for 
2011/12. 
 

Legal/Financial Implications 
 
There is great uncertainty regarding the allocation of ABG after March 2011, 
and it is quite possible that it will cease altogether. 
 

Recommendations 
 

i. That the Board approve the recommendations in the attached paper 
regarding the proposals against the possible reductions. 

ii. That the Board approve the draft priorities, until these have been 
formally reviewed and agreed after the Strategic Assessment has been 
approved by the Board. 

 

For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Jean Croot 
Title: Corporate Head of Safer Stronger Communities 
Tel: 020 8489 6934 
Email address: jean.croot@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 

Agenda Item 8Page 23



Background 

This work was first carried out by a small group of officers, lead by the 
Corporate Head of Safer Stronger Communities, with officers from the 
Council, Police and Haringey PCT.  
 
Following agreement by this group, it was placed before a wider group for 
discussion and consideration. The invitees of this group were: 
 
Susan Otiti  PCT  
Chris Barclay  Metropolitan Police Service 
Aidan.Gibson Metropolitan Police Service 
Claire Kowalska Community Safety Team,  
Marion Morris  Drug & Alcohol Action Team 
Linda James  Youth Offending Service 
Pamela Pemberton HAVCO 
John Egbo  Community Links 
Frances Palopoli  Finance  
Mike Bagnall  Anti-Social Behaviour Action Team 
Jean Croot  Safer Stronger Communities 
 
Some minor changes were made to the proposals at this stage. 
 
The paper has also been placed before the SCEB Performance Management 
Group, and at the time of writing this report, that meeting had not taken place. 
 
It must be appreciated that this it is too early to make decisions on the 
priorities for 2011/12, as these decisions need to be made following 
consideration by the Board of the Strategic Assessment and its findings. The 
draft priorities contained within this paper were created from a merger of the 
past three years’ priorities. 
It is therefore suggested that these priorities be discussed and agreed by the 
Board either at this meeting in the discussion on the Strategic assessment 
report, or at the following Board meeting. 
 
Appendices  
One appendix – see attached. 

Page 24



T
h
e
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 T
e
m
p
la
te

P
ri
o
ri
ty

R
a
ti
o
n
a
le

People at the Heart of 

Change

Healthier People With a 

Better Quality of Life

Economic Vitality Shared by 

All

Environmentally 

Sustainable Future 

Safer for All

People and Customer 

Focused

 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d

(n
a
m
e
 a
n
d
 b
ri
e
f 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
)

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

S
o
u
rc
e
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

F
u
n
d
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 2
5
%
 A
B
G
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 5
0
%
 

A
B
G
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

F
u
n
d
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 7
5
%
 A
B
G
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

Im
p
a
c
t 

(d
e
ta
il 
im
p
a
c
t 
to
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
/ 

C
O
M
P
A
C
T
/ 
H
e
a
lt
h
/ 
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 2
5
%
, 

7
5
%
 a
n
d
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
)

X
X

X
X

X
S
p
e
c
ia
li
s
t 
y
o
u
th
 c
ri
m
e
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
fu
n
d
s
 3
 f
.t
.e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
r 
p
o
s
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 Y
O
S
, 

c
a
rr
y
in
g
 o
u
t 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 w
o
rk
. 

A
B
G

£
1
1
3
,0
0
0

£
8
0
,0
0
0

£
7
3
,6
0
0
7
5
%
: 
M
in
im
a
l 
im
p
a
c
t 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
%
 W

o
u
ld
 l
o
s
e
 o
n
e
 s
o
c
ia
l 
w
o
rk
e
r 
p
o
s
t 
p
lu
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
 a
n
o
th
e
r 
p
o
s
t 
to
 p
/t
 -
 l
o
s
s
 o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 

w
o
rk
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
2
5
%
 

w
o
u
ld
 l
o
s
e
 1
.5
 p
o
s
ts
; 
lo
s
s
 o
f 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 w
o
rk
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
il 
fu
n
d
s
: 
S
ta
tu
to
ry
 w
o
rk
 l
o
s
t,
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 o
f 
Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 n
o
t 
m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 

In
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 y
o
u
th
 o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
/r
e
-o
ff
e
n
d
in
g
. 

F
a
ilu
re
 i
n
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
. 

S
u
b
 t
o
ta
ls
 

£
1
1
3
,0
0
0

£
8
0
,0
0
0

£
7
3
,6
0
0

X
X

X
X

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 P
o
li
c
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
ic
 p
o
lic
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

A
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 a
n
d
 V
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
s
 a
d
d
in
g
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
h
o
u
rs
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 o
v
e
rt
im
e
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 

o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
.

A
B
G

£
2
4
8
,0
0
0

£
2
1
0
,0
0
0

£
1
1
7
,0
0
0
7
5
%
: 
 S
o
m
e
 p
ro
-a
c
ti
v
it
y
 l
o
s
t.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
%
: 
S
o
m
e
 p
ro
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 l
o
s
t 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
%
: 
W
o
u
ld
 l
o
o
s
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 C
ri
m
e
 T
e
a
m
 

(c
o
v
e
rs
 r
o
b
b
e
ry
, 
b
u
rg
la
ry
, 
g
a
n
g
-r
e
la
te
d
 

c
ri
m
e
);
 c
ra
c
k
 h
o
u
s
e
 c
lo
s
u
re
s
  
w
o
u
ld
 c
e
a
s
e
; 

B
u
rg
la
ry
 Q
-C
a
r 
g
o
n
e
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 N
il 

fu
n
d
s
: 
In
c
re
a
s
e
s
 i
n
 c
ri
m
e
, 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

S
a
n
c
ti
o
n
e
d
 D
e
te
c
ti
o
n
 r
a
te
s

X
X

X
X

S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 P
ro
v
is
io
n

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
fu
n
d
s
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
p
o
lic
y
, 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 
d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 

a
n
a
ly
ti
c
a
l 
s
ta
ff
. 

A
B
G

£
3
0
8
,0
0
0

£
2
0
0
,0
0
0

£
4
5
,0
0
0
F
u
n
d
s
 8
 o
u
t 
o
f 
9
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 o
ff
ic
e
r 

p
o
s
ts
. 
A
ll 
p
o
s
ts
 a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

F
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 R
e
v
ie
w
, 
th
e
re
fo
re
 t
e
a
m
 m
a
y
 n
o
t 

e
x
is
t 
in
 f
u
tu
re
. 

X
X

X
X

A
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
in
g
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
a
d
d
re
s
s
e
s
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 g
e
n
d
e
r 

a
b
u
s
e
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 i
n
c
re
a
s
in
g
 w
o
m
e
n
 a
n
d
 c
h
ild
re
n
's
 s
a
fe
ty
 

a
n
d
 h
o
ld
in
g
 a
b
u
s
e
rs
 a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
le
.

A
B
G

£
3
2
,0
0
0

£
2
0
,0
0
0

£
0
A
ll 
fu
n
d
e
d
 p
o
s
ts
 a
re
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

F
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 R
e
v
ie
w
.

S
u
b
 t
o
ta
ls
 

£
5
8
8
,0
0
0

£
4
3
0
,0
0
0

£
1
6
2
,0
0
0

X
D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e

A
B
G

£
3
9
0
,0
0
0

£
2
4
5
,2
0
0

£
1
2
0
,0
0
0
S
e
ri
o
u
s
 s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 n
o
/o
r 

X
X

X
X

X
A
n
ti
 S
o
c
ia
l 
B
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
T
e
a
m

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
fu
n
d
s
 c
o
re
 A
S
B
 c
a
s
e
 w
o
rk
 -
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t.
 T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 p
ro
te
c
t 
th
e
 

p
u
b
lic
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
id
e
r 
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 (
e
.g
. 
In
ju
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
A
S
B
O
''s
, 

C
lo
s
u
re
 O
rd
e
rs
 a
n
d
 E
v
ic
ti
o
n
s
),
 P
re
v
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 g
ro
u
p
s
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 g
a
th
e
ri
n
g
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
o
 

p
ro
s
e
c
u
te
 p
e
rp
e
tr
a
to
rs
 o
f 
A
S
B
 v
ia
 t
h
e
 A
S
B
A
T
 C
C
T
V
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
th
e
 A
S
B
A
T
 a
ls
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
s
 i
n
 

ta
n
d
e
m
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 P
o
lic
e
 S
a
fe
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 T
e
a
m
s

A
B
G

£
2
8
1
,8
0
3

£
1
6
0
,0
0
0

£
1
0
2
,0
0
0
7
5
%
: 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
=
5
 p
o
s
ts
 d
e
le
te
d
; 
1
0
0
 A
S
B
 

c
a
s
e
s
 u
n
a
llo
c
a
te
d
; 
w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t 
in
 p
la
c
e
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
0
%
: 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
=
  
 3
+
 p
o
s
ts
  
d
e
le
te
d
; 
6
0
 

c
a
s
e
s
 o
n
 w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t.
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
%
: 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
=
1
 p
o
s
t 
d
e
le
te
d
; 
2
0
 c
a
s
e
s
 o
n
 

w
a
it
in
g
 l
is
t,
; 
n
e
w
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 o
f 
lif
e
 a
n
d
 l
im
b
 

w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 T
h
e
 r
o
lli
n
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
in
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 a
n
d
 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
d
v
e
rs
e
ly
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

N
il 
F
u
n
d
s
: 
 o
n
ly
 H
fH
 c
a
s
e
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 a
s
 o
n
ly
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 f
ro
m
 H
fH
. 
N
o
 p
ri
v
a
te
 s
e
c
to
r 

o
r 
o
th
e
r 
c
a
s
e
s
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 .
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
o
u
ld
 

g
e
t 
v
e
ry
 d
is
tr
e
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 v
e
ry
 

u
n
s
a
fe
.

R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
  
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2

Safer Communities Executive Board

3
. 
A
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 
b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
 (
d
ru
g
s
 a
n
d
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l)

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

M
is
u
s
e
 N
e
e
d
s
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 u
s
e
r 

s
u
rv
e
y
 d
a
ta

S
e
tt
in
g
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2

A
n
n
u
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t;
 W

a
rd
 

p
ro
fi
le
s
; 
A
re
a
-b
a
s
e
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
s
; 

R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
' s
u
rv
e
y
s
; 
P
o
lic
e
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
; 
S
a
fe
r 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
; 
d
a
ta
 a
n
d
 i
n
te
lli
g
e
n
c
e
 f
ro
m
 

k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs

1
. 
A
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 y
o
u
th
 

c
ri
m
e
, 
a
n
d
 

s
a
fe
ty
/p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
.

2
. 
R
e
d
u
c
in
g
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 v
io
le
n
t 

c
ri
m
e
, 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

a
c
q
u
is
it
iv
e
 c
ri
m
e
, 

g
e
n
d
e
r-
b
a
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 a
n
d
 a
ls
o
 H
e
a
rt
h
s
to
n
e
 D
V
 

C
e
n
tr
e

P
a
g
e
 1
 o
f 
2

Page 25



T
h
e
m
e
 B
o
a
rd
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 T
e
m
p
la
te

P
ri
o
ri
ty

R
a
ti
o
n
a
le

People at the Heart of 

Change

Healthier People With a 

Better Quality of Life

Economic Vitality Shared by 

All

Environmentally 

Sustainable Future 

Safer for All

People and Customer 

Focused

 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
li
v
e
re
d

(n
a
m
e
 a
n
d
 b
ri
e
f 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
)

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

S
o
u
rc
e
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

F
u
n
d
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 2
5
%
 A
B
G
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

F
u
n
d
in
g
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 5
0
%
 

A
B
G
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
  

F
u
n
d
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 

o
n
 7
5
%
 A
B
G
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n

Im
p
a
c
t 

(d
e
ta
il 
im
p
a
c
t 
to
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
/ 

C
O
M
P
A
C
T
/ 
H
e
a
lt
h
/ 
 E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
im
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 2
5
%
, 

7
5
%
 a
n
d
 1
0
0
%
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
)

R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
  
P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2

S
e
tt
in
g
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2

X
X

X
X

X
D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
T
h
is
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
fu
n
d
s
 a
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 s
e
c
to
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
re
n
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 

b
y
 p
a
re
n
ta
l 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
, 
a
 p
o
s
t 
ta
rg
e
ti
n
g
 r
e
p
e
a
t 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
, 
a
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
Y
P
 w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 d
ru
g
 o
r 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
, 
3
 p
o
s
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
h
ild
re
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

w
it
h
 c
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 f
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt
 

o
f 
a
 p
o
s
t 
in
 t
h
e
 D
A
A
T
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
.

A
B
G

£
3
9
0
,0
0
0

£
2
4
5
,2
0
0

£
1
2
0
,0
0
0
7
5
%
: 
O
n
e
 p
o
s
t 
w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 d
e
le
te
d
 w
it
h
 r
e
la
te
d
 

lo
s
s
 o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
  
 5
0
%
: 
 A
b
o
v
e
, 
+
 C
h
ild
re
n
 

a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
's
 T
re
a
tm
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 w
o
u
ld
 

b
e
 l
o
s
t,
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 v
e
ry
 l
im
it
e
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 i
n
 

m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 t
e
a
m
s
. 
  
2
5
%
: 
A
ll 
th
a
t 
w
o
u
ld
 

re
m
a
in
 w
o
u
ld
 b
e
 t
h
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
o
 c
h
ild
re
n
 o
f 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
rs
 (
c
o
v
e
rs
 c
h
ild
 p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

is
s
u
e
s
),
 t
h
e
 d
e
d
ic
a
te
d
 p
o
s
t 
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
m
is
u
s
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 a
 v
e
ry
 s
m
a
ll 
a
n
d
 

lim
it
e
d
 f
u
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
. 
  
 N
il 
fu
n
d
s
: 
  
S
e
ri
o
u
s
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 n
o
/o
r 
v
e
ry
 l
im
it
e
d
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 g
ro
w
in
g
 u
p
 i
n
 

fa
m
ili
e
s
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m
is
u
s
e
/n
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
 p
ro
b
le
m
s
, 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
/m
o
rt
a
lit
y
, 
n
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

u
s
e
r/
c
a
re
r/
c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
rs
.

S
u
b
 t
o
ta
ls
 

£
6
7
1
,8
0
3

£
4
0
5
,2
0
0

£
2
2
2
,0
0
0

S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B
o
a
rd
 T
o
ta
l 

£
1
,0
9
1
,0
0
0

£
7
5
5
,2
0
0

£
3
5
5
,6
0
0

P
a
g
e
 2
 o
f 
2

Page 26



 

 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board  
    
Date:   4 November 2010 
 
Report Title: Towards Integrated Offender Management  
 
Report of:  Claire Kowalska, Community Safety Strategic  
  Manager in collaboration with Probation and Haringey Drug  

 and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) 
 

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)  

To seek endorsement for the establishment of a strategic Integrated Offender 
Management (IOM) Partnership Group in Haringey to undertake the work 
described under 7.2 
 
N.B. We appreciate that many decisions about structures and resources have  yet 
to be confirmed but suggest that discussions should begin now in order for 
Haringey to be best placed to respond to the forthcoming announcements. 

 

2. Recommendations 

         That SCEB endorse and support the moves towards integrating and co- 
         ordinating offender support and management in the borough 

 

3.  Chief Financial Officer Comments  

The CSR had not been published at the time of writing.  Neither the level nor 
final distribution of resources is currently known 

 

4.  Head of Legal Services Comments  

           There are no areas of obvious concern from a legal perspective 
 

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

5.1.      Background papers are as follows: 
      Cutting Crime:  Home Office Strategy 2008-2011 
      Safer for All Strategy 2008-2011 
      National Drug Strategy 2008-2011 
      Sustainable Community Strategy 

       
 

6.  Background 
 

6.1 Reducing re-offending is a stated priority in the Safer for All Strategy 2008-
2011 which contributes to the Sustainable Communities Strategy and in turn 
strongly responds to residents’ concerns.   Reducing re-offending came to the 
fore as a priority under the Labour Government and remains high on the 

Agenda Item 9Page 27



 

 2 

agenda under the Coalition.  A Green Paper on Rehabilitation is expected in 
the Autumn/Winter.   

 
6.2 Since April 2010, Community Safety Partnerships have a duty to reduce re-

offending and are required to pull together a strategy.  This will be driven less 
by national guidance and targets and more by local conditions and the 
imperative for efficiency.  

  
6.3 Reducing Re-offending through Skills and Employment1 estimated that around 

60% of released prisoners were convicted of another crime within two years.  
Of these, 50% re-offend within the first 4 months and over 80% within 12 
months.  The National Audit Office now estimates the total public cost of re-
offending to be £10billion. 

 
6.4 A number of schemes and approaches currently exist which touch at the 

margins but are not aligned or integrated in Haringey.  These include the work 
of Probation (statutory offenders), Community Safety Team (non-statutory), 
Drug Intervention Project (DIP), Prolific and Priority Offenders, Youth 
Offending Service (YOS), Prisons (Resettlement Officers), Multi-agency 
Public Protection Arrangements (high risk offenders), MARAC (domestic 
violence victims and perpetrators), public health services and voluntary 
agencies. 

 
6.5 The National Offender Management Service (NOMS) is in the process of 

consulting boroughs ahead of their forthcoming interventions strategy.  
Lessons are also now available from a range of local innovative practice and 
from pilot schemes such as ‘Diamond Initiatives’ and ‘Total Place’ exercises.   

 
6.6 Modern academic writing on desistance from crime has increased 

substantially over the past few years inspired by authors such as Shadd 
Maruna (Queen’s University, Belfast) and Fergus McNeill (University of 
Glasgow).  Their research confirms the need for us to better understand the 
processes of change and the timing of interventions and support.  It calls 
primarily for the return to person-centred, offender-led approaches based on a 
robust case work model and set against a holistic and integrated strategy. 

 
7. Rational for an IOM approach 
 
7.1 An IOM approach can pull together the learning and experience across the 

board.  This report has borrowed from the work of consultant Mike Bland who 
has undertaken a comprehensive piece of work for the London Borough of 
Hammersmith & Fulham.  He states that IOM is about effective throughcare 
with a view to managing offenders across and out of their criminal career.  It is 
about ‘doing core business differently’. 

 
7.2 The expected benefits of co-ordinating these strands include the following: 
 

• Improved data, intelligence and analysis sharing 

• Sharing of existing and best practice 

• Development of a collaborative strategy with joint ownership and clarity 
of purpose 

• Streamlined processes  

                                            
1
 Joint publication of the Home Office, DWP and Dept. for Education and Skills.  2005 

Page 28



 

 3 

• Maximum use of resources with joint commissioning and reduced 
duplication  

• Development of local success measures and evaluation 

• Smoother transition between young and adult offenders 

• Provision of a forum for a co-ordinated response to new policies and 
developments 

 
8. Recommendation 
 
8.1 It is recommended that Haringey should proceed with bringing the relevant 

parties together by December to start working on an IOM approach, jointly 
consider new policies and agree on a timetable for strategy development.    

 
8.2 Membership should reflect the groups identified under 6.4 with represent-ation 

from the police and higher education.  The Chair should initially be held by the 
Assistant Chief Officer, Probation with the Haringey remit.  The group will 
agree on working practices and terms of reference in due course. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board    
 
Date:   4 November 2010  
 
Report Title: Haringey Reducing Re-offending Programme (HARRP) 

2010/2011 
 
Report of: Michael Buraimoh – Reducing Re-offending Officer 
 

Summary of Important Statistics:  
 
The cost of re-offending in Haringey is £40 million and the national cost of re-
offending is £10 billion (Home Office and National Audit Office reports 
respectively). The social impact of repeat offending is unquantifiable and 2 out 
of every 3 offenders released from prison re-offend within two years. 
 
Programme Summary:  
 
On the 18th of February 2010, the Reducing Re-offending Officer made a 
presentation to the board on HARRP (the Haringey Reducing Re-offending 
Programme). A further report was presented on the 3rd of June which 
summarised the strategic work carried out so far as well as the planned 
delivery of the programme. This report summarises the operational work 
carried out so far and the matters arising from this operational and time critical 
work. 
 
It is worth mentioning again that although the current funding is for the first 
year of delivery only; the programme would need to last a minimum of 2 years 
for its achievements to be measurable (based on the working definition of re-
offending). 
 
Summary of key Activities and Successes to date: 
 

• Reducing Re-offending Action Pan developed and presented to SCEB 
in February 2010 

 

- The Action Plan was well received and members’ suggestion of 
engagement with Children and Young People’s Services carried out 
accordingly. 

 

• A Reducing Re-offending conference was organised and held in March 
2010 

 

- The conference brought together key partners in delivering the 
reducing re-offending plan but also highlighted the absence of mental 
and physical health agencies, with the engagement of these agencies 
now being active. 

 

• Key partnerships were developed and the Haringey Reducing Re-
offending Network (HARREN) was created in April 2010 

Page 31



- Thirty organisations have committed to membership of HARREN 
- A Joint Working Agreement has been written to facilitate the 

partnership working of HARREN. 
- An online forum for managing the network has also been set up and 

has been live since June 2010. 
 

• Recruitment of Reducing Re-offending Case Worker was finalised in 
August 2010 

 

• Recruitment and training of 17 volunteers on the HARRP mentoring 
scheme was carried out in September 2010. 

 

• Recruitment and ongoing engagement with 21 non statutory 
offenders/ex-offenders. 

- 10 ex-offenders have been released from custody and are actively 
engaging with the programme; their continued engagement on the 
programme is voluntary thereby providing an indication of changing 
attitude. 

- 2 ex-offenders have now secured full time sustainable employment. 
- 7 clients are in the process of securing further education/training 

spaces with various training establishments. 
 

Planned Future Activities: 
 

• Setting up of a HARRP Court Service in partnership with Haringey 
magistrates. This is a project based on magistrates deferring offenders’ 
sentences on the condition that they will engage with HARRP volunteer 
mentors and interventions carried out accordingly.  

• Delivery of HANSRE – The HARRP intensive employer engagement 
initiative to sign up and engage up to 50 employers. The aim of this 
project is to secure the commitment of employers to the recruitment of 
ex-offenders in Haringey as well as to carry out an ongoing vacancy 
sourcing from such employers - Target date is December 2010. 

• Recruitment and engagement of 10 additional clients on the 
programme by January 2011. 

 

Recommendations: 
 

• That board members note the progress to date and outcomes achieved as 
well as achievable by the programme. 

 

• That the Board note and support the proposed activities over the coming 
months with a view to reducing re-offending of non-statutory offenders and 
consider the impact of the project’s current end-date of March 2011.  

 

Financial/Legal Comments: 
 
Funding has been allocated from the Safer Communities Area Based Grant to 
cover the salary cost of the Reducing Re-offending Officer. An operating 
budget has been allocated from the BCU fund, which also covers salary for a 
Case Worker. 
 

For more information contact: 

Page 32



 
Name:  Michael Buraimoh 
Title:  Reducing Re-offending Officer 
Tel: 020 8489 2661 
Email address: michael.buraimoh@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 
Background 
 
1. Introduction: In 2008 the Community Safety Team (CST) and Drug and 
Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) co-commissioned research into re-offending and 
resettlement.  The key recommendation of this work was to establish a project 
management post to work with a multi-disciplinary officer group to produce and 
co-ordinate a comprehensive reducing adult re-offending action plan regarding 
offenders serving sentences of less than 12 months. 
 
In April 2010 reducing re-offending became a national priority and the statutory 
responsibility of Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships or Community Safety 
Partnerships. 
 
Statistically: 
 

• 67 per cent of people released from prison go on to re-offend within two years. 

• In March 2010 the National Audit Office put the national cost of re-offending at 
£10 billion a year. 

• Some 50,000 people are sent to prison for less than six months each year and 
this group of offenders make up more than 60% of offenders. 

 
 
2.  The Haringey Reducing Re-offending Programme (HARRP)  
 
General Objective: To significantly reduce the risk of re-offending among non-
statutory adult offenders through a partnership case management model to deliver 
coordinated resettlement services.  
3. Scope: The London Borough Offender Profile Report reveals that adult 
Haringey residents who are non-statutory offenders/ex-offenders sentenced to 
either custodial (particularly in Pentonville and Holloway prisons) or community 
sentences make up over 60% of re-offenders in Haringey. The Reducing Re-
offending Programme will only target this group, as no agency has the statutory 
obligation to supervise or coordinate efforts to effectively resettle them following 
their prison sentences. HARRP will work with these offenders during and after 
imprisonment. It will also provide access to services for offenders’ families. 
 
4. Summary of expected Outcomes 
 

• 70% of offenders/ex-offenders on the programme do not re-offend within at 
least two years of engagement on HARRP. 

• Clear lines of accountability and infrastructure for managing offenders 
sentenced to less than 12 months in Haringey. 

• Sustainable partnership is developed with statutory and voluntary 
organisations on reducing re-offending of non-statutory offenders. 

• Sustainable and active network of socially responsible employers in 
Haringey. 

Page 33



• A sustainable resource for managing offenders sentenced to less than 12 
months.  

• Improved community involvement in offender resettlement through HARRP 
Volunteer Mentoring Scheme. 

 
5. Risks and mitigating action  
 

Risk  Impact 
(H/M/L) 

Probability 
(H/M/L) 

Mitigation Plan 
Summary 

There is a risk of inadequate 
funding leading to inability to 
fully implement action plan, 
especially regarding the 
social enterprise project. 

 
H 

 
M 

The private sector will be 

engaged to achieve 

funding where feasible. 

However the Social 

Enterprise Project might 

become a future project 

There is a risk of a lack of 
commitment from key 
partners which could lead to 
problems with establishing 
an effective multi-agency 
approach and sharing 
information as well as co-
funding. 

M M Good practice from other 

partnership approaches 

within Haringey and from 

Tower Hamlets will be 

implemented where 

appropriate 

There is a risk that future 
funding to deliver the action 
plan may not be available – a 
risk of discontinuity 

H M An evidence base 

demonstrating the 

argument for investment 

is being developed  

Page 34



   

 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board   
  
Date:   4 November 2010  
 
Report Title: Response to the Governments Consultation on the 

Drug Strategy   
 
Report of:   Marion Morris, Drug & Alcohol Strategy Manager  
 

1.Purpose  
 
1.1.To inform the Board of the response to the Governments consultation on 
proposed new drug strategy which is due to be launched in December 2010. 
This response has been co-ordinated on behalf of the Local Authority and 
NHS Haringey by the Drug and Alcohol Action Team. It incorporates views of 
members of the Young Persons Commissioning Group, drug and alcohol 
treatment providers and the London Drug Policy Forum.  
 

2.Summary    
 
2.1. Concerns have been raised in Parliament and elsewhere about the length 
of time   given to respond to the strategy, (6 weeks as opposed to the usual 
12), the lack of policy detail and inaccessibility of this consultation. In 
particular there have been concerns that experts from the drug and alcohol 
treatment field will not have contributed. However, locally the DAAT have 
ensured that we have included the views of our providers.  The attached 
response was submitted to the Home Office on 29th September and has been 
signed off by Cllr Vanier and the Head of Safer and Stronger Communities.  
 
2.2. The overall vision for this strategy is that tackling drugs should be part of 
building the ‘big society’. Quite what this means in practice for some of the 
most marginalised in our society and how they can play a part is not clear.  
 
2.3. In terms of priority areas, much is similar to the previous drug strategy. 
However, one of the main differences, which is to be welcomed, is the 
apparent recognition that substance misuse is a public health issue as well as 
a criminal justice issue and that it must be joined up with other policy areas 
such as housing, mental health, child protection, alcohol misuse (for first time) 
and employment.  
 
2.4.There is move towards rewarding outcomes (payment by results) which 
exists elsewhere in the NHS, but could be quite problematic to operate within 
the substance misuse field as so many other factors come  into play that 
assist in a person becoming drug free. For example a number of agencies 
have usually had contact with drug users by the time they become drug free – 
do you simply reward the most recent provider.  
 

Agenda Item 10Page 35



   

2.5. The strategy also seems to be nudging towards the idea that partnerships 
need to be able to respond to all drug and alcohol issue and not just those of 
class A drug users. For the first time there seems to be recognition of the 
harm that alcohol can and does cause.  
 
2.6. One of the challenges of this strategy, with its emphasis on the 
recovery/re-integration agenda is how this can be achieved within the current 
economic climate. Also unclear at time of writing is whether the Drugs 
Intervention Programme will continue to be specifically funded by the Home 
office, or something similar in terms of reducing drug related offending.  
 
2.7. The role of DAATS themselves is yet to be worked out. The consultation 
document seems to suggest that commissioning should be done at a local 
level, with budgets and responsibilities devolved. However. One possibility is 
that they will sit alongside Public Health within the Council as part of a joint 
commissioning team, or that drug and alcohol commissioning is done on a 
sector wide basis again with input from Public Health. All of this may become 
clearer by late October/early November when the position paper for the 
merger of the NCL 5 PCTs will be written by the NCL PCT Executive Team. 
 
2.8. Prevention features strongly in the young peoples section,  so much so,  
that it is questionable whether the coalition Government think treatment has a 
place in responding to young people’s substance issues.  
 

3. Legal/Financial Implications  
 
3.1. At the time of writing it is understood that monies to support this strategy 
will be within the newly created centralised Public Health Service. These 
public health monies are said to be ‘ring-fenced at the national and local 
level’, quite what this mean is practice remains to be seen. Cleary the 
architecture to support the delivery of the drug or substance misuse strategy 
will be changed with the incorporation of the National Treatment Agency into 
the new Public Health Service along with a number of other ‘quangos’. 
 
3.2. The DAAT have been working with our drug and alcohol treatment 
providers in anticipation of further cuts to this budget to ensure we keep a 
coherent and effective treatment system in place. However, until the 
publication of the strategy it is difficult to know where the emphasis will be and 
therefore which services need to be prioritised. At the December DAAT 
Partnership Board meeting the position should be clearer. 
 

4. Recommendations  
 
To note the response to strategy and questions it poses in terms of future 
commissioning arrangements. 
 
The Board are asked to consider whether some of the drugs agenda should 
also feed into the Health and Wellbeing Board (as alcohol already does), 
particularly as this Board will have a statutory function. 
   

For more information contact: 
Name:  Marion Morris 

Page 36



   

Title:     Drug & Alcohol Strategy Manager  
Tel:       020 8489 6909 
Email address: marion.morris@haringey.gov.uk  
 

 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 1 

 
 
 
 

For a full version of the consultation paper, please visit our website at: 
http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/publications/consultations/cons-drug-strategy-2010/ 
 

 

Pro forma contents 
 
How to respond......................................................................................................... 1 
About you.................................................................................................................. 2 
Vision for the new drug strategy ................................................................................ 3 
Prevent drug use – Department for Education lead ................................................... 6 
Strengthen enforcement, criminal justice and legal framework – joint Home Office 
and Ministry of Justice lead ..................................................................................... 11 
Rebalance treatment to support drug free outcomes – Department of Health lead.. 15 
Support recovery to break the cycle of drug addiction – Department for Work and 
Pensions lead.......................................................................................................... 19 
Response confidentiality and disclaimer.................................................................. 23 
 
 

How to respond 
 

• Using the online form 

• Emailing this pro-forma complete with your responses to 
DrugConsultations@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk  

• Sending a hard copy to: 
Consultation 

Drug Strategy Unit, Home Office 
4th floor, Fry building 
2 Marsham Street 

LONDON SW1P 4DF 
 

The closing date for responses to reach use by is 30 September 2010. 
 
 

Page 39



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 2 

About you 
 

What is your gender? (please tick one) 
 
Female    
Male     
 
How old are you? (please tick one) 
 
Under 18    
18 – 24    
25 – 34    
35 – 54    
Over 55    
 
Where do you live? (please tick one) 
 
North East    
North West     
South East    
Yorkshire and the Humber  
West Midlands   
East Midlands    
East of England   
South West    
London    
Wales     
Northern Ireland   
Scotland    
Channel Islands    Please name island: _____________________ 

 
Please tell us your occupation (if relevant) 

Drug and Alcohol Strategy Manager 

 
Please tell us which organisation you represent (if applicable) 

Drug and Alcohol Action Team Haringey Council & Drug and Alcohol Action Team Haringey Council & Drug and Alcohol Action Team Haringey Council & Drug and Alcohol Action Team Haringey Council & NHSNHSNHSNHS Hari Hari Hari Haringeyngeyngeyngey    

 

Page 40



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 3 

Vision for the new drug strategy 

 
  Yes 

  No    
 

Please outline any suggestions below 
The general principles around acknowledging that drug and drug related issues The general principles around acknowledging that drug and drug related issues The general principles around acknowledging that drug and drug related issues The general principles around acknowledging that drug and drug related issues 
need to be tackled in conjunction with many other policy areas are welcomed.  need to be tackled in conjunction with many other policy areas are welcomed.  need to be tackled in conjunction with many other policy areas are welcomed.  need to be tackled in conjunction with many other policy areas are welcomed.  
RecognitRecognitRecognitRecognition of the very close relationship between alcohol use and illegal and ion of the very close relationship between alcohol use and illegal and ion of the very close relationship between alcohol use and illegal and ion of the very close relationship between alcohol use and illegal and 
legal drugs is particularly welcomed. A fully integrated substance misuse strategy legal drugs is particularly welcomed. A fully integrated substance misuse strategy legal drugs is particularly welcomed. A fully integrated substance misuse strategy legal drugs is particularly welcomed. A fully integrated substance misuse strategy 
makes sense at a national and local level  makes sense at a national and local level  makes sense at a national and local level  makes sense at a national and local level      Approaches to reducing drug use and Approaches to reducing drug use and Approaches to reducing drug use and Approaches to reducing drug use and 
associated  harms shouassociated  harms shouassociated  harms shouassociated  harms should be based upon the best evidence and research ld be based upon the best evidence and research ld be based upon the best evidence and research ld be based upon the best evidence and research 
available.available.available.available.    Drugs Drugs Drugs Drugs should be categorised in terms of the actual /physical/emotional should be categorised in terms of the actual /physical/emotional should be categorised in terms of the actual /physical/emotional should be categorised in terms of the actual /physical/emotional 
harm they causeharm they causeharm they causeharm they cause. . . .     It would be helpful if the strategy took more of a public health It would be helpful if the strategy took more of a public health It would be helpful if the strategy took more of a public health It would be helpful if the strategy took more of a public health 
stance and aimed to stance and aimed to stance and aimed to stance and aimed to reduce healthreduce healthreduce healthreduce health inequalitinequalitinequalitinequalities/life chances that arise ies/life chances that arise ies/life chances that arise ies/life chances that arise as a result as a result as a result as a result 
ofofofof substance substance substance substance mis mis mis misuse.use.use.use.    
 

 

 
� Greater ambition for individual recovery whilst ensuring the crime reduction 

impact of treatment. 

� Actions to tackle drugs should be part of building the “Big Society”.  

� A more holistic approach, with drugs issues being assessed and tackled 
alongside other issues such as alcohol abuse, child protection, mental health, 
employment and housing. 

� Budgets and responsibility devolved wherever possible, with commissioning of 
services at a local level. 

� Budgets and funding streams simplified and outcome based.  

� The financial costs of drug misuse reduced. 

� None of them 

 
 
All of the above areas have merit.  It is important that we are ambitious in terms All of the above areas have merit.  It is important that we are ambitious in terms All of the above areas have merit.  It is important that we are ambitious in terms All of the above areas have merit.  It is important that we are ambitious in terms 
of the outcomes for those who have experienced drug prof the outcomes for those who have experienced drug prof the outcomes for those who have experienced drug prof the outcomes for those who have experienced drug problems. We should also oblems. We should also oblems. We should also oblems. We should also 
be ambitious in terms of the outcomes for their families and communities.  be ambitious in terms of the outcomes for their families and communities.  be ambitious in terms of the outcomes for their families and communities.  be ambitious in terms of the outcomes for their families and communities.      

Page 41



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 4 

    
The role of the voluntary sector and the public in responding to drug problems is The role of the voluntary sector and the public in responding to drug problems is The role of the voluntary sector and the public in responding to drug problems is The role of the voluntary sector and the public in responding to drug problems is 
critical. More work needs to be done to help support understanding of the critical. More work needs to be done to help support understanding of the critical. More work needs to be done to help support understanding of the critical. More work needs to be done to help support understanding of the 
realities of substance use and promote awareness of what can be done and realities of substance use and promote awareness of what can be done and realities of substance use and promote awareness of what can be done and realities of substance use and promote awareness of what can be done and 
where help is available. This requires there to be a mechanism to allow ready where help is available. This requires there to be a mechanism to allow ready where help is available. This requires there to be a mechanism to allow ready where help is available. This requires there to be a mechanism to allow ready 
access to evaluated, good quality advice on a range of substance use issues.access to evaluated, good quality advice on a range of substance use issues.access to evaluated, good quality advice on a range of substance use issues.access to evaluated, good quality advice on a range of substance use issues.    
    
Clearly local areas and locClearly local areas and locClearly local areas and locClearly local areas and local partnerships are better placed than central al partnerships are better placed than central al partnerships are better placed than central al partnerships are better placed than central 
government to identify and respond to local issues. We would agree that there government to identify and respond to local issues. We would agree that there government to identify and respond to local issues. We would agree that there government to identify and respond to local issues. We would agree that there 
has been too much emphasis on central targets and a burdensome weight of has been too much emphasis on central targets and a burdensome weight of has been too much emphasis on central targets and a burdensome weight of has been too much emphasis on central targets and a burdensome weight of 
bureaucracy.  However, it needs to be acknowledged that cebureaucracy.  However, it needs to be acknowledged that cebureaucracy.  However, it needs to be acknowledged that cebureaucracy.  However, it needs to be acknowledged that certain highly rtain highly rtain highly rtain highly 
specialist areas may benefit from systems that promote regional or sub regional specialist areas may benefit from systems that promote regional or sub regional specialist areas may benefit from systems that promote regional or sub regional specialist areas may benefit from systems that promote regional or sub regional 
collaboration. Substance misuse cannot be allowed to fall off local agendas; this collaboration. Substance misuse cannot be allowed to fall off local agendas; this collaboration. Substance misuse cannot be allowed to fall off local agendas; this collaboration. Substance misuse cannot be allowed to fall off local agendas; this 
does not require a vast apparatus but will need consistent and positive support.does not require a vast apparatus but will need consistent and positive support.does not require a vast apparatus but will need consistent and positive support.does not require a vast apparatus but will need consistent and positive support.    
    
The simplification of budgets and funding streams is to be welcomed. We would The simplification of budgets and funding streams is to be welcomed. We would The simplification of budgets and funding streams is to be welcomed. We would The simplification of budgets and funding streams is to be welcomed. We would 
ask that budgets are made as dependable and reliable as possible. Previous ask that budgets are made as dependable and reliable as possible. Previous ask that budgets are made as dependable and reliable as possible. Previous ask that budgets are made as dependable and reliable as possible. Previous 
experience demonstrates that fluctuations in budgets and uncertainty of future experience demonstrates that fluctuations in budgets and uncertainty of future experience demonstrates that fluctuations in budgets and uncertainty of future experience demonstrates that fluctuations in budgets and uncertainty of future 
funding renders efficiefunding renders efficiefunding renders efficiefunding renders efficient planning impossible and results in less than optimum nt planning impossible and results in less than optimum nt planning impossible and results in less than optimum nt planning impossible and results in less than optimum 
returns on investment.  The move toward outcome targets is a positive one. returns on investment.  The move toward outcome targets is a positive one. returns on investment.  The move toward outcome targets is a positive one. returns on investment.  The move toward outcome targets is a positive one. 
However, we do need to bear in mind that some areas of work benefit from However, we do need to bear in mind that some areas of work benefit from However, we do need to bear in mind that some areas of work benefit from However, we do need to bear in mind that some areas of work benefit from 
innovation and its important to ensure that any outcinnovation and its important to ensure that any outcinnovation and its important to ensure that any outcinnovation and its important to ensure that any outcome based system does not ome based system does not ome based system does not ome based system does not 
stifle the development of new approaches (which maybe postifle the development of new approaches (which maybe postifle the development of new approaches (which maybe postifle the development of new approaches (which maybe potentially more cost tentially more cost tentially more cost tentially more cost 
effective).effective).effective).effective).    
    
    

 

 
 The experience of the Communities Against Drugs initiative was positive in its The experience of the Communities Against Drugs initiative was positive in its The experience of the Communities Against Drugs initiative was positive in its The experience of the Communities Against Drugs initiative was positive in its 
ability to galvanise local activity ability to galvanise local activity ability to galvanise local activity ability to galvanise local activity –––– and indeed helped p and indeed helped p and indeed helped p and indeed helped promote activity that would romote activity that would romote activity that would romote activity that would 
seem to fall within the Big Society agenda. CAD enabled DAATs to work with seem to fall within the Big Society agenda. CAD enabled DAATs to work with seem to fall within the Big Society agenda. CAD enabled DAATs to work with seem to fall within the Big Society agenda. CAD enabled DAATs to work with 
communities at a very local level in both identifying and finding solutions to communities at a very local level in both identifying and finding solutions to communities at a very local level in both identifying and finding solutions to communities at a very local level in both identifying and finding solutions to 
localised drug problems. localised drug problems. localised drug problems. localised drug problems.     
    
The establishment of local partnerships has beenThe establishment of local partnerships has beenThe establishment of local partnerships has beenThe establishment of local partnerships has been positive and been central to the  positive and been central to the  positive and been central to the  positive and been central to the 
gains that have been made in the last 15 years. It has enabled DAAT Strategy gains that have been made in the last 15 years. It has enabled DAAT Strategy gains that have been made in the last 15 years. It has enabled DAAT Strategy gains that have been made in the last 15 years. It has enabled DAAT Strategy 
Managers and commissioners to be supported in this Managers and commissioners to be supported in this Managers and commissioners to be supported in this Managers and commissioners to be supported in this challengingchallengingchallengingchallenging area of  work  area of  work  area of  work  area of  work 
and remove blockages.and remove blockages.and remove blockages.and remove blockages. While concerns may still remain about aspects  While concerns may still remain about aspects  While concerns may still remain about aspects  While concerns may still remain about aspects of of of of 
commissioning there is no disputing that it has improved from the very low level commissioning there is no disputing that it has improved from the very low level commissioning there is no disputing that it has improved from the very low level commissioning there is no disputing that it has improved from the very low level 
of the 1990’s.  There has likewise been improvement in terms of a larger and of the 1990’s.  There has likewise been improvement in terms of a larger and of the 1990’s.  There has likewise been improvement in terms of a larger and of the 1990’s.  There has likewise been improvement in terms of a larger and 
more skilled workforce.  Models of Care and Treatment Outcome Profiles have more skilled workforce.  Models of Care and Treatment Outcome Profiles have more skilled workforce.  Models of Care and Treatment Outcome Profiles have more skilled workforce.  Models of Care and Treatment Outcome Profiles have 
represented step chrepresented step chrepresented step chrepresented step changes in service delivery.anges in service delivery.anges in service delivery.anges in service delivery. In particular MOC and MOCAM gave  In particular MOC and MOCAM gave  In particular MOC and MOCAM gave  In particular MOC and MOCAM gave 
commissioners/service users and providers a sense of what commissioners/service users and providers a sense of what commissioners/service users and providers a sense of what commissioners/service users and providers a sense of what should be available should be available should be available should be available 
at a local level in terms of at a local level in terms of at a local level in terms of at a local level in terms of drug and alcohol drug and alcohol drug and alcohol drug and alcohol provision.  provision.  provision.  provision.  While the impacts of While the impacts of While the impacts of While the impacts of 
narrowly ring fenced budgets may not alnarrowly ring fenced budgets may not alnarrowly ring fenced budgets may not alnarrowly ring fenced budgets may not always be positive, certainly in terms of ways be positive, certainly in terms of ways be positive, certainly in terms of ways be positive, certainly in terms of 
building robust local partnerships there is no doubt that dedicated resources building robust local partnerships there is no doubt that dedicated resources building robust local partnerships there is no doubt that dedicated resources building robust local partnerships there is no doubt that dedicated resources 
targeted at drug use have ensured improvements which would otherwise have targeted at drug use have ensured improvements which would otherwise have targeted at drug use have ensured improvements which would otherwise have targeted at drug use have ensured improvements which would otherwise have 
been in doubt .been in doubt .been in doubt .been in doubt .    

Page 42



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 5 

    
Without disputing the scope for improvement it Without disputing the scope for improvement it Without disputing the scope for improvement it Without disputing the scope for improvement it is vital to acknowledge that great is vital to acknowledge that great is vital to acknowledge that great is vital to acknowledge that great 
strides have been made in tackling drug issues since the 1990’s. While seeking strides have been made in tackling drug issues since the 1990’s. While seeking strides have been made in tackling drug issues since the 1990’s. While seeking strides have been made in tackling drug issues since the 1990’s. While seeking 
to build on this progress we should ensure we do not lose these gains.to build on this progress we should ensure we do not lose these gains.to build on this progress we should ensure we do not lose these gains.to build on this progress we should ensure we do not lose these gains.    
.  

. 

 
    
    
There has been an over emphasis on the link between drug misuThere has been an over emphasis on the link between drug misuThere has been an over emphasis on the link between drug misuThere has been an over emphasis on the link between drug misuse and offending se and offending se and offending se and offending 
to the detriment of wider public health issues to the detriment of wider public health issues to the detriment of wider public health issues to the detriment of wider public health issues ––––    e.g.e.g.e.g.e.g. the spread of hepatitis C. The  the spread of hepatitis C. The  the spread of hepatitis C. The  the spread of hepatitis C. The 
Home Office lead for the Drug Strategy may  not have helped in this matter. Home Office lead for the Drug Strategy may  not have helped in this matter. Home Office lead for the Drug Strategy may  not have helped in this matter. Home Office lead for the Drug Strategy may  not have helped in this matter.     
    
Previous approaches have tended to not promote the work relating to alcohol Previous approaches have tended to not promote the work relating to alcohol Previous approaches have tended to not promote the work relating to alcohol Previous approaches have tended to not promote the work relating to alcohol 
issues or mental health and broader health and wellbeing priorities. At a local issues or mental health and broader health and wellbeing priorities. At a local issues or mental health and broader health and wellbeing priorities. At a local issues or mental health and broader health and wellbeing priorities. At a local 
level for example the drugs agenda is tied into the CDRP, whilst alcohol feeds level for example the drugs agenda is tied into the CDRP, whilst alcohol feeds level for example the drugs agenda is tied into the CDRP, whilst alcohol feeds level for example the drugs agenda is tied into the CDRP, whilst alcohol feeds 
into the Wellbeing Board. Arguably substance misuse work would should sit into the Wellbeing Board. Arguably substance misuse work would should sit into the Wellbeing Board. Arguably substance misuse work would should sit into the Wellbeing Board. Arguably substance misuse work would should sit 
within the within the within the within the wellbeing/hewellbeing/hewellbeing/hewellbeing/health improvement  arena at a national and local level. alth improvement  arena at a national and local level. alth improvement  arena at a national and local level. alth improvement  arena at a national and local level.     
    
There was insufficient focus on scientific and research evidence and the issues There was insufficient focus on scientific and research evidence and the issues There was insufficient focus on scientific and research evidence and the issues There was insufficient focus on scientific and research evidence and the issues 
relating to the ACMD and the media coverage of such was unhelpful.relating to the ACMD and the media coverage of such was unhelpful.relating to the ACMD and the media coverage of such was unhelpful.relating to the ACMD and the media coverage of such was unhelpful.    
    
TTTThere has been a lack of consistent “championing” ohere has been a lack of consistent “championing” ohere has been a lack of consistent “championing” ohere has been a lack of consistent “championing” of drug issues centrally.  This f drug issues centrally.  This f drug issues centrally.  This f drug issues centrally.  This 
is an area which needs to be constantly promoted in terms of the benefits it is an area which needs to be constantly promoted in terms of the benefits it is an area which needs to be constantly promoted in terms of the benefits it is an area which needs to be constantly promoted in terms of the benefits it 
brings across a broad range of policy.brings across a broad range of policy.brings across a broad range of policy.brings across a broad range of policy.    
    
The concentration on outputs rather than outcomes was The concentration on outputs rather than outcomes was The concentration on outputs rather than outcomes was The concentration on outputs rather than outcomes was also a problem as was also a problem as was also a problem as was also a problem as was 
the narrow focus on treatment anthe narrow focus on treatment anthe narrow focus on treatment anthe narrow focus on treatment and narrow definitions of what constituted drug d narrow definitions of what constituted drug d narrow definitions of what constituted drug d narrow definitions of what constituted drug 
treatment and therefore what got ‘counted’. Microtreatment and therefore what got ‘counted’. Microtreatment and therefore what got ‘counted’. Microtreatment and therefore what got ‘counted’. Micro----management from the centre management from the centre management from the centre management from the centre 
stifled creativity and made it difficult to commission against real local need e.g. stifled creativity and made it difficult to commission against real local need e.g. stifled creativity and made it difficult to commission against real local need e.g. stifled creativity and made it difficult to commission against real local need e.g. 
beyond class A drug userbeyond class A drug userbeyond class A drug userbeyond class A drug users. Having no dedicated mos. Having no dedicated mos. Having no dedicated mos. Having no dedicated money forney forney forney for alcohol has also been  alcohol has also been  alcohol has also been  alcohol has also been 
problematic. In summary we would like to see drug/alcohol policy linked into problematic. In summary we would like to see drug/alcohol policy linked into problematic. In summary we would like to see drug/alcohol policy linked into problematic. In summary we would like to see drug/alcohol policy linked into 
other cross cutting policy areas at the centre and locally. other cross cutting policy areas at the centre and locally. other cross cutting policy areas at the centre and locally. other cross cutting policy areas at the centre and locally.  

    

Page 43



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 6 

Prevent drug use – Department for Education lead 

 

As with many areas of health inequAs with many areas of health inequAs with many areas of health inequAs with many areas of health inequalities it is impossible to ignore the added alities it is impossible to ignore the added alities it is impossible to ignore the added alities it is impossible to ignore the added 
risks associated with poverty in relationship to drug and alcohol misuse.  Work to risks associated with poverty in relationship to drug and alcohol misuse.  Work to risks associated with poverty in relationship to drug and alcohol misuse.  Work to risks associated with poverty in relationship to drug and alcohol misuse.  Work to 
tackle poverty and address entrenched inequality will contribute significantly to tackle poverty and address entrenched inequality will contribute significantly to tackle poverty and address entrenched inequality will contribute significantly to tackle poverty and address entrenched inequality will contribute significantly to 
reducing problem use. Likewise drug and alcohoreducing problem use. Likewise drug and alcohoreducing problem use. Likewise drug and alcohoreducing problem use. Likewise drug and alcohol related work are essential l related work are essential l related work are essential l related work are essential 
components in reducing poverty, inequality and promoting regeneration.  components in reducing poverty, inequality and promoting regeneration.  components in reducing poverty, inequality and promoting regeneration.  components in reducing poverty, inequality and promoting regeneration.      
    
Evidence clearly indicates the importance and benefits of a good school and Evidence clearly indicates the importance and benefits of a good school and Evidence clearly indicates the importance and benefits of a good school and Evidence clearly indicates the importance and benefits of a good school and 
educational experience.  Likewise the importance of keeping children within teducational experience.  Likewise the importance of keeping children within teducational experience.  Likewise the importance of keeping children within teducational experience.  Likewise the importance of keeping children within the he he he 
school system. Therefore a major priority should be the prevention of individuals school system. Therefore a major priority should be the prevention of individuals school system. Therefore a major priority should be the prevention of individuals school system. Therefore a major priority should be the prevention of individuals 
droppingdroppingdroppingdropping out of school.   Schools should be supported to develop good pastoral  out of school.   Schools should be supported to develop good pastoral  out of school.   Schools should be supported to develop good pastoral  out of school.   Schools should be supported to develop good pastoral 
care.  The decision not to proceed with a compulsory PSHE curriculum does care.  The decision not to proceed with a compulsory PSHE curriculum does care.  The decision not to proceed with a compulsory PSHE curriculum does care.  The decision not to proceed with a compulsory PSHE curriculum does 
highlight a key ishighlight a key ishighlight a key ishighlight a key issue.  We have a duty to educate young people about the sue.  We have a duty to educate young people about the sue.  We have a duty to educate young people about the sue.  We have a duty to educate young people about the 
substances and risks associated they will face in society, we also need to assist substances and risks associated they will face in society, we also need to assist substances and risks associated they will face in society, we also need to assist substances and risks associated they will face in society, we also need to assist 
in developing  young peoples sense of social responsibility and their ability to in developing  young peoples sense of social responsibility and their ability to in developing  young peoples sense of social responsibility and their ability to in developing  young peoples sense of social responsibility and their ability to 
make informed decisions in complex sitmake informed decisions in complex sitmake informed decisions in complex sitmake informed decisions in complex situations. There is a clear read across to uations. There is a clear read across to uations. There is a clear read across to uations. There is a clear read across to 
issues of under age pregnancy, sexual health as well as tobacco and diet.  issues of under age pregnancy, sexual health as well as tobacco and diet.  issues of under age pregnancy, sexual health as well as tobacco and diet.  issues of under age pregnancy, sexual health as well as tobacco and diet.  
Progress has been made but again this is an area where there is a need for good Progress has been made but again this is an area where there is a need for good Progress has been made but again this is an area where there is a need for good Progress has been made but again this is an area where there is a need for good 
quality and accessible information to support professionals.quality and accessible information to support professionals.quality and accessible information to support professionals.quality and accessible information to support professionals.  Also steps should be   Also steps should be   Also steps should be   Also steps should be 
taken to improve the training of teachers (and other professionals) to enhance taken to improve the training of teachers (and other professionals) to enhance taken to improve the training of teachers (and other professionals) to enhance taken to improve the training of teachers (and other professionals) to enhance 
their capability around responding to substance use issues.their capability around responding to substance use issues.their capability around responding to substance use issues.their capability around responding to substance use issues.    
  
Building upon the Every Child Matters agenda and supporting Children’s Services Building upon the Every Child Matters agenda and supporting Children’s Services Building upon the Every Child Matters agenda and supporting Children’s Services Building upon the Every Child Matters agenda and supporting Children’s Services 
can make an can make an can make an can make an important contribution to reducing substance misuse.  It is surely important contribution to reducing substance misuse.  It is surely important contribution to reducing substance misuse.  It is surely important contribution to reducing substance misuse.  It is surely 
wrong that it is possible to identify multiple risk factors in young people as wrong that it is possible to identify multiple risk factors in young people as wrong that it is possible to identify multiple risk factors in young people as wrong that it is possible to identify multiple risk factors in young people as 
regards substance misuse (as well as other harms) without putting in place regards substance misuse (as well as other harms) without putting in place regards substance misuse (as well as other harms) without putting in place regards substance misuse (as well as other harms) without putting in place 
effective interventions. Specificaleffective interventions. Specificaleffective interventions. Specificaleffective interventions. Specifically our experience locally suggestsly our experience locally suggestsly our experience locally suggestsly our experience locally suggests the following  the following  the following  the following 
is effective:is effective:is effective:is effective:    
    

• Life skills drug education as part of a planned timeLife skills drug education as part of a planned timeLife skills drug education as part of a planned timeLife skills drug education as part of a planned time----tabled programme of tabled programme of tabled programme of tabled programme of 
Personal Social Health Economic education. Provided from Year One to Personal Social Health Economic education. Provided from Year One to Personal Social Health Economic education. Provided from Year One to Personal Social Health Economic education. Provided from Year One to 
Year 13 on a spiral curriculum. Drugs and alcohol Year 13 on a spiral curriculum. Drugs and alcohol Year 13 on a spiral curriculum. Drugs and alcohol Year 13 on a spiral curriculum. Drugs and alcohol education to include education to include education to include education to include 
tobacco and other legal drugs.tobacco and other legal drugs.tobacco and other legal drugs.tobacco and other legal drugs.    

• Specialist PSHEe teachers with onSpecialist PSHEe teachers with onSpecialist PSHEe teachers with onSpecialist PSHEe teachers with on----going professional development are going professional development are going professional development are going professional development are 
best placed to provide this education supported by specialist outside best placed to provide this education supported by specialist outside best placed to provide this education supported by specialist outside best placed to provide this education supported by specialist outside 
agencies, for example drug and alcohol treatment services, policeagencies, for example drug and alcohol treatment services, policeagencies, for example drug and alcohol treatment services, policeagencies, for example drug and alcohol treatment services, police service,  service,  service,  service, 
school nurses.school nurses.school nurses.school nurses.    

Page 44



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 7 

• Parental engagement, especially through schools, is important to ensure Parental engagement, especially through schools, is important to ensure Parental engagement, especially through schools, is important to ensure Parental engagement, especially through schools, is important to ensure 
information,  skills and attitudes are common and upinformation,  skills and attitudes are common and upinformation,  skills and attitudes are common and upinformation,  skills and attitudes are common and up----totototo----date.date.date.date.    

• Theatre in Education  and wellTheatre in Education  and wellTheatre in Education  and wellTheatre in Education  and well----supported near peer educators can also supported near peer educators can also supported near peer educators can also supported near peer educators can also 
play a positive role in redplay a positive role in redplay a positive role in redplay a positive role in reducing misuse and can also enrich and reinforce ucing misuse and can also enrich and reinforce ucing misuse and can also enrich and reinforce ucing misuse and can also enrich and reinforce 
key messages about harm and safety.key messages about harm and safety.key messages about harm and safety.key messages about harm and safety.    

• Models of drug education that seek to minimise harm and equip young Models of drug education that seek to minimise harm and equip young Models of drug education that seek to minimise harm and equip young Models of drug education that seek to minimise harm and equip young 
people with the skills and knowledge they need to make the right healthy people with the skills and knowledge they need to make the right healthy people with the skills and knowledge they need to make the right healthy people with the skills and knowledge they need to make the right healthy 
choices.choices.choices.choices.    

• Specialist support in sSpecialist support in sSpecialist support in sSpecialist support in schools /colleges including provision of counselling chools /colleges including provision of counselling chools /colleges including provision of counselling chools /colleges including provision of counselling 
and mentoring schemes.and mentoring schemes.and mentoring schemes.and mentoring schemes.    

• Early intervention programmes that provide advice and guidance to Early intervention programmes that provide advice and guidance to Early intervention programmes that provide advice and guidance to Early intervention programmes that provide advice and guidance to 
vulnerable and ‘at risk’ children and young people.vulnerable and ‘at risk’ children and young people.vulnerable and ‘at risk’ children and young people.vulnerable and ‘at risk’ children and young people.    

    
 

    

 
 
In relationship to this question (and B1) we feel it is In relationship to this question (and B1) we feel it is In relationship to this question (and B1) we feel it is In relationship to this question (and B1) we feel it is vital to define reductions in vital to define reductions in vital to define reductions in vital to define reductions in 
harm not merely in prevalence.  The harms that accrue to individuals and harm not merely in prevalence.  The harms that accrue to individuals and harm not merely in prevalence.  The harms that accrue to individuals and harm not merely in prevalence.  The harms that accrue to individuals and 
communities should be the priority for an effective strategy.communities should be the priority for an effective strategy.communities should be the priority for an effective strategy.communities should be the priority for an effective strategy.    
        
In terms of organisations Health and Wellbeing Boards should have a major role In terms of organisations Health and Wellbeing Boards should have a major role In terms of organisations Health and Wellbeing Boards should have a major role In terms of organisations Health and Wellbeing Boards should have a major role 
and there and there and there and there is a clear and vital role for local partnerships (DAATs) with a focus on is a clear and vital role for local partnerships (DAATs) with a focus on is a clear and vital role for local partnerships (DAATs) with a focus on is a clear and vital role for local partnerships (DAATs) with a focus on 
substance use who work with all appropriate partners. However, the real need is substance use who work with all appropriate partners. However, the real need is substance use who work with all appropriate partners. However, the real need is substance use who work with all appropriate partners. However, the real need is 
to embed the issues across all services and organisations who work with young to embed the issues across all services and organisations who work with young to embed the issues across all services and organisations who work with young to embed the issues across all services and organisations who work with young 
people and indeed beyond people and indeed beyond people and indeed beyond people and indeed beyond into those working with the community in general.  into those working with the community in general.  into those working with the community in general.  into those working with the community in general.      
    
We should also work to ensure that parents, carers, family members can readily We should also work to ensure that parents, carers, family members can readily We should also work to ensure that parents, carers, family members can readily We should also work to ensure that parents, carers, family members can readily 
access advice and information relating to substance use. In addition:access advice and information relating to substance use. In addition:access advice and information relating to substance use. In addition:access advice and information relating to substance use. In addition:    
 

• Schools/teachers and specialist support (drug/alcoholSchools/teachers and specialist support (drug/alcoholSchools/teachers and specialist support (drug/alcoholSchools/teachers and specialist support (drug/alcohol agencies, school  agencies, school  agencies, school  agencies, school 
nurses) have a key role to play in providing effective drug and alcohol nurses) have a key role to play in providing effective drug and alcohol nurses) have a key role to play in providing effective drug and alcohol nurses) have a key role to play in providing effective drug and alcohol 
education in a planned PSHEe curriculum, with prevention or  deferred use education in a planned PSHEe curriculum, with prevention or  deferred use education in a planned PSHEe curriculum, with prevention or  deferred use education in a planned PSHEe curriculum, with prevention or  deferred use 
as likely outcomesas likely outcomesas likely outcomesas likely outcomes    

• Family support services with staff having specialist knowledgeFamily support services with staff having specialist knowledgeFamily support services with staff having specialist knowledgeFamily support services with staff having specialist knowledge    

• Informed aInformed aInformed aInformed and confident familiesnd confident familiesnd confident familiesnd confident families    

• Integrated youth support organisationsIntegrated youth support organisationsIntegrated youth support organisationsIntegrated youth support organisations    

• FRANK or equivalent national drug/alcohol information service with public FRANK or equivalent national drug/alcohol information service with public FRANK or equivalent national drug/alcohol information service with public FRANK or equivalent national drug/alcohol information service with public 
advertising campaignsadvertising campaignsadvertising campaignsadvertising campaigns    

• National National National National phone linesphone linesphone linesphone lines e.g. Drinkline; Smoking Quitline e.g. Drinkline; Smoking Quitline e.g. Drinkline; Smoking Quitline e.g. Drinkline; Smoking Quitline    
 

 

 

Page 45



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 8 

There are a range of indicators which idThere are a range of indicators which idThere are a range of indicators which idThere are a range of indicators which identify those young people at particular entify those young people at particular entify those young people at particular entify those young people at particular 
risk and resources should be directed at these.   The ACMDs Pathways to risk and resources should be directed at these.   The ACMDs Pathways to risk and resources should be directed at these.   The ACMDs Pathways to risk and resources should be directed at these.   The ACMDs Pathways to 
Problems report provides clear indication of these factors. It is important that Problems report provides clear indication of these factors. It is important that Problems report provides clear indication of these factors. It is important that Problems report provides clear indication of these factors. It is important that 
services that deal with major traumas which may effect young peservices that deal with major traumas which may effect young peservices that deal with major traumas which may effect young peservices that deal with major traumas which may effect young people, e.g. sexual ople, e.g. sexual ople, e.g. sexual ople, e.g. sexual 
abuse, are linked to substance misuse responses.  Rather than focussing on abuse, are linked to substance misuse responses.  Rather than focussing on abuse, are linked to substance misuse responses.  Rather than focussing on abuse, are linked to substance misuse responses.  Rather than focussing on 
specific age groups (while acknowledging factors such as transition to secondary specific age groups (while acknowledging factors such as transition to secondary specific age groups (while acknowledging factors such as transition to secondary specific age groups (while acknowledging factors such as transition to secondary 
school) we should be seeking to ensure that all young people are aware of where school) we should be seeking to ensure that all young people are aware of where school) we should be seeking to ensure that all young people are aware of where school) we should be seeking to ensure that all young people are aware of where 
ththththey can get advice and where appropriate support.  ey can get advice and where appropriate support.  ey can get advice and where appropriate support.  ey can get advice and where appropriate support.      
In relationship to this question (and B1) it is vital to define reductions in harm not In relationship to this question (and B1) it is vital to define reductions in harm not In relationship to this question (and B1) it is vital to define reductions in harm not In relationship to this question (and B1) it is vital to define reductions in harm not 
merely in prevalence.  The harms that accrue to individuals and communities merely in prevalence.  The harms that accrue to individuals and communities merely in prevalence.  The harms that accrue to individuals and communities merely in prevalence.  The harms that accrue to individuals and communities 
should be the priority for an effective stshould be the priority for an effective stshould be the priority for an effective stshould be the priority for an effective strategy.rategy.rategy.rategy.    
    Specifically the following should be targeted:Specifically the following should be targeted:Specifically the following should be targeted:Specifically the following should be targeted:    

• Universal intervention through schools for all children and young peopleUniversal intervention through schools for all children and young peopleUniversal intervention through schools for all children and young peopleUniversal intervention through schools for all children and young people    

• Children in families of substance misusing parents/carersChildren in families of substance misusing parents/carersChildren in families of substance misusing parents/carersChildren in families of substance misusing parents/carers    

• Looked After ChildrenLooked After ChildrenLooked After ChildrenLooked After Children    

• Young people excluded from schoolYoung people excluded from schoolYoung people excluded from schoolYoung people excluded from school    

• Teenage parenTeenage parenTeenage parenTeenage parentstststs    

• Young people and families with mental health problemsYoung people and families with mental health problemsYoung people and families with mental health problemsYoung people and families with mental health problems    

• Young tobacco smokersYoung tobacco smokersYoung tobacco smokersYoung tobacco smokers    

• Young people who are NEETSYoung people who are NEETSYoung people who are NEETSYoung people who are NEETS    

• Young people involved in the criminal justice systemYoung people involved in the criminal justice systemYoung people involved in the criminal justice systemYoung people involved in the criminal justice system    

 

 

 
  All drugs 
 

Please explain your view below 

 
As previously stated there should be an emphasiAs previously stated there should be an emphasiAs previously stated there should be an emphasiAs previously stated there should be an emphasis on harms.  However, it needs to s on harms.  However, it needs to s on harms.  However, it needs to s on harms.  However, it needs to 
be recognised that different drugs may cause different individuals, cohorts and be recognised that different drugs may cause different individuals, cohorts and be recognised that different drugs may cause different individuals, cohorts and be recognised that different drugs may cause different individuals, cohorts and 
communities different levels of harms. This will vary across the country. With the communities different levels of harms. This will vary across the country. With the communities different levels of harms. This will vary across the country. With the communities different levels of harms. This will vary across the country. With the 
development of a public health approach we need to balance development of a public health approach we need to balance development of a public health approach we need to balance development of a public health approach we need to balance work around whole work around whole work around whole work around whole 
populations (prevalence, which may of course reduce the pool from which populations (prevalence, which may of course reduce the pool from which populations (prevalence, which may of course reduce the pool from which populations (prevalence, which may of course reduce the pool from which 
individuals will go on to experience harms) against the acute needs of those with individuals will go on to experience harms) against the acute needs of those with individuals will go on to experience harms) against the acute needs of those with individuals will go on to experience harms) against the acute needs of those with 
drug problems, their families and communities.  We need to ensure that all drug problems, their families and communities.  We need to ensure that all drug problems, their families and communities.  We need to ensure that all drug problems, their families and communities.  We need to ensure that all 
substancesubstancesubstancesubstances are considered and that our systems and responses are reactive to s are considered and that our systems and responses are reactive to s are considered and that our systems and responses are reactive to s are considered and that our systems and responses are reactive to 
changes in terms of patterns of usechanges in terms of patterns of usechanges in terms of patterns of usechanges in terms of patterns of use. . . .  Universal education concerning the nature of  Universal education concerning the nature of  Universal education concerning the nature of  Universal education concerning the nature of 
all drugs, including alcohol and tobacco, legal and illegal,  is crucial to enabling all drugs, including alcohol and tobacco, legal and illegal,  is crucial to enabling all drugs, including alcohol and tobacco, legal and illegal,  is crucial to enabling all drugs, including alcohol and tobacco, legal and illegal,  is crucial to enabling 
young people to makeyoung people to makeyoung people to makeyoung people to make informed and healthy choices. The drugs that cause most  informed and healthy choices. The drugs that cause most  informed and healthy choices. The drugs that cause most  informed and healthy choices. The drugs that cause most 
harmharmharmharm————and heaviest cost to the health and criminal justice servicesand heaviest cost to the health and criminal justice servicesand heaviest cost to the health and criminal justice servicesand heaviest cost to the health and criminal justice services————are alcohol are alcohol are alcohol are alcohol 
and tobacco. Illegal drugs also cause great harm, but it is important not to create and tobacco. Illegal drugs also cause great harm, but it is important not to create and tobacco. Illegal drugs also cause great harm, but it is important not to create and tobacco. Illegal drugs also cause great harm, but it is important not to create 
double standards in the eyes of youndouble standards in the eyes of youndouble standards in the eyes of youndouble standards in the eyes of young people. Demystification of what drugs are, g people. Demystification of what drugs are, g people. Demystification of what drugs are, g people. Demystification of what drugs are, 
their relative harm, risks and legal status should be at the centre of education and their relative harm, risks and legal status should be at the centre of education and their relative harm, risks and legal status should be at the centre of education and their relative harm, risks and legal status should be at the centre of education and 
prevention programmes. The information provided about all drugs should be prevention programmes. The information provided about all drugs should be prevention programmes. The information provided about all drugs should be prevention programmes. The information provided about all drugs should be 
honest, up to date and accurate.honest, up to date and accurate.honest, up to date and accurate.honest, up to date and accurate.    
    

 

 

Page 46



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 9 

 
 

 
CommunitieCommunitieCommunitieCommunities need to be actively engaged. To be supported in identifying the s need to be actively engaged. To be supported in identifying the s need to be actively engaged. To be supported in identifying the s need to be actively engaged. To be supported in identifying the 
problems they face and then determine effective (and wherever possible evidence problems they face and then determine effective (and wherever possible evidence problems they face and then determine effective (and wherever possible evidence problems they face and then determine effective (and wherever possible evidence 
based) responses.  The experience of Communities Against Drugs did demonstrate based) responses.  The experience of Communities Against Drugs did demonstrate based) responses.  The experience of Communities Against Drugs did demonstrate based) responses.  The experience of Communities Against Drugs did demonstrate 
that relatively modest investmethat relatively modest investmethat relatively modest investmethat relatively modest investment could galvanise communities and achieve clear nt could galvanise communities and achieve clear nt could galvanise communities and achieve clear nt could galvanise communities and achieve clear 
benefits.benefits.benefits.benefits.    
 

 

 

 
There are a number of approaches being developed which show some promise There are a number of approaches being developed which show some promise There are a number of approaches being developed which show some promise There are a number of approaches being developed which show some promise ––––    
often around more positive engagement with the education process. More often around more positive engagement with the education process. More often around more positive engagement with the education process. More often around more positive engagement with the education process. More 
specialist provision needs to be targeted at specialist provision needs to be targeted at specialist provision needs to be targeted at specialist provision needs to be targeted at those known to be at highest risk (e.g. those known to be at highest risk (e.g. those known to be at highest risk (e.g. those known to be at highest risk (e.g. 
those within Pupil Referral Units or out of school).  Diversion activities are also those within Pupil Referral Units or out of school).  Diversion activities are also those within Pupil Referral Units or out of school).  Diversion activities are also those within Pupil Referral Units or out of school).  Diversion activities are also 
considered worthwhile, though we would flag that these should consist of more considered worthwhile, though we would flag that these should consist of more considered worthwhile, though we would flag that these should consist of more considered worthwhile, though we would flag that these should consist of more 
than just sport related programmes.  Outcomes for suchthan just sport related programmes.  Outcomes for suchthan just sport related programmes.  Outcomes for suchthan just sport related programmes.  Outcomes for such approaches need to look  approaches need to look  approaches need to look  approaches need to look 
at a range of positives, not merely drug prevalence ratesat a range of positives, not merely drug prevalence ratesat a range of positives, not merely drug prevalence ratesat a range of positives, not merely drug prevalence rates. 

• Haringey Drug Education Team trained over 500 teachers and helped Haringey Drug Education Team trained over 500 teachers and helped Haringey Drug Education Team trained over 500 teachers and helped Haringey Drug Education Team trained over 500 teachers and helped 
embed drug/alcohol education  in all school’s PSHEe curriculumembed drug/alcohol education  in all school’s PSHEe curriculumembed drug/alcohol education  in all school’s PSHEe curriculumembed drug/alcohol education  in all school’s PSHEe curriculum    

• Theatre in Education and other creative metTheatre in Education and other creative metTheatre in Education and other creative metTheatre in Education and other creative methods of active learninghods of active learninghods of active learninghods of active learning    

• Trained counsellors in schools Trained counsellors in schools Trained counsellors in schools Trained counsellors in schools     

• Specialist drug/alcohol advice workers for vulnerable young peopleSpecialist drug/alcohol advice workers for vulnerable young peopleSpecialist drug/alcohol advice workers for vulnerable young peopleSpecialist drug/alcohol advice workers for vulnerable young people    

• YouthYouthYouthYouth----friendly websites. For example,  Haringey has www.herbonline.infofriendly websites. For example,  Haringey has www.herbonline.infofriendly websites. For example,  Haringey has www.herbonline.infofriendly websites. For example,  Haringey has www.herbonline.info    

• Advertisements, posters, films and leaflets that young peopleAdvertisements, posters, films and leaflets that young peopleAdvertisements, posters, films and leaflets that young peopleAdvertisements, posters, films and leaflets that young people have helped  have helped  have helped  have helped 
design (Haringey has examples)design (Haringey has examples)design (Haringey has examples)design (Haringey has examples)    

• Peer educators (with ongoing support)Peer educators (with ongoing support)Peer educators (with ongoing support)Peer educators (with ongoing support)    
    

 

 

 
• Not being compulsory in schools, drug and alcohol education  provision can Not being compulsory in schools, drug and alcohol education  provision can Not being compulsory in schools, drug and alcohol education  provision can Not being compulsory in schools, drug and alcohol education  provision can 

be patchy and inadequately providedbe patchy and inadequately providedbe patchy and inadequately providedbe patchy and inadequately provided    

• Lack of time on curriculum and trained teaching staffLack of time on curriculum and trained teaching staffLack of time on curriculum and trained teaching staffLack of time on curriculum and trained teaching staff    

• PopPopPopPopular misconception, sustained by much of mass media, that alcohol and ular misconception, sustained by much of mass media, that alcohol and ular misconception, sustained by much of mass media, that alcohol and ular misconception, sustained by much of mass media, that alcohol and 
tobacco are not drugs or that they are not as dangerous or significant as tobacco are not drugs or that they are not as dangerous or significant as tobacco are not drugs or that they are not as dangerous or significant as tobacco are not drugs or that they are not as dangerous or significant as 
illegal drugsillegal drugsillegal drugsillegal drugs    

• Media scare stories and lack of balance in reporting drug/alcohol issuesMedia scare stories and lack of balance in reporting drug/alcohol issuesMedia scare stories and lack of balance in reporting drug/alcohol issuesMedia scare stories and lack of balance in reporting drug/alcohol issues    

• Lack of trained counselloLack of trained counselloLack of trained counselloLack of trained counsellors and other specialist staff in schools, colleges, rs and other specialist staff in schools, colleges, rs and other specialist staff in schools, colleges, rs and other specialist staff in schools, colleges, 
youth  and community centres to support vulnerable young peopleyouth  and community centres to support vulnerable young peopleyouth  and community centres to support vulnerable young peopleyouth  and community centres to support vulnerable young people    

• Adult doubleAdult doubleAdult doubleAdult double----standards, particularly over alcohol use/misuse and other standards, particularly over alcohol use/misuse and other standards, particularly over alcohol use/misuse and other standards, particularly over alcohol use/misuse and other 
drugsdrugsdrugsdrugs    

• Insufficient funding for drug/alcohol education and prevention Insufficient funding for drug/alcohol education and prevention Insufficient funding for drug/alcohol education and prevention Insufficient funding for drug/alcohol education and prevention programmes programmes programmes programmes 
and staffand staffand staffand staff    

Page 47



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 10 

 

 

Page 48



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 11 

Strengthen enforcement, criminal justice and legal framework – 
joint Home Office and Ministry of Justice lead 

 
Drug use becomes problematic when it impacts on the individuals own Drug use becomes problematic when it impacts on the individuals own Drug use becomes problematic when it impacts on the individuals own Drug use becomes problematic when it impacts on the individuals own 
health/wellbeing, health/wellbeing, health/wellbeing, health/wellbeing, their familytheir familytheir familytheir family, or , or , or , or     comes to the atcomes to the atcomes to the atcomes to the attention tention tention tention of the Criminal Justice of the Criminal Justice of the Criminal Justice of the Criminal Justice 
system,system,system,system, health  health  health  health or other public or other public or other public or other public servicesservicesservicesservices....  Some problems will be acute (e.g.  Some problems will be acute (e.g.  Some problems will be acute (e.g.  Some problems will be acute (e.g. 
overdose) others may be longer term or chronic (e.g. disengagement from overdose) others may be longer term or chronic (e.g. disengagement from overdose) others may be longer term or chronic (e.g. disengagement from overdose) others may be longer term or chronic (e.g. disengagement from 
school/work or long term liver damage).  The previous focus on criminal justschool/work or long term liver damage).  The previous focus on criminal justschool/work or long term liver damage).  The previous focus on criminal justschool/work or long term liver damage).  The previous focus on criminal justice ice ice ice 
related problematic use has left a gap that could be closed with a public health related problematic use has left a gap that could be closed with a public health related problematic use has left a gap that could be closed with a public health related problematic use has left a gap that could be closed with a public health 
focus focus focus focus –––– for example in relation to Blood Borne Viruses.     for example in relation to Blood Borne Viruses.     for example in relation to Blood Borne Viruses.     for example in relation to Blood Borne Viruses.        
 
 

 

 
We believe that a considerable amount of human and financial resource is We believe that a considerable amount of human and financial resource is We believe that a considerable amount of human and financial resource is We believe that a considerable amount of human and financial resource is 
wasted around the current level wasted around the current level wasted around the current level wasted around the current level of drug testing.of drug testing.of drug testing.of drug testing.    
We also believe that there is considerable scope to develop conditional We also believe that there is considerable scope to develop conditional We also believe that there is considerable scope to develop conditional We also believe that there is considerable scope to develop conditional 
cautioning.cautioning.cautioning.cautioning.    
There is a need to improve the filter process that separates those who are There is a need to improve the filter process that separates those who are There is a need to improve the filter process that separates those who are There is a need to improve the filter process that separates those who are 
arrested and have used substances (including alcohol) from those whose criminal arrested and have used substances (including alcohol) from those whose criminal arrested and have used substances (including alcohol) from those whose criminal arrested and have used substances (including alcohol) from those whose criminal 
activity is related to use that would benefit from treatment. Other interventions activity is related to use that would benefit from treatment. Other interventions activity is related to use that would benefit from treatment. Other interventions activity is related to use that would benefit from treatment. Other interventions 
need to be enhanced for this first groupneed to be enhanced for this first groupneed to be enhanced for this first groupneed to be enhanced for this first group.... 

• recognise the recognise the recognise the recognise the     inappropriateinappropriateinappropriateinappropriateness ofness ofness ofness of sending users to prison for breaching  sending users to prison for breaching  sending users to prison for breaching  sending users to prison for breaching 
an orderan orderan orderan order    

• there could be there could be there could be there could be better join up between the prisonsbetter join up between the prisonsbetter join up between the prisonsbetter join up between the prisons and community post  and community post  and community post  and community post 
release of prisonersrelease of prisonersrelease of prisonersrelease of prisoners    

• more investment in CARATSmore investment in CARATSmore investment in CARATSmore investment in CARATS    

• DIP is effective DIP is effective DIP is effective DIP is effective –––– however, could be even more effective if courts services  however, could be even more effective if courts services  however, could be even more effective if courts services  however, could be even more effective if courts services 
were better engaged in the processwere better engaged in the processwere better engaged in the processwere better engaged in the process. 

 

 
 No  
 
 

Please explain your views below 

Page 49



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 12 

As an overall approach the temporaAs an overall approach the temporaAs an overall approach the temporaAs an overall approach the temporary banning of substances is unhelpful and ry banning of substances is unhelpful and ry banning of substances is unhelpful and ry banning of substances is unhelpful and 
potentially puts people more at risk.  Dpotentially puts people more at risk.  Dpotentially puts people more at risk.  Dpotentially puts people more at risk.  Drugs are constantly evolving and any real rugs are constantly evolving and any real rugs are constantly evolving and any real rugs are constantly evolving and any real 
research research research research into the effects into the effects into the effects into the effects takes at least 18 months. More importantly banning takes at least 18 months. More importantly banning takes at least 18 months. More importantly banning takes at least 18 months. More importantly banning 
makes them more expensive and encourages further attempmakes them more expensive and encourages further attempmakes them more expensive and encourages further attempmakes them more expensive and encourages further attempts at creating similar ts at creating similar ts at creating similar ts at creating similar 
substancessubstancessubstancessubstances, , , , meaningmeaningmeaningmeaning the government  the government  the government  the government wouldwouldwouldwould effectively be chasing it tail trying to  effectively be chasing it tail trying to  effectively be chasing it tail trying to  effectively be chasing it tail trying to 
keep up with the new  drugs.keep up with the new  drugs.keep up with the new  drugs.keep up with the new  drugs. There needs to be enhanced systems to detect There needs to be enhanced systems to detect There needs to be enhanced systems to detect There needs to be enhanced systems to detect 
changes in trends/emerging drugs early. Currently we have a largely retrospecchanges in trends/emerging drugs early. Currently we have a largely retrospecchanges in trends/emerging drugs early. Currently we have a largely retrospecchanges in trends/emerging drugs early. Currently we have a largely retrospective tive tive tive 
and reactive approach.  Good analytical services should be able to help identify and reactive approach.  Good analytical services should be able to help identify and reactive approach.  Good analytical services should be able to help identify and reactive approach.  Good analytical services should be able to help identify 
emerging substances of most concern.  There is also a need to try and ensure that emerging substances of most concern.  There is also a need to try and ensure that emerging substances of most concern.  There is also a need to try and ensure that emerging substances of most concern.  There is also a need to try and ensure that 
the process of banning the process of banning the process of banning the process of banning –––– and associated media interest  and associated media interest  and associated media interest  and associated media interest –––– does not act as  does not act as  does not act as  does not act as 
advertising foradvertising foradvertising foradvertising for such products.  It seems likely that the developments around new  such products.  It seems likely that the developments around new  such products.  It seems likely that the developments around new  such products.  It seems likely that the developments around new 
substances in recent years will have a significant impact in drug use and drug substances in recent years will have a significant impact in drug use and drug substances in recent years will have a significant impact in drug use and drug substances in recent years will have a significant impact in drug use and drug 
markets and these should be monitored.markets and these should be monitored.markets and these should be monitored.markets and these should be monitored.    
 

 

 

 
There is scope to develop places of safety within the community (tThere is scope to develop places of safety within the community (tThere is scope to develop places of safety within the community (tThere is scope to develop places of safety within the community (these should be hese should be hese should be hese should be 
provided for both adults and young people).  Issues around stable and safe provided for both adults and young people).  Issues around stable and safe provided for both adults and young people).  Issues around stable and safe provided for both adults and young people).  Issues around stable and safe 
accommodation are important for those going through treatment, and only by accommodation are important for those going through treatment, and only by accommodation are important for those going through treatment, and only by accommodation are important for those going through treatment, and only by 
addressing accommodation issues can we maximise gains from investment in addressing accommodation issues can we maximise gains from investment in addressing accommodation issues can we maximise gains from investment in addressing accommodation issues can we maximise gains from investment in 
treatment.  Howevetreatment.  Howevetreatment.  Howevetreatment.  However, much could be achieved through use of tenancy support r, much could be achieved through use of tenancy support r, much could be achieved through use of tenancy support r, much could be achieved through use of tenancy support 
programmes etc.  The use of secure residential accommodation needs to be programmes etc.  The use of secure residential accommodation needs to be programmes etc.  The use of secure residential accommodation needs to be programmes etc.  The use of secure residential accommodation needs to be 
carefully considered.  More support for drug free wings within the existing secure carefully considered.  More support for drug free wings within the existing secure carefully considered.  More support for drug free wings within the existing secure carefully considered.  More support for drug free wings within the existing secure 
estate would be welcomed.estate would be welcomed.estate would be welcomed.estate would be welcomed.    

 

 

 
The short anThe short anThe short anThe short answer to this question is that enforcement appears not be working swer to this question is that enforcement appears not be working swer to this question is that enforcement appears not be working swer to this question is that enforcement appears not be working –––– if it was  if it was  if it was  if it was 
the price of drugs on the street would have gone down considerably the price of drugs on the street would have gone down considerably the price of drugs on the street would have gone down considerably the price of drugs on the street would have gone down considerably –––– this has not  this has not  this has not  this has not 
happened. Street level dealers are by definition often users themselves happened. Street level dealers are by definition often users themselves happened. Street level dealers are by definition often users themselves happened. Street level dealers are by definition often users themselves –––– the drugs trade  the drugs trade  the drugs trade  the drugs trade 

is inteis inteis inteis international and is often linked with other forms of crime. rnational and is often linked with other forms of crime. rnational and is often linked with other forms of crime. rnational and is often linked with other forms of crime. There needs to be There needs to be There needs to be There needs to be 
greater efforts at an international level. In terms of communities street level greater efforts at an international level. In terms of communities street level greater efforts at an international level. In terms of communities street level greater efforts at an international level. In terms of communities street level 
issues are a priority and while allowing for issues are a priority and while allowing for issues are a priority and while allowing for issues are a priority and while allowing for the realities of drug market the realities of drug market the realities of drug market the realities of drug market 
displacement tackling open displacement tackling open displacement tackling open displacement tackling open and nuisance creating drug markets must remain a and nuisance creating drug markets must remain a and nuisance creating drug markets must remain a and nuisance creating drug markets must remain a 
police prioritypolice prioritypolice prioritypolice priority 

 

 

Page 50



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 13 

PolicePolicePolicePolice could  could  could  could liaiseliaiseliaiseliaise with their local drug  with their local drug  with their local drug  with their local drug actionactionactionaction team who  team who  team who  team who oftenoftenoftenoften have  have  have  have intelligenceintelligenceintelligenceintelligence    
about new drugs coming onto the market from the drug serviceabout new drugs coming onto the market from the drug serviceabout new drugs coming onto the market from the drug serviceabout new drugs coming onto the market from the drug service providers they  providers they  providers they  providers they 
commission. commission. commission. commission. .... There would be There would be There would be There would be clear benefit in developing an early warning system clear benefit in developing an early warning system clear benefit in developing an early warning system clear benefit in developing an early warning system 
(this would also have public health benefits).  As with other professionals those (this would also have public health benefits).  As with other professionals those (this would also have public health benefits).  As with other professionals those (this would also have public health benefits).  As with other professionals those 
engaged with enforcement would benefit from enhanced training around this engaged with enforcement would benefit from enhanced training around this engaged with enforcement would benefit from enhanced training around this engaged with enforcement would benefit from enhanced training around this 
issue.issue.issue.issue.    

 
    

 

 

 
We would welcome a scheme similarWe would welcome a scheme similarWe would welcome a scheme similarWe would welcome a scheme similar to Communities Against Drugs to help  to Communities Against Drugs to help  to Communities Against Drugs to help  to Communities Against Drugs to help 
engage the voluntary and community sectors. Modest investment here could engage the voluntary and community sectors. Modest investment here could engage the voluntary and community sectors. Modest investment here could engage the voluntary and community sectors. Modest investment here could 
deliver significant gains.  Work to support the engagement of those working deliver significant gains.  Work to support the engagement of those working deliver significant gains.  Work to support the engagement of those working deliver significant gains.  Work to support the engagement of those working 
across the broad social policy framework (housing, social services, eacross the broad social policy framework (housing, social services, eacross the broad social policy framework (housing, social services, eacross the broad social policy framework (housing, social services, education, ducation, ducation, ducation, 
employment) is essential.  Improvements would be welcomed around liaison with employment) is essential.  Improvements would be welcomed around liaison with employment) is essential.  Improvements would be welcomed around liaison with employment) is essential.  Improvements would be welcomed around liaison with 
those involved in offender managementthose involved in offender managementthose involved in offender managementthose involved in offender management. Key partners would be the Police, Job . Key partners would be the Police, Job . Key partners would be the Police, Job . Key partners would be the Police, Job 
centre Plus, the community centre Plus, the community centre Plus, the community centre Plus, the community including ex users, Probation, Hincluding ex users, Probation, Hincluding ex users, Probation, Hincluding ex users, Probation, Housing, the DAAT, and ousing, the DAAT, and ousing, the DAAT, and ousing, the DAAT, and 
SupportingSupportingSupportingSupporting People. People. People. People.    

 

 
There is no in principle objection to rewarding positive outcomes. However, it There is no in principle objection to rewarding positive outcomes. However, it There is no in principle objection to rewarding positive outcomes. However, it There is no in principle objection to rewarding positive outcomes. However, it 
needs to be acknowledged that simplistic outcome targets can potentially needs to be acknowledged that simplistic outcome targets can potentially needs to be acknowledged that simplistic outcome targets can potentially needs to be acknowledged that simplistic outcome targets can potentially 
penalise those delivering effective services. There is also a very wide spectrum of penalise those delivering effective services. There is also a very wide spectrum of penalise those delivering effective services. There is also a very wide spectrum of penalise those delivering effective services. There is also a very wide spectrum of 
individindividindividindividuals to be worked with and many external factors (e.g. employment ) that uals to be worked with and many external factors (e.g. employment ) that uals to be worked with and many external factors (e.g. employment ) that uals to be worked with and many external factors (e.g. employment ) that 
are beyond services control.  Work could be developed on a basket of indicators, are beyond services control.  Work could be developed on a basket of indicators, are beyond services control.  Work could be developed on a basket of indicators, are beyond services control.  Work could be developed on a basket of indicators, 
including health (e.g. entry into Hep C treatment) as well as training and social including health (e.g. entry into Hep C treatment) as well as training and social including health (e.g. entry into Hep C treatment) as well as training and social including health (e.g. entry into Hep C treatment) as well as training and social 
functioning outcomesfunctioning outcomesfunctioning outcomesfunctioning outcomes.  We would argue these need to be flexible and negotiated .  We would argue these need to be flexible and negotiated .  We would argue these need to be flexible and negotiated .  We would argue these need to be flexible and negotiated 
at a local level (albeit within a potential national framework).at a local level (albeit within a potential national framework).at a local level (albeit within a potential national framework).at a local level (albeit within a potential national framework).    

 
Many of the outcomes on Many of the outcomes on Many of the outcomes on Many of the outcomes on Treatment Outcome Treatment Outcome Treatment Outcome Treatment Outcome ProfileProfileProfileProfile    give a good indication of give a good indication of give a good indication of give a good indication of 
changes in behaviour and are about outcomes rather thanchanges in behaviour and are about outcomes rather thanchanges in behaviour and are about outcomes rather thanchanges in behaviour and are about outcomes rather than targets. However,  targets. However,  targets. However,  targets. However, 
some are inevitably more difficult to measure than others.some are inevitably more difficult to measure than others.some are inevitably more difficult to measure than others.some are inevitably more difficult to measure than others.    
Government should continue to fund a range of prevention and treatment Government should continue to fund a range of prevention and treatment Government should continue to fund a range of prevention and treatment Government should continue to fund a range of prevention and treatment 
interventions from lower level harm reduction services through to Tier 4 interventions from lower level harm reduction services through to Tier 4 interventions from lower level harm reduction services through to Tier 4 interventions from lower level harm reduction services through to Tier 4 
rehabilitation services.rehabilitation services.rehabilitation services.rehabilitation services.  

 

 

Page 51



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 14 

TherTherTherThere is already clear evidence of what helps reduce supply in prison.  Effective e is already clear evidence of what helps reduce supply in prison.  Effective e is already clear evidence of what helps reduce supply in prison.  Effective e is already clear evidence of what helps reduce supply in prison.  Effective 
use of staff (which requires adequate resources) and technology has been shown use of staff (which requires adequate resources) and technology has been shown use of staff (which requires adequate resources) and technology has been shown use of staff (which requires adequate resources) and technology has been shown 
to reduce supply significantly.  There is support for the development of drug free to reduce supply significantly.  There is support for the development of drug free to reduce supply significantly.  There is support for the development of drug free to reduce supply significantly.  There is support for the development of drug free 
wings wings wings wings –––– which ag which ag which ag which again require adequate support.  A particularly significant concern ain require adequate support.  A particularly significant concern ain require adequate support.  A particularly significant concern ain require adequate support.  A particularly significant concern 
around prison drug use is the associated health problems. Addressing these around prison drug use is the associated health problems. Addressing these around prison drug use is the associated health problems. Addressing these around prison drug use is the associated health problems. Addressing these 
should be a priorityshould be a priorityshould be a priorityshould be a priority. MMMMore activities in prisons making it less likely that drug ore activities in prisons making it less likely that drug ore activities in prisons making it less likely that drug ore activities in prisons making it less likely that drug 
markets would flourishmarkets would flourishmarkets would flourishmarkets would flourish 

 

 
a) ImproveImproveImproveImprove their health and so increase likelihood of successful reintegration. their health and so increase likelihood of successful reintegration. their health and so increase likelihood of successful reintegration. their health and so increase likelihood of successful reintegration. 
b)  The above would help reduce re The above would help reduce re The above would help reduce re The above would help reduce re----offending, save resources and improve offending, save resources and improve offending, save resources and improve offending, save resources and improve 

public health.public health.public health.public health.  

 

Page 52



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 15 

Rebalance treatment to support drug free outcomes – Department 
of Health lead 

 
 

 
Harm reduction sHarm reduction sHarm reduction sHarm reduction services are more generally available (though these would ervices are more generally available (though these would ervices are more generally available (though these would ervices are more generally available (though these would 
benefit from being greater valued for their public health gains and new benefit from being greater valued for their public health gains and new benefit from being greater valued for their public health gains and new benefit from being greater valued for their public health gains and new 
challenges require innovation).challenges require innovation).challenges require innovation).challenges require innovation).    

• Local commissioning frameworks based on sound needs assessmentLocal commissioning frameworks based on sound needs assessmentLocal commissioning frameworks based on sound needs assessmentLocal commissioning frameworks based on sound needs assessment    

• Models of careModels of careModels of careModels of care    

• User User User User involvementinvolvementinvolvementinvolvement    in the planning and commissioning processin the planning and commissioning processin the planning and commissioning processin the planning and commissioning process    

• outcome based commissioningoutcome based commissioningoutcome based commissioningoutcome based commissioning    

• DAAT PartnershipsDAAT PartnershipsDAAT PartnershipsDAAT Partnerships    

• Crack/stimulant specific servicesCrack/stimulant specific servicesCrack/stimulant specific servicesCrack/stimulant specific services    
• AccessibilityAccessibilityAccessibilityAccessibility 

 

 
 
Better support is required for mainstream services, much more could be Better support is required for mainstream services, much more could be Better support is required for mainstream services, much more could be Better support is required for mainstream services, much more could be 
achieved within primary care settings.achieved within primary care settings.achieved within primary care settings.achieved within primary care settings.    
ThereThereThereThere is a clear need to improve the linkages between drug services and those  is a clear need to improve the linkages between drug services and those  is a clear need to improve the linkages between drug services and those  is a clear need to improve the linkages between drug services and those 
working with alcohol and mental health.  The role of nonworking with alcohol and mental health.  The role of nonworking with alcohol and mental health.  The role of nonworking with alcohol and mental health.  The role of non----specialist services also specialist services also specialist services also specialist services also 
needs to be recognised.needs to be recognised.needs to be recognised.needs to be recognised.    
We should value the existing evidence base, seek to ensure it is implemented We should value the existing evidence base, seek to ensure it is implemented We should value the existing evidence base, seek to ensure it is implemented We should value the existing evidence base, seek to ensure it is implemented ––––    
but not at the expense of stifling innovation and look at new methods.  but not at the expense of stifling innovation and look at new methods.  but not at the expense of stifling innovation and look at new methods.  but not at the expense of stifling innovation and look at new methods.      
Greater local autonomy offers the opportunity of more tailored local responses Greater local autonomy offers the opportunity of more tailored local responses Greater local autonomy offers the opportunity of more tailored local responses Greater local autonomy offers the opportunity of more tailored local responses 
but treatment and recovery initiatives will benefit from central championing.but treatment and recovery initiatives will benefit from central championing.but treatment and recovery initiatives will benefit from central championing.but treatment and recovery initiatives will benefit from central championing.    
Looking at access we shoLooking at access we shoLooking at access we shoLooking at access we should seek to develop routes into advice and treatment uld seek to develop routes into advice and treatment uld seek to develop routes into advice and treatment uld seek to develop routes into advice and treatment 
which are low threshold to try and intervene prior to the development of more which are low threshold to try and intervene prior to the development of more which are low threshold to try and intervene prior to the development of more which are low threshold to try and intervene prior to the development of more 
acute problems. acute problems. acute problems. acute problems.     

• Integrated treatment systemIntegrated treatment systemIntegrated treatment systemIntegrated treatment system    

• MoreMoreMoreMore GP Prescribing and  GP Prescribing and  GP Prescribing and  GP Prescribing and involvementinvolvementinvolvementinvolvement    

• Education, training and employment opportuniEducation, training and employment opportuniEducation, training and employment opportuniEducation, training and employment opportunities ties ties ties –––– that are endorsed and  that are endorsed and  that are endorsed and  that are endorsed and 
supported by central and local governmentsupported by central and local governmentsupported by central and local governmentsupported by central and local government    

• more and wider range of accomodation for current and exmore and wider range of accomodation for current and exmore and wider range of accomodation for current and exmore and wider range of accomodation for current and ex----usersusersusersusers    

• funding for community care could be simplified (pooling of LA and NHS monies)funding for community care could be simplified (pooling of LA and NHS monies)funding for community care could be simplified (pooling of LA and NHS monies)funding for community care could be simplified (pooling of LA and NHS monies)    

• The recovery capital of users and their familThe recovery capital of users and their familThe recovery capital of users and their familThe recovery capital of users and their families needs investment. Start up ies needs investment. Start up ies needs investment. Start up ies needs investment. Start up 
funding to make personalisation real and available to exfunding to make personalisation real and available to exfunding to make personalisation real and available to exfunding to make personalisation real and available to ex----substance misusers.substance misusers.substance misusers.substance misusers.    

• Benefit system needs to facilitate gradual entry into the job market and to Benefit system needs to facilitate gradual entry into the job market and to Benefit system needs to facilitate gradual entry into the job market and to Benefit system needs to facilitate gradual entry into the job market and to 
acknowledge that volunteering etc is a valuableacknowledge that volunteering etc is a valuableacknowledge that volunteering etc is a valuableacknowledge that volunteering etc is a valuable 

 

 

Page 53



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 16 

Combined services Combined services Combined services Combined services cocococould uld uld uld work for polydrug use, counselling, recovery agenda, but work for polydrug use, counselling, recovery agenda, but work for polydrug use, counselling, recovery agenda, but work for polydrug use, counselling, recovery agenda, but 
separate  services mayseparate  services mayseparate  services mayseparate  services may    be needed for specific group work or work in GP settings., e.g. be needed for specific group work or work in GP settings., e.g. be needed for specific group work or work in GP settings., e.g. be needed for specific group work or work in GP settings., e.g. 
tranquillisers users often need a lot of ongoing intensive one to one support as well as tranquillisers users often need a lot of ongoing intensive one to one support as well as tranquillisers users often need a lot of ongoing intensive one to one support as well as tranquillisers users often need a lot of ongoing intensive one to one support as well as 
group work.  group work.  group work.  group work.  FeedbaFeedbaFeedbaFeedback from service users has sometimes favoured separck from service users has sometimes favoured separck from service users has sometimes favoured separck from service users has sometimes favoured separate drug and ate drug and ate drug and ate drug and 
alcohol services. Talcohol services. Talcohol services. Talcohol services. The main priority is that if we have combined services we must have he main priority is that if we have combined services we must have he main priority is that if we have combined services we must have he main priority is that if we have combined services we must have 
the necessary expertise and understanding of drug and alcohol issues within the staff the necessary expertise and understanding of drug and alcohol issues within the staff the necessary expertise and understanding of drug and alcohol issues within the staff the necessary expertise and understanding of drug and alcohol issues within the staff 
team. team. team. team.     

 

 
Yes 
 
 

Please explain your response below 
Yes Yes Yes Yes –––– cannabis, ketamine, khat and cocaine can be extremely problematic for  cannabis, ketamine, khat and cocaine can be extremely problematic for  cannabis, ketamine, khat and cocaine can be extremely problematic for  cannabis, ketamine, khat and cocaine can be extremely problematic for 
the individual user and theirthe individual user and theirthe individual user and theirthe individual user and their family both in terms family both in terms family both in terms family both in terms of mental and physical health.  of mental and physical health.  of mental and physical health.  of mental and physical health. 
Commissioners should be able to treat people based on their local nCommissioners should be able to treat people based on their local nCommissioners should be able to treat people based on their local nCommissioners should be able to treat people based on their local needs eeds eeds eeds 
assessmentassessmentassessmentassessment....    

 

 
  Yes 
 

Please explain your response below 
Not necessarily higher Not necessarily higher Not necessarily higher Not necessarily higher –––– more that treatment services should be able to treat and work  more that treatment services should be able to treat and work  more that treatment services should be able to treat and work  more that treatment services should be able to treat and work 
with anyone who cowith anyone who cowith anyone who cowith anyone who comes through their door for help with a substance misuse problem. mes through their door for help with a substance misuse problem. mes through their door for help with a substance misuse problem. mes through their door for help with a substance misuse problem.     
The previous strategy The previous strategy The previous strategy The previous strategy made this nigh on impossible with its focus on class Amade this nigh on impossible with its focus on class Amade this nigh on impossible with its focus on class Amade this nigh on impossible with its focus on class A drug users  drug users  drug users  drug users 
to the exclusion of other drugsto the exclusion of other drugsto the exclusion of other drugsto the exclusion of other drugs, including alcohol. , including alcohol. , including alcohol. , including alcohol.     

 

 
Substance misuse prevention should be a core part of public health/health Substance misuse prevention should be a core part of public health/health Substance misuse prevention should be a core part of public health/health Substance misuse prevention should be a core part of public health/health 
improvement activity. It could easily link in with other primprovement activity. It could easily link in with other primprovement activity. It could easily link in with other primprovement activity. It could easily link in with other preventative work e.g. eventative work e.g. eventative work e.g. eventative work e.g. 
cardiovascular disease/high blood pressure screening can and should be linked to cardiovascular disease/high blood pressure screening can and should be linked to cardiovascular disease/high blood pressure screening can and should be linked to cardiovascular disease/high blood pressure screening can and should be linked to 
alcohol screening/screening for stimulant use. Specifically this work should  be alcohol screening/screening for stimulant use. Specifically this work should  be alcohol screening/screening for stimulant use. Specifically this work should  be alcohol screening/screening for stimulant use. Specifically this work should  be 
linked to tackllinked to tackllinked to tackllinked to tackling health inequalities e.g. Haringey ing health inequalities e.g. Haringey ing health inequalities e.g. Haringey ing health inequalities e.g. Haringey  DAAT DAAT DAAT DAAT have recently  have recently  have recently  have recently worked  worked  worked  worked      
with with with with the the the the Somali community re prevention of TB within Mafrishes Somali community re prevention of TB within Mafrishes Somali community re prevention of TB within Mafrishes Somali community re prevention of TB within Mafrishes –––– where khat is  where khat is  where khat is  where khat is 
chewed and poor ventilation contributes to spchewed and poor ventilation contributes to spchewed and poor ventilation contributes to spchewed and poor ventilation contributes to sprrrreeeeaaaad of TB). Redd of TB). Redd of TB). Redd of TB). Reduuuucing cing cing cing TeenageTeenageTeenageTeenage    
pregnancy  and obesity can and should  be linked into drugs and alcohol work. pregnancy  and obesity can and should  be linked into drugs and alcohol work. pregnancy  and obesity can and should  be linked into drugs and alcohol work. pregnancy  and obesity can and should  be linked into drugs and alcohol work.     
Prevention of Prevention of Prevention of Prevention of blood borne viruses e.g. HIblood borne viruses e.g. HIblood borne viruses e.g. HIblood borne viruses e.g. HIV, Hep B and Hep C.V, Hep B and Hep C.V, Hep B and Hep C.V, Hep B and Hep C.    
Clean Clean Clean Clean waterwaterwaterwater    and injecting equipment. and injecting equipment. and injecting equipment. and injecting equipment.  

 

 

Page 54



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 17 

 
• Ensure Ensure Ensure Ensure  NVQ’s available through the Skills Council NVQ’s available through the Skills Council NVQ’s available through the Skills Council NVQ’s available through the Skills Council    

• Ensure evidence based research continues and offer free conferencesEnsure evidence based research continues and offer free conferencesEnsure evidence based research continues and offer free conferencesEnsure evidence based research continues and offer free conferences    
• Focus on drug and alcohol  should be part of GFocus on drug and alcohol  should be part of GFocus on drug and alcohol  should be part of GFocus on drug and alcohol  should be part of GP/other health and social P/other health and social P/other health and social P/other health and social 

care staff training not just specialist drug and alcohol workercare staff training not just specialist drug and alcohol workercare staff training not just specialist drug and alcohol workercare staff training not just specialist drug and alcohol workerssss 

 

 
Central government needs to ensure that all Whitehall departments who relate to Central government needs to ensure that all Whitehall departments who relate to Central government needs to ensure that all Whitehall departments who relate to Central government needs to ensure that all Whitehall departments who relate to 
policy around housing, employment and support of offenders work together. policy around housing, employment and support of offenders work together. policy around housing, employment and support of offenders work together. policy around housing, employment and support of offenders work together. 
PreviouPreviouPreviouPreviously agendas have often competed against each other and on occasion sly agendas have often competed against each other and on occasion sly agendas have often competed against each other and on occasion sly agendas have often competed against each other and on occasion 
actively discriminated against those working toward recovery/social actively discriminated against those working toward recovery/social actively discriminated against those working toward recovery/social actively discriminated against those working toward recovery/social 
reintegration. Championing the case that recovery and social reintegration is a reintegration. Championing the case that recovery and social reintegration is a reintegration. Championing the case that recovery and social reintegration is a reintegration. Championing the case that recovery and social reintegration is a 
reality and delivers real results for indreality and delivers real results for indreality and delivers real results for indreality and delivers real results for individuals, families and communities is ividuals, families and communities is ividuals, families and communities is ividuals, families and communities is 
essential.essential.essential.essential.    
GovernmentGovernmentGovernmentGovernment could could could could incentivise employers to  incentivise employers to  incentivise employers to  incentivise employers to take take take take on people with previous on people with previous on people with previous on people with previous 
offending/drug using history as there is often a great deal of offending/drug using history as there is often a great deal of offending/drug using history as there is often a great deal of offending/drug using history as there is often a great deal of prejudiceprejudiceprejudiceprejudice    regarding regarding regarding regarding 
this group. this group. this group. this group. ....A dedicated Work Placement Officer whoseA dedicated Work Placement Officer whoseA dedicated Work Placement Officer whoseA dedicated Work Placement Officer whose task it is to support the  task it is to support the  task it is to support the  task it is to support the 
employee and employer has proved helpful in Haringey employee and employer has proved helpful in Haringey employee and employer has proved helpful in Haringey employee and employer has proved helpful in Haringey  Funding for social  Funding for social  Funding for social  Funding for social 
enterprisesenterprisesenterprisesenterprises can also be helpful.  There needs to be a push from central  can also be helpful.  There needs to be a push from central  can also be helpful.  There needs to be a push from central  can also be helpful.  There needs to be a push from central 
government re housing government re housing government re housing government re housing of people with former substance misuse pof people with former substance misuse pof people with former substance misuse pof people with former substance misuse problems, as this roblems, as this roblems, as this roblems, as this 
is nois nois nois not something that can simply be tackled by the local Drug and Alcohol Action t something that can simply be tackled by the local Drug and Alcohol Action t something that can simply be tackled by the local Drug and Alcohol Action t something that can simply be tackled by the local Drug and Alcohol Action 
Team. Team. Team. Team.  Locally we have been fortunate in being able to redesign SP  Locally we have been fortunate in being able to redesign SP  Locally we have been fortunate in being able to redesign SP  Locally we have been fortunate in being able to redesign SP 
accommodation based support services to better meet the needs of people with accommodation based support services to better meet the needs of people with accommodation based support services to better meet the needs of people with accommodation based support services to better meet the needs of people with 
drug/alcohol and mental health probldrug/alcohol and mental health probldrug/alcohol and mental health probldrug/alcohol and mental health problems. However, unless there is move on ems. However, unless there is move on ems. However, unless there is move on ems. However, unless there is move on 
accommodation this scheme will quickly develop a waiting list.accommodation this scheme will quickly develop a waiting list.accommodation this scheme will quickly develop a waiting list.accommodation this scheme will quickly develop a waiting list.    

 

 

Essentially commissioners need to be held account by their local communities via Essentially commissioners need to be held account by their local communities via Essentially commissioners need to be held account by their local communities via Essentially commissioners need to be held account by their local communities via 
their local authorities (with their expanding remit into public healththeir local authorities (with their expanding remit into public healththeir local authorities (with their expanding remit into public healththeir local authorities (with their expanding remit into public health).  This can only ).  This can only ).  This can only ).  This can only 
be achieved by promoting a clear understanding of the scale of the problems be achieved by promoting a clear understanding of the scale of the problems be achieved by promoting a clear understanding of the scale of the problems be achieved by promoting a clear understanding of the scale of the problems 
faced, the links into related areas and an expectation of what effective faced, the links into related areas and an expectation of what effective faced, the links into related areas and an expectation of what effective faced, the links into related areas and an expectation of what effective 
interventions can provide.interventions can provide.interventions can provide.interventions can provide.    Targets should be agreed at a local level as each Targets should be agreed at a local level as each Targets should be agreed at a local level as each Targets should be agreed at a local level as each 
London borouLondon borouLondon borouLondon borough is different. The outcomes should be based on the findings of our gh is different. The outcomes should be based on the findings of our gh is different. The outcomes should be based on the findings of our gh is different. The outcomes should be based on the findings of our 
local needs assessment. In terms of accountability for the wider recovery agenda local needs assessment. In terms of accountability for the wider recovery agenda local needs assessment. In terms of accountability for the wider recovery agenda local needs assessment. In terms of accountability for the wider recovery agenda 
this cannot be solely the commissioners responsibility,  as stated above this cannot be solely the commissioners responsibility,  as stated above this cannot be solely the commissioners responsibility,  as stated above this cannot be solely the commissioners responsibility,  as stated above 

Page 55



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 18 

  

employees need to be incentivisedemployees need to be incentivisedemployees need to be incentivisedemployees need to be incentivised and we need more jobs and housing  and we need more jobs and housing  and we need more jobs and housing  and we need more jobs and housing ––––    
particularly in the current climate.particularly in the current climate.particularly in the current climate.particularly in the current climate.    

Page 56



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 19 

Support recovery to break the cycle of drug addiction – 
Department for Work and Pensions lead 

 
 Better pre Better pre Better pre Better pre----release planning should be developed. We welcome the recognition release planning should be developed. We welcome the recognition release planning should be developed. We welcome the recognition release planning should be developed. We welcome the recognition 
of thof thof thof the vital role of services beyond drug treatment. e vital role of services beyond drug treatment. e vital role of services beyond drug treatment. e vital role of services beyond drug treatment.     

 
• Properly funded carat teamsProperly funded carat teamsProperly funded carat teamsProperly funded carat teams    

• meet and greet teams meet and greet teams meet and greet teams meet and greet teams ––––        

• better join up between the prisons and community re release dates.better join up between the prisons and community re release dates.better join up between the prisons and community re release dates.better join up between the prisons and community re release dates.    

• treatment plans that have been agreed whilst offender is still in prisontreatment plans that have been agreed whilst offender is still in prisontreatment plans that have been agreed whilst offender is still in prisontreatment plans that have been agreed whilst offender is still in prison    

• support networsupport networsupport networsupport networks in placeks in placeks in placeks in place    

• housing in place housing in place housing in place housing in place ––––(particularly if prisoner already has (particularly if prisoner already has (particularly if prisoner already has (particularly if prisoner already has accommodationaccommodationaccommodationaccommodation    ––––    
more work is needed to ensure they do not loose there tenancy or are not more work is needed to ensure they do not loose there tenancy or are not more work is needed to ensure they do not loose there tenancy or are not more work is needed to ensure they do not loose there tenancy or are not 
discriminated against in terms of housing because they have been in discriminated against in terms of housing because they have been in discriminated against in terms of housing because they have been in discriminated against in terms of housing because they have been in 
prisonprisonprisonprison 

 

 
• Much more could be dMuch more could be dMuch more could be dMuch more could be done to help people maintain existing housing and one to help people maintain existing housing and one to help people maintain existing housing and one to help people maintain existing housing and 

with their transition to managing a home. with their transition to managing a home. with their transition to managing a home. with their transition to managing a home. TenancyTenancyTenancyTenancy support work can pay  support work can pay  support work can pay  support work can pay 
significant dividends.  We need a greater recognition that housing is often significant dividends.  We need a greater recognition that housing is often significant dividends.  We need a greater recognition that housing is often significant dividends.  We need a greater recognition that housing is often 
the issue that secures individuals progress/recovery and so the issue that secures individuals progress/recovery and so the issue that secures individuals progress/recovery and so the issue that secures individuals progress/recovery and so realirealirealirealises the ses the ses the ses the 
gain on other gain on other gain on other gain on other investmentinvestmentinvestmentinvestment. . . . Continuation oContinuation oContinuation oContinuation of funding for f funding for f funding for f funding for Supporting PeopleSupporting PeopleSupporting PeopleSupporting People    

• services that are targeted at substance misusers and offendersservices that are targeted at substance misusers and offendersservices that are targeted at substance misusers and offendersservices that are targeted at substance misusers and offenders 

 

 

Page 57



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 20 

There is a real gap in terms of alcohol services for those with Dual diagnosis. There is a real gap in terms of alcohol services for those with Dual diagnosis. There is a real gap in terms of alcohol services for those with Dual diagnosis. There is a real gap in terms of alcohol services for those with Dual diagnosis. 
Alcohol services and parAlcohol services and parAlcohol services and parAlcohol services and particularly voluntary sector alcohticularly voluntary sector alcohticularly voluntary sector alcohticularly voluntary sector alcohol services are not funded ol services are not funded ol services are not funded ol services are not funded 
to deto deto deto deal with complex needs and given that may cases include the use of al with complex needs and given that may cases include the use of al with complex needs and given that may cases include the use of al with complex needs and given that may cases include the use of 
cannabis and alcohol it is crucial that these services are better resourced. In cannabis and alcohol it is crucial that these services are better resourced. In cannabis and alcohol it is crucial that these services are better resourced. In cannabis and alcohol it is crucial that these services are better resourced. In 
addition CMHT’s could be better resourced to daddition CMHT’s could be better resourced to daddition CMHT’s could be better resourced to daddition CMHT’s could be better resourced to deal with these issues, GP’s could eal with these issues, GP’s could eal with these issues, GP’s could eal with these issues, GP’s could 
be better trained to recognise and work with this group, psychology could have be better trained to recognise and work with this group, psychology could have be better trained to recognise and work with this group, psychology could have be better trained to recognise and work with this group, psychology could have 
an input into dual diagnosis services. Ultimately what is needed are integrated an input into dual diagnosis services. Ultimately what is needed are integrated an input into dual diagnosis services. Ultimately what is needed are integrated an input into dual diagnosis services. Ultimately what is needed are integrated 
drug/alcohol dual diagnosis servicedrug/alcohol dual diagnosis servicedrug/alcohol dual diagnosis servicedrug/alcohol dual diagnosis servicessss that are fully resourced. that are fully resourced. that are fully resourced. that are fully resourced.    

 

 
Often not, or where they do exist with very limited capacity. The experience of Often not, or where they do exist with very limited capacity. The experience of Often not, or where they do exist with very limited capacity. The experience of Often not, or where they do exist with very limited capacity. The experience of 
initiatives such as Progress 2 Work show that such interventions can be initiatives such as Progress 2 Work show that such interventions can be initiatives such as Progress 2 Work show that such interventions can be initiatives such as Progress 2 Work show that such interventions can be 
beneficial. We need to have a wide range of interventions to cope with the beneficial. We need to have a wide range of interventions to cope with the beneficial. We need to have a wide range of interventions to cope with the beneficial. We need to have a wide range of interventions to cope with the 
breadth of the problems fbreadth of the problems fbreadth of the problems fbreadth of the problems faced, ranging from basic literacy and numeracy aced, ranging from basic literacy and numeracy aced, ranging from basic literacy and numeracy aced, ranging from basic literacy and numeracy 
through to coaching and confidence buildinthrough to coaching and confidence buildinthrough to coaching and confidence buildinthrough to coaching and confidence building. People with a dual diagnosis are g. People with a dual diagnosis are g. People with a dual diagnosis are g. People with a dual diagnosis are 
often more stigmatised than often more stigmatised than often more stigmatised than often more stigmatised than those with drug or alcohol problems.those with drug or alcohol problems.those with drug or alcohol problems.those with drug or alcohol problems.....    

 

 
We do not believe applying benefit sanctions is a sensible prWe do not believe applying benefit sanctions is a sensible prWe do not believe applying benefit sanctions is a sensible prWe do not believe applying benefit sanctions is a sensible proposition with this oposition with this oposition with this oposition with this 
client group. It could lead to more drug related crime/ pressure on carers and client group. It could lead to more drug related crime/ pressure on carers and client group. It could lead to more drug related crime/ pressure on carers and client group. It could lead to more drug related crime/ pressure on carers and 
other family members. Some of this group cannot read or write and have never other family members. Some of this group cannot read or write and have never other family members. Some of this group cannot read or write and have never other family members. Some of this group cannot read or write and have never 
worked. We would like to see the development of more apprenticeship schemes worked. We would like to see the development of more apprenticeship schemes worked. We would like to see the development of more apprenticeship schemes worked. We would like to see the development of more apprenticeship schemes 
for for for for this group. this group. this group. this group.  It is senseless to pretend that employers are going to welcome  It is senseless to pretend that employers are going to welcome  It is senseless to pretend that employers are going to welcome  It is senseless to pretend that employers are going to welcome 
them with open arms them with open arms them with open arms them with open arms –––– there needs to be a concerted media campaign to  there needs to be a concerted media campaign to  there needs to be a concerted media campaign to  there needs to be a concerted media campaign to 
change attitudes toward change attitudes toward change attitudes toward change attitudes toward people with substance misuse problems.people with substance misuse problems.people with substance misuse problems.people with substance misuse problems.    

 

 
• SSSSpecialist JCP advisors could come into trepecialist JCP advisors could come into trepecialist JCP advisors could come into trepecialist JCP advisors could come into treatment services and be part of atment services and be part of atment services and be part of atment services and be part of 

the service users reviewsthe service users reviewsthe service users reviewsthe service users reviews    

• JCP staff need more training on effects of substance misuse and its JCP staff need more training on effects of substance misuse and its JCP staff need more training on effects of substance misuse and its JCP staff need more training on effects of substance misuse and its 
impact  on this groupimpact  on this groupimpact  on this groupimpact  on this group    

• JCP staff need to talk to newly unemployed JCP clients re the risk of JCP staff need to talk to newly unemployed JCP clients re the risk of JCP staff need to talk to newly unemployed JCP clients re the risk of JCP staff need to talk to newly unemployed JCP clients re the risk of 
escalating alcohol/drug  use linked to escalating alcohol/drug  use linked to escalating alcohol/drug  use linked to escalating alcohol/drug  use linked to unemploymentunemploymentunemploymentunemployment 

 

Page 58



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 21 

 
• life skills traininglife skills traininglife skills traininglife skills training    

• personal developmentpersonal developmentpersonal developmentpersonal development    

• dealing with conflictdealing with conflictdealing with conflictdealing with conflict    

• developing selfdeveloping selfdeveloping selfdeveloping self----esteem/confidenceesteem/confidenceesteem/confidenceesteem/confidence    

• help with completing CV’shelp with completing CV’shelp with completing CV’shelp with completing CV’s    

• basic literacy and mathsbasic literacy and mathsbasic literacy and mathsbasic literacy and maths    

• voluntary work/ training for short periodsvoluntary work/ training for short periodsvoluntary work/ training for short periodsvoluntary work/ training for short periods    

• benefits tailing off as employment becomes morebenefits tailing off as employment becomes morebenefits tailing off as employment becomes morebenefits tailing off as employment becomes more secure secure secure secure    
• having a dedicated work placement officer that the personhaving a dedicated work placement officer that the personhaving a dedicated work placement officer that the personhaving a dedicated work placement officer that the person can check can check can check can check 
back in with back in with back in with back in with –––– not necessarily linked to treatment services. not necessarily linked to treatment services. not necessarily linked to treatment services. not necessarily linked to treatment services. 

 

 
As previously stated As previously stated As previously stated As previously stated employersemployersemployersemployers might need to be  might need to be  might need to be  might need to be incentivisedincentivisedincentivisedincentivised and  and  and  and receivereceivereceivereceive some  some  some  some 
training re drugs and training re drugs and training re drugs and training re drugs and alcoholalcoholalcoholalcohol.... The co The co The co The could be supported by knowing that the new uld be supported by knowing that the new uld be supported by knowing that the new uld be supported by knowing that the new 
employee had a Work Placement Officer who was supporting them and the new employee had a Work Placement Officer who was supporting them and the new employee had a Work Placement Officer who was supporting them and the new employee had a Work Placement Officer who was supporting them and the new 
employee deal with any conflict etc. The barriers they face are employee deal with any conflict etc. The barriers they face are employee deal with any conflict etc. The barriers they face are employee deal with any conflict etc. The barriers they face are –––– criminal record,  criminal record,  criminal record,  criminal record, 
low paid or exploitative work opportunities, child care, flow paid or exploitative work opportunities, child care, flow paid or exploitative work opportunities, child care, flow paid or exploitative work opportunities, child care, fear of poverty if they ear of poverty if they ear of poverty if they ear of poverty if they 
come off benefitscome off benefitscome off benefitscome off benefits. 

 

 
The The The The ‘‘‘‘Think FamilyThink FamilyThink FamilyThink Family’ ’ ’ ’  model has started to work very well locally and we would like  model has started to work very well locally and we would like  model has started to work very well locally and we would like  model has started to work very well locally and we would like 
to see it’s coverage widened. In addition targeted services to work with children to see it’s coverage widened. In addition targeted services to work with children to see it’s coverage widened. In addition targeted services to work with children to see it’s coverage widened. In addition targeted services to work with children 
and families affected and families affected and families affected and families affected by substance misuse are by substance misuse are by substance misuse are by substance misuse are affective affective affective affective in ensuring in ensuring in ensuring in ensuring 
intintintintergenerational substance misuse problems do not develop.ergenerational substance misuse problems do not develop.ergenerational substance misuse problems do not develop.ergenerational substance misuse problems do not develop.    

 

 
No No No No –––– there is a need for more  there is a need for more  there is a need for more  there is a need for more systemicsystemicsystemicsystemic work in substance misuse services and  work in substance misuse services and  work in substance misuse services and  work in substance misuse services and 
input from wider support services. It is input from wider support services. It is input from wider support services. It is input from wider support services. It is difficultdifficultdifficultdifficult for family to help service users  for family to help service users  for family to help service users  for family to help service users 
when theywhen theywhen theywhen they themselves are affected by the users drug or  themselves are affected by the users drug or  themselves are affected by the users drug or  themselves are affected by the users drug or alcoholalcoholalcoholalcohol use. use. use. use.    

 

Page 59



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 22 

 
There are minimal resource to do all of the things that substance misuse There are minimal resource to do all of the things that substance misuse There are minimal resource to do all of the things that substance misuse There are minimal resource to do all of the things that substance misuse 
services would like to be doing if they were truly offering a family friendly services would like to be doing if they were truly offering a family friendly services would like to be doing if they were truly offering a family friendly services would like to be doing if they were truly offering a family friendly 
service.service.service.service. In terms of safeguarding  In terms of safeguarding  In terms of safeguarding  In terms of safeguarding –––– this this this this h h h has moved on tremendously and we are as moved on tremendously and we are as moved on tremendously and we are as moved on tremendously and we are 
confident that all of the staff within the services are aware of the potential risk confident that all of the staff within the services are aware of the potential risk confident that all of the staff within the services are aware of the potential risk confident that all of the staff within the services are aware of the potential risk 
to children and what to do if they have concernsto children and what to do if they have concernsto children and what to do if they have concernsto children and what to do if they have concerns.  

 

 
• Problems Problems Problems Problems ––––    Poverty 

• poor housing 

• poor access to childcare 

• poor family support 
• SoluSoluSoluSolution tion tion tion ––––    in reach of  childcare professionals into services, specialist 

team midwives, drug worker, health visitor, social worker, parenting 
support worker peer support volunteers 

Page 60



2010 Drug Strategy consultation 
PRO FORMA FOR RESPONSES 

 

 23 

 

Response confidentiality and disclaimer 

 

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



  

 

 
 
Meeting:  Safer Communities Executive Board   
  
Date:   4 November 2010  
 
Report Title:  Quarter Two Update on Implementation of Alcohol     
                          Action Plan      
 
Report of: Marion Morris, Drug and Alcohol Strategy Manager 
 
 

1.Purpose  
 
1.1. To provide SCEB Board members with an update on implementation of 
the Alcohol Strategy Action Plan up to Q2. There is a statutory duty on Crime 
and Disorder Reduction Partnerships to have a strategy that addresses 
alcohol-related crime and disorder.  Government guidance, in line with the 
national alcohol strategy Safe. Sensible. Social., calls for strategies that go 
beyond a crime focus and also address health harms and the impact of 
alcohol on children and families -  which is the approach taken by Haringey in 
the development of its Alcohol Strategy and this Alcohol Action Plan. 
 

2.Summary:  
 
2.1.Since 2004, the detrimental effects of alcohol-use disorders has resulted 
in several government policy initiatives. In addition, the need to prevent and 
reduce alcohol-use disorders has been incorporated into several public 
service agreements (PSAs). Key strategies  being:  ‘Alcohol Harm Reduction 
Strategy for England’ (Prime Minister's Strategy Unit 2004), which was 
updated in 2007  to ‘Safe, Sensible, Social ‘.  Haringey choose to prioritise 
tackling alcohol related harm through the Local Area Agreement, specifically  
‘reducing the upward trend in alcohol related hospital admission rates’ as one 
of its (NI39) targets. The work is supported by a Local Alcohol Harm 
Reduction Strategy ‘Dying for a Drink?’ 2008-11 and this Action Plan.  
 
  2.2.This Action Plan is divided into three areas –  

• reducing alcohol related harms (Wellbeing Board) 

• reducing alcohol related crime and anti-social behaviour (SCEB) 

• reducing alcohol related harm to children and young people (Children & 
Young Peoples Partnership Board)  

 
As of Q2 good progress has been made against the majority of the actions as 
can be seen by RAG status. For the purpose of this Board, actions on 
reducing alcohol related crime and anti-social behaviour are the focus. 
3.Reducing alcohol-related crime and anti-social behaviour 
 
3.1. This section of the plan aims to reduce alcohol related violence and anti-

Agenda Item 11Page 63



  

social behaviour along with ensuring that licensed premises are operating 
within the context of the law and responsibly. There are a number of actions in 
this part of the plan that are behind schedule or are experiencing problems 
with implementation. 
 
3.2. Actions CS1 and CS2 (information sharing protocol with North Middlesex 
and Whittington re monitoring and analysing alcohol related violence is 
delayed. This is due to a new IT system being installed. It is unlikely that this 
will take place now until next year. The Community Safety Team has received 
some data information form the Whittington and Homerton Hospitals. As soon 
as the additional information is received (from North Middlesex) the team will 
provide a breakdown of the violence related to A&E admissions. 
 
3.3  (CS3)  CCTV Control Room briefs in order to inform and assist in the 
detection of violent crime (including alcohol related).  CST Analyst tasks the 
team on a periodic basis following outcomes of Haringey Officer Tasking 
Group, which meets monthly. 
 
3.4. (CS8)  The development of a responsible licensee scheme has not met 
with the response from licensee’s that was expected, e.g. a mail out asking 
licensees to get back to licensing to register their interest met with zero 
response. This was again raised at Pub Watch meetings and again met with 
no response. Under the financial constraints of the Council licensing will not 
be mailing out the newsletter again but will continue to put a newsletter on the 
web pages and will circulate it at Pub Watch.  
 
3.5. A tailored programme of fire prevention/safety is being developed with 
Fire Brigade Borough Commander to be delivered at alcohol and drug 
services along with targeted home fire safety visits for problematic 
alcohol/drug users. 
 
3.6. CS11 Area based working re picking up ASB/alcohol related  disorder 
issues is not working as well as it could be – this will be remedied by ensuring 
representation of DAAT/and or HAGA at these meetings as and when 
necessary. 
 
3.7. CS16 Development of local reconnections work with Thames Reach and 
or Barka limited due to financial constraints. Polish worker appointed but post 
under threat due to possible spending cuts. 
 
3.8  CS17 Development of Communications Plan linked to street drinking. As 
Communication is now centralised key messages around alcohol will be 
delivered via this avenue.   
 

4. Legal/Financial Implications 
 
4.1. The work to support key parts of this action plan is under threat due to 
possible reductions to the area based grant in 2011. In particular actions 
around health and children and young people. The impact of this would be 
severe and range from increased alcohol related hospital admissions/deaths, 
increased street drinking and associated anti-social behaviour along with risks 
to the viability of the boroughs services for children and families  affected by 

Page 64



  

substance misuse (COSMIC). 
 

5. Recommendations 
 
i. To note progress against action plan which is largely on track. 

 
ii. To note serious risks to ability to deliver against this plan in the future 

and the associated consequences. 
 

For more information contact: 
 
Name:  Marion Morris 
Title:     Drug & Alcohol Strategy Manager 
Tel:       020 8489 6909 
Email address: marion.morris@haringey.gov.uk  
 

Background 

 
Whilst we are still unsure of the exact approach  the new colation Government  
will take to tackling alcohol related  harms,  there is a strong indication that 
they wish to see more of a public health stance around alcohol  - We will 
“produce an ambitious public health strategy which will tackle health 
inequalities and support families with multiple needs”.  A Substance Misuse 
Strategy will be launched in December 10, which will put more flesh on these 
proposals and we understand that money to support this work will be within 
the new Public Health Service. Given the extent of alcohol related harm in 
Haringey, the associated risks - from safeguarding to domestic violence  then  
arguably alcohol should remain a local priority.  
 
 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
 

A
L
C

O
H

O
L
 S

T
R

A
T
E

G
Y

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 

 
 R

e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 h

a
rm

 

  W
e
ll
b
e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

H
1
 

N
H
S
 M

id
 l
if
e
 h
e
a
lt
h
 c
h
e
c
k
s
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 t
o
 b
e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

1
6
 n
e
w
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e
a
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 (
to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

s
c
re
e
n
in
g
).
 

N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
  

M
a
y
 1
0
 

N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

   

H
2
 

Im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 s
o
c
ia
l 
m
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 c
a
m
p
a
ig
n
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 

k
e
y
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
. 
 

 

J
o
in
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
P
u
b
lic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
/P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

S
tr
a
te
g
is
t 
in
 

A
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
s
/D
A
A
T
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

S
o
c
ia
l 

M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
/P
H
 

M
o
n
ie
s
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

 

D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

Page 67



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
2
 

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 h

a
rm

 

  W
e
ll
b
e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

H
3
 

U
p
d
a
te
 t
h
e
 ‘
R
u
s
h
’ 
m
o
d
e
l 
re
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t
o
 m

o
re
 

a
c
c
u
ra
te
ly
 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 t
re
a
tm

e
n
t 

m
o
d
a
lit
ie
s
. 
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
is
t 
 
M
a
y
 1
0
  

a
n
d
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
  

W
it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

H
4
 

F
o
llo
w
in
g
 o
n
 f
ro
m
 H
3
 e
x
p
lo
re
 

h
o
w
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 c
a
n
 b
e
 b
e
tt
e
r 

re
m
o
d
e
lle
d
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
s
e
 g
a
p
s
. 
 

D
ru
g
 &
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r/
 

J
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 S
e
p
t 
1
0
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  A
 

  

H
5
 

E
n
s
u
re
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 a
ll 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
m
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 (
e
.g
. 

o
b
e
s
it
y
, 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
) 
a
n
d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 (
e
.g
. 
h
e
a
lt
h
 t
ra
in
e
rs
).
 

J
o
in
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
P
u
b
lic
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

  

Page 68



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
3
 

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 h

a
rm

 

  W
e
ll
b
e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

H
6
 

A
g
re
e
 a
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 f
o
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
, 
to
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 u
s
e
r 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
(M

O
C
A
M
).
 

 

J
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
fo
r 
S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

M
is
u
s
e
 

S
e
p
t 
1
0
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  A
 

H
7
 

U
p
d
a
te
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 w
id
e
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
le
a
fl
e
t 
a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 i
t 
is
 

p
u
t 
o
n
to
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

to
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 

fr
o
m
 G
P
’s
. 

 

D
A
A
T
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

M
a
y
 1
0
 

C
o
re
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

(w
it
h
in
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
) 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

Page 69



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
4
 

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 h

a
rm

 

  W
e
ll
b
e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

H
8
 

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le
 w
it
h
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
re
 

a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 b
y
 S
P
, 
R
S
L
s
 a
n
d
 

H
o
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
. 
In
c
lu
d
in
g
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
B
ri
e
f 
In
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
fr
o
n
t 
lin
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

w
o
rk
e
rs
. 

 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

H
o
u
s
in
g
/ 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
H
A
G
A
/D
A
A
T
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r/
 

S
P
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 B
o
a
rd
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 

  

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
/ 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 

B
o
a
rd
 

  A
 

  

H
9
 

P
re
p
a
re
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 r
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

th
e
 e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

in
 o
ld
e
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
  
  

(L
in
k
s
 i
n
to
 N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 f
a
lls
 

c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
).
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
is
t 

in
 A
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
s
 

A
p
r 
1
0
 -
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
l 

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

 D
e
c
 1
0
 -
 

R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
  

C
o
m
p
le
te
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  R
 

 

H
1
0
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 B
I 
in
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 

c
a
re
 b
y
: 
c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 o
f 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
G
P
S
I 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
in
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 w
it
h
 h
ig
h
e
s
t 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
 r
a
te
s
, 
s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

B
I 
lin
k
e
d
 t
o
 c
h
ro
n
ic
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
, 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
 v
ia
 

G
P
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
v
e
s
. 

J
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

H
A
G
A
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

a
n
d
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-
re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

Page 70



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
5
 

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
  
  

h
e
a
lt
h
 h

a
rm

 

  W
e
ll
b
e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

H
1
1
 

T
o
 e
x
p
lo
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 W

o
rk
p
la
c
e
 I
B
A
 P
ilo
t 

a
s
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
m
e
a
n
s
 o
f 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 a
t 

a
n
 e
a
rl
ie
r 
s
ta
g
e
 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.
  

R
a
n
z
e
tt
a
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
in
g
/D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

A
u
g
 1
0
 

D
o
H
 m

o
n
ie
s
 

D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

H
1
2
 

E
x
p
lo
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 i
n
 H
e
a
lt
h
y
 L
if
e
s
ty
le
s
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 

ro
ll 
o
u
t 
to
 w
id
e
r 
T
ie
r 
1
 s
ta
ff
. 
 

  

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
is
t 

in
 A
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
s
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

 
N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  A
 

H
1
3
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
e
v
e
n
ts
 t
o
 

c
o
in
c
id
e
 w
it
h
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
lc
o
h
o
l 

A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 W

e
e
k
. 

 

D
A
A
T
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

N
H
S
 H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
 

M
a
in
s
tr
e
a
m
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  A
 

Page 71



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
6
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
  
  

h
e
a
lt
h
 h

a
rm

 

  W
e
ll
b
e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

H
1
4
 

S
e
c
u
re
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
 H
A
G
A
, 
C
O
S
M
IC
 

a
n
d
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 s
tr
e
e
t 

d
ri
n
k
e
rs
. 

J
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/
D
A
A
T
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

A
p
r 
1
0
 

A
B
G
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

H
1
5
 

S
e
t 
u
p
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 a
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
G
P
 t
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 e
v
e
n
ts
 

w
it
h
in
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 G
P
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 

w
it
h
 h
ig
h
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 r
a
te
s
 o
f 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
/C
O
N
E
L
 e
tc
. 
 

T
h
e
 a
im
 i
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 r
e
fe
rr
a
ls
 

to
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 S
tr
a
te
g
is
t 

in
 A
d
d
ic
ti
o
n
s
/H
A
G
A
 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
  

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

H
1
6
  

T
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 B
I 
a
t 

N
o
rt
h
 M

id
d
le
s
e
x
 A
&
E
 b
y
: 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 c
lin
ic
a
l 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
le
a
d
 

w
it
h
in
 A
 &
 E
, 
ta
rg
e
ti
n
g
 f
re
q
u
e
n
t 

fl
y
e
rs
, 
s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 B
I 
to
 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
e
s
 w
it
h
 t
o
p
 1
0
 

p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
lia
is
o
n
 n
u
rs
e
. 
 

J
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

J
u
l 
1
0
  

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
  
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

Page 72



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
7
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
  
  

h
e
a
lt
h
 h

a
rm

 

  W
e
ll
b
e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

H
1
7
 

M
a
p
 o
u
t 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 
c
a
re
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 

a
n
d
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
to
 C
E
G
. 

D
ru
g
 &
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r/
 

D
A
A
T
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

S
e
p
t 
1
0
 

C
o
re
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  A
 

H
1
8
 

A
g
re
e
 h
o
w
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
c
a
n
 b
e
 b
e
s
t 

in
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 p
o
ly
 

s
y
s
te
m
s
. 

J
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

J
u
l 
1
0
 

C
o
re
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

 

Page 73



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
8
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

C
S
1
 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
n
 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

w
it
h
 N
o
rt
h
 M

id
d
le
s
e
x
 a
n
d
 

W
h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 A
&
E
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 

to
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
e
x
te
n
t 
o
f 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 

re
la
te
d
 v
io
le
n
c
e
. 

 

P
o
lic
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
(v
io
le
n
t 

c
ri
m
e
) 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe
ty
  

 

A
u
g
 2
0
1
0
 

T
K
A
P
  
D
o
H
 

fu
n
d
in
g
  

O
th
e
r 
V
io
le
n
t 

C
ri
m
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 (
O
V
C
B
) 

N
I 
1
5
: 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 

ra
te
 

S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

C
S
2
 

T
o
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 
a
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
ti
v
e
 

a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 
p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
a
ta
 r
e
: 
v
io
le
n
t 

in
c
id
e
n
ts
. 

C
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
a
ta
 A
n
a
ly
s
t 
 
N
o
v
 2
0
1
0
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

O
V
C
B
 

N
I 
1
5
: 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 

ra
te
  

S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

C
S
3
 

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
ri
e
f 
th
e
 C
C
T
V
 

c
o
n
tr
o
l 
ro
o
m
 i
n
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 i
n
fo
rm

 
a
n
d
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 t
h
e
 d
e
te
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 

v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

re
la
te
d
).
 

  

D
a
ta
 A
n
a
ly
s
t 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
  

M
o
n
th
ly
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

O
V
C
B
 

N
I 
1
5
: 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 

v
io
le
n
t 
c
ri
m
e
 

ra
te
  

S
C
E
B
  

  G
 

C
S
4
 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
A
S
B
/A
lc
o
h
o
l 
 

R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 S
tu
d
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
. 

P
o
lic
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
(A
S
B
) 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

T
e
a
m
 

 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

A
S
B
 
P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

Page 74



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
9
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

C
S
5
 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 r
o
lli
n
g
 t
ra
in
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
/f
ro
n
t 
lin
e
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 o
n
 

n
e
w
 p
o
w
e
rs
 t
o
 a
d
d
re
s
s
 a
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 A
S
B
/d
is
o
rd
e
r 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 

k
e
e
p
 u
p
-t
o
-d
a
te
 w
it
h
 l
e
g
is
la
ti
o
n
. 

 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

  

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

C
S
6
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
jo
in
t 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t
a
rg
e
ti
n
g
 

(r
o
lli
n
g
) 
to
p
 t
e
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
 

lic
e
n
s
e
d
 p
re
m
is
e
s
. 

 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

Page 75



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
0
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

C
S
7
 

A
g
re
e
 a
 j
o
in
t 
a
lc
o
h
o
l 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
to
c
o
l 
to
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

n
e
w
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 P
o
lic
in
g
 

a
n
d
 C
ri
m
e
 B
ill
 i
n
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

Y
e
llo
w
 C
a
rd
-R
e
d
 C
a
rd
 a
n
d
 

s
e
tt
in
g
 u
p
 o
f 
a
 l
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 p
a
n
e
l 

to
 d
e
a
l 
w
it
h
 p
ro
b
le
m
 p
re
m
is
e
s
 

fo
r 
in
c
lu
s
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
P
o
lic
y
. 

 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

 

N
o
v
 1
0
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

C
S
8
 

T
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 L
ic
e
n
s
e
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

to
 h
e
lp
 l
ic
e
n
s
e
e
s
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
n
d
 r
a
is
e
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
. 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

D
e
c
 1
0
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 n
o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 -
 w
ill
 

re
q
u
ir
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
 

£
5
k
) 

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

Page 76



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
1
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

C
S
9
 

O
u
t 
o
f 
h
o
u
rs
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
d
u
c
t 

n
o
is
e
 a
n
d
 l
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 v
is
it
s
 a
n
d
 

w
h
e
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 p
o
lic
e
 t
o
 t
a
s
k
 

C
C
T
V
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 u
s
e
 c
a
m
e
ra
s
 

o
n
 p
ro
b
le
m
 p
re
m
is
e
s
. 
 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

  

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
/D
A
A
T
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

C
S
1
0
 

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly
 u
p
d
a
te
 a
n
d
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
c
o
n
tr
o
l 

z
o
n
e
s
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
: 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a
ll 
e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
re
 c
le
a
r 
a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
ir
 

p
o
w
e
rs
; 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

A
s
s
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t/
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

H
A
G
A
/R
e
g
io
n
a
l 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
S
t 
M
u
n
g
o
’s
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

  

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
/D
A
A
T
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

Page 77



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
2
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 a
re
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
d
 (
H
A
G
A
, 

e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t,
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 e
tc
);
 

C
C
T
V
 a
re
 a
w
a
re
 o
f 
z
o
n
e
s
 a
n
d
 

a
n
y
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r 
is
s
u
e
s
. 

 

 
a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

C
S
1
1
 

A
S
B
/A
lc
o
h
o
l 
re
la
te
d
 

d
is
o
rd
e
r/
is
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
ic
k
e
d
 u
p
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 a
re
a
 b
a
s
e
d
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 

N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t/
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t/
P
o
lic
e
/ 

C
S
T
 

  

J
u
n
 1
0
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

  

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
/D
A
A
T
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

      
 

C
S
1
2
 

In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 t
h
e
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 

C
o
n
tr
o
l 
Z
o
n
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 c
le
a
r,
 

s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 

(e
.g
. 
le
a
fl
e
ts
/c
a
rd
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
a
d
ily
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

e
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t/
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

H
A
G
A
/R
e
g
io
n
a
l 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
S
t 
M
u
n
g
o
’s
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
/D
A
A
T
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

Page 78



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
3
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 t
ra
in
in
g
. 
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

C
S
1
3
 

In
te
g
ra
te
 f
ir
e
 s
a
fe
ty
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 

a
s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 i
n
to
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
 l
in
k
s
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 f
ir
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 w
h
e
re
 v
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a
re
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
e
d
 –
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

re
d
u
c
e
 a
c
c
id
e
n
ta
l 
d
w
e
lli
n
g
 f
ir
e
. 

 

F
ir
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

B
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
o
m
m
a
n
d
e
r 
 

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

L
o
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t:
 

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

a
c
c
id
e
n
ta
l 

d
w
e
lli
n
g
 f
ir
e
s
 

(2
0
0
7
 –
2
0
1
0
 

s
tr
e
tc
h
 t
a
rg
e
t)
 

S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

C
S
1
4
 

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
u
rv
iv
o
rs
 o
f 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 u
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

b
y
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
u
rg
e
ri
e
s
 a
t 

H
e
a
rt
h
s
to
n
e
 b
y
 a
n
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 

w
o
rk
e
r.
 

H
A
G
A
/H
e
a
rt
h
s
to
n
e
 

E
q
u
a
lit
ie
s
 T
e
a
m
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

L
o
c
a
l 
ta
rg
e
t:
 

R
e
p
e
a
t 

v
ic
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

v
io
le
n
c
e
 

(2
0
0
7
-2
0
1
0
 

s
tr
e
tc
h
 t
a
rg
e
t)
 

 

S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

C
S
1
5
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 r
o
lli
n
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 
te
s
t 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 

E
n
fo
rc
e
m
e
n
t 
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

A
S
B
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

b
o
a
rd
 

 
S
C
E
B
 

 G
 

Page 79



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
4
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

fo
r 
a
lc
o
h
o
l.
 

 

C
S
1
6
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
lo
c
a
l 

re
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 

T
h
a
m
e
s
 R
e
a
c
h
 a
n
d
/o
r 
B
a
rk
a
, 

U
K
B
A
. 

 

P
o
lis
h
 o
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 w
o
rk
e
r 

D
A
A
T
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

S
e
p
t 
1
0
 

A
B
G
 

D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

 
S
C
E
B
 

  R
 

C
S
1
7
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 p
la
n
 t
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 

re
a
lis
ti
c
 e
x
p
e
c
ta
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

in
fo
rm

e
d
 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

s
tr
e
e
t 
d
ri
n
k
in
g
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

p
u
b
lic
/r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 a
ll 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
. 
(T
o
 b
e
 i
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 i
n
to
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 c
o
m
m
s
. 

p
la
n
).
 

 

P
o
lic
y
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
(A
S
B
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
a
fe
ty
 

T
e
a
m
) 

S
e
p
t 
1
0
 

M
a
y
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
2
1
: 

D
e
a
lin
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 

a
b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-

s
o
c
ia
l 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 

a
n
d
 c
ri
m
e
 b
y
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 

p
o
lic
e
  

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

Page 80



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
5
 

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
  
  
  
  
  
  

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

C
S
1
8
 

E
n
s
u
re
 s
tr
e
e
t 
d
ri
n
k
in
g
 a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
 t
ie
s
 i
n
 w
it
h
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
tr
a
te
g
ie
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 R
o
u
g
h
 

S
le
e
p
in
g
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
, 
C
ri
m
e
 &
 

D
ru
g
s
 e
tc
. 

 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
a
fe
r 
&
 

S
tr
o
n
g
e
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

S
e
p
t 
1
0
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

S
te
e
ri
n
g
 G
ro
u
p
 

 
S
C
E
B
 

  A
 

C
S
1
9
 

P
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
x
p
lo
re
d
 f
o
r 
g
re
a
te
r 

in
te
g
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

V
io
le
n
c
e
 i
n
to
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

w
o
rk
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
rr
e
s
t 

re
fe
rr
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 

D
V
C
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 D
A
A
T
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 

D
A
A
T
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
to
r 
to
 a
tt
e
n
d
 

D
V
P
B
. 

 

D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 C
o
-

O
rd
in
a
to
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 

D
A
A
T
/H
A
G
A
/D
V
P
B
, 

v
ia
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 

re
fu
g
e
 

  

J
u
n
 1
0
 

   

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
V
P
B
  

  

 
S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

C
S
2
0
 

S
te
lla
 p
ro
je
c
t 
tr
a
in
in
g
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

to
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 m

is
u
s
e
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 f
ro
n
tl
in
e
 D
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 V
io
le
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk
e
rs
. 

 

S
te
lla
 P
ro
je
c
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
y
 D
V
C
 

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

  

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
V
P
B
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 

R
e
p
e
a
t 

V
ic
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
  

 T
a
rg
e
t 
1
9
1
 

B
a
s
e
li
n
e
 2
4
0
 

 

S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

C
S
2
1
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

D
A
A
T
 a
n
d
 D
V
P
B
 

 
A
p
r 
1
0
 

 
  

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
V
P
B
 

E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

D
V
 a
n
d
 

    

  G
 

Page 81



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
6
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
  
  
  
  
  
  

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

s
o
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in
g
 D
V
 

w
h
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t.
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

D
V
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 T
ie
r 

1
 D
A
A
T
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 

N
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 

p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 

D
V
P
B
  
D
V
 

tr
a
in
in
g
  
  
  
  

S
C
E
B
 

C
S
2
2
 

U
s
e
 t
h
e
 M

A
R
A
C
 (
M
u
lt
i 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 

R
is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
) 

to
 a
s
s
is
t 
in
 s
a
fe
ty
/a
c
ti
o
n
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 f
o
r 
p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 

o
f 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 v
io
le
n
c
e
 w
h
e
re
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
u
s
e
 i
s
 a
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
. 

H
A
G
A
, 

H
E
A
R
T
H
S
T
O
N
E
  
a
n
d
  

D
V
P
B
  

 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

 
E
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 

re
fe
rr
a
ls
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie
s
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

ri
s
k
 a
n
d
 

re
p
e
a
t 

v
ic
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 
v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 

D
V
. 

 

S
C
E
B
 

  G
 

C
S
2
3
 

W
o
rk
 w
it
h
 M

a
te
rn
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

H
P
C
T
 a
n
d
  
W
h
it
ti
n
g
to
n
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

 
T
B
C
 

 
 

Page 82



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
7
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

a
n
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

 

  S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
  
  
  
  
  
  

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
L
ia
is
o
n
 W

o
rk
e
r,
 

p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
a
re
, 
H
V
s
, 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

C
e
n
tr
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
V
S
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 o
f 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 o
n
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
in
 p
re
g
n
a
n
c
y
 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 w
it
h
 v
ic
ti
m
s
 o
f 
D
V
. 
 

 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l 
- 
J
C
M
 f
o
r 

S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M

is
u
s
e
 

 
D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

S
C
E
B
 

 G
 

                , 
  

Page 83



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
8
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 

to
 c

h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le
 

  C
h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

Y
P
1
 

C
o
s
m
ic
 a
n
d
 I
n
-v
o
lv
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 f
ro
m
 2
0
0
8
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 f
in
d
in
g
s
. 
T
h
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 e
a
rl
y
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
ff
e
c
te
d
 b
y
 f
a
m
ili
a
l 
o
r 
th
e
ir
 o
w
n
 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
(a
n
d
 d
ru
g
) 
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 

 . 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M

is
u
s
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r,
 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 

P
S
H
E
/C
it
iz
e
n
s
h
ip
/ 

P
a
rt
ic
ip
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

  

M
a
r 
1
1
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Y
P
 S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

M
is
u
s
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

P
S
A
 2
5
 –
 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 t
h
e
 

h
a
rm

 c
a
u
s
e
d
 

b
y
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

a
n
d
 d
ru
g
s
; 

P
S
A
 1
4
 –
 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 

th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild
re
n
 o
n
 

th
e
 p
a
th
 t
o
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
; 
N
I 

4
0
 –
 

re
c
o
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 

in
c
re
a
s
e
 i
n
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

d
ru
g
 u
s
e
rs
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

u
n
d
e
r-
1
8
s
) 
in
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t;
 N
I 

1
1
5
 (
a
ls
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

H
a
ri
n
g
e
y
’s
 

L
A
A
) 
–
 

s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
 b
y
 

y
o
u
n
g
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

  A
 

     
 

Page 84



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
1
9
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 

to
 c

h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le
 

  C
h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

p
e
o
p
le
; 
a
n
d
 

th
e
 V
it
a
l 

S
ig
n
s
 

In
d
ic
a
to
r,
 

V
S
B
 1
4
 –
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 

p
e
o
p
le
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

u
n
d
e
r 
-1
8
s
) 

in
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
 

 

Y
P
2
 

A
g
re
e
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 f
o
r 
c
h
ild
 

p
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 w
h
e
re
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
is
 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 t
ra
in
in
g
 i
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 t
o
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 s
e
c
to
r.
 

 

C
Y
P
S
/D
A
A
T
/D
e
p
u
ty
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
H
A
G
A
, 

P
o
lic
e
/Y
O
S
/I
n
-V
o
lv
e
 

M
a
r 
1
1
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

L
o
c
a
l 

S
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 B
o
a
rd
 

(L
S
C
B
) 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

P
S
A
 2
5
, 
N
I 

4
0
, 
N
1
 1
1
5
, 

V
S
B
 1
4
 

  

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

  A
 

Y
P
3
 

E
n
s
u
re
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 i
n
 

c
lu
s
te
r 
a
n
d
 c
e
n
tr
e
 b
a
s
e
d
 P
H
S
E
 

tr
a
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 

  

P
D
C
 

P
S
H
E
/C
it
iz
e
n
s
h
ip
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
  

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

B
o
a
rd
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

  G
 

Y
P
4
 

E
n
s
u
re
 d
ru
g
 a
n
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

p
o
lic
e
s
 a
re
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 

a
n
d
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 
 

P
S
H
E
/C
it
iz
e
n
s
h
ip
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
(C
Y
P
S
) 
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Y
P
 S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

M
is
u
s
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

 G
 

 

Page 85



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
2
0
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 

to
 c

h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le
 

  C
h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

Y
P
5
 

A
lc
o
h
o
l 
a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 b
ri
e
f 

a
d
v
ic
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

id
e
n
ti
fy
in
g
 p
a
re
n
ta
l 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
) 
a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 t
o
 b
e
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 t
o
 

k
e
y
 t
a
rg
e
t 
g
ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
b
y
 t
ra
in
e
d
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
ls
. 

 

P
a
re
n
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r/
 

C
Y
P
S
/C
O
S
M
IC
/ 

A
S
B
A
T
/I
n
-v
o
lv
e
 

S
e
p
t 
1
0
 

 
Y
P
 S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

M
is
u
s
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

 
  A
 

Y
P
6
 

E
n
s
u
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 j
o
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 C
Y
P
S
, 
p
o
lic
e
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
d
in
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 r
e
 n
e
w
 

lic
e
n
s
in
g
 a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

n
e
w
 l
ic
e
n
s
e
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 

tr
a
d
e
rs
 i
n
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
in
g
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
ili
ti
e
s
. 

 

C
Y
P
S
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
rs
o
n
s
 

S
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 M

is
u
s
e
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

L
S
C
B
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
 

  G
 

Y
P
7
 

E
n
s
u
re
 T
e
s
t 
P
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 

th
ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 
th
e
 y
e
a
r 
to
 c
o
m
b
a
t 

u
n
d
e
ra
g
e
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 o
f 

a
lc
o
h
o
l.
 

 

P
o
lic
e
/T
ra
d
in
g
 

S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

L
S
C
B
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
 
  G
 

Y
P
8
 

E
n
s
u
re
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 

p
o
s
it
iv
e
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 -
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 d
e
ta
c
h
e
d
 

w
o
rk
 b
y
 Y
o
u
th
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 T
e
a
m
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
B
o
a
rd
 
  G
 

Page 86



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
2
1
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 

to
 c

h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le
 

  C
h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 r
e
fe
rr
a
l 
to
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
c
e
 

m
is
u
s
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
Y
O
T
S
 

p
ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
D
 &
 A
 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
 

 

Y
P
9
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

s
c
re
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 b
ri
e
f 
in
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 i
n
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 

c
a
re
 b
y
 l
in
k
in
g
 i
n
 w
it
h
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 

s
tr
a
te
g
y
 (
re
f.
 H
1
0
) 

 B
ri
e
f 
a
d
v
ic
e
 t
ra
in
in
g
 b
e
in
g
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 a
n
d
 p
la
n
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

to
 G
P
s
. 

 

J
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r/
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

H
A
G
A
 

J
u
n
 1
0
 

a
n
d
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
  

J
o
in
t 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

N
I 
3
9
 a
n
d
 

V
S
C
2
6
: 

A
lc
o
h
o
l-

re
la
te
d
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m
is
s
io
n
s
 

(i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n

t 
ta
rg
e
t)
 

 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 

  G
 

Y
P
1
0
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

a
g
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 a
n
d
 h
a
rm

 
re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 

u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l,
 t
a
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia
lis
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 

Y
P
S
M
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

C
o
s
m
ic
 

In
-V
o
lv
e
 

E
x
p
o
s
u
re
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
 Y
P
S
M
C
G
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 

B
o
a
rd
 

  G
 

Y
P
1
1
 

T
o
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 l
ia
is
o
n
 w
it
h
 H
A
G
A
 

n
u
rs
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
e
d
ia
tr
ic
 A
&
E
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 b
e
in
g
 

a
d
m
it
te
d
 a
re
 s
c
re
e
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
lc
o
h
o
l 
v
ia
 F
A
S
T
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 

a
d
v
ic
e
, 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

Y
P
S
M
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

H
A
G
A
 

C
o
s
m
ic
 

In
-V
o
lv
e
 

  

O
n
g
o
in
g
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
 Y
P
S
M
C
G
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 

B
o
a
rd
 

  G
 

Page 87



A
lc
o
h
o
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 –
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
1
F
in
a
l 
- 
0
6
.0
7
.1
0
 

 
2
2
 

R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l-
re

la
te

d
 h

a
rm

 

to
 c

h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le
 

  C
h
il
d
re

n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 

 
A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

L
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r’

s
 

n
a
m

e
 

W
h
e
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
o
r 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
 

R
e
la

te
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 

T
h
e
m

a
ti
c
  

b
o
a
rd

 

Progress 

(RAG) 

s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 o
c
c
u
rs
. 

  

Y
P
1
2
 

D
e
liv
e
r 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 a
lc
o
h
o
l 
e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 

e
v
e
n
ts
 i
n
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
A
lc
o
h
o
l 

A
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 W

e
e
k
. 
 

Y
P
S
M
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

H
A
G
A
 

C
o
s
m
ic
 

In
-V
o
lv
e
 

Y
o
u
th
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
  

 

O
c
t 
1
0
 

C
o
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

D
A
A
T
 Y
P
S
M
C
G
 

A
s
 a
b
o
v
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 

B
o
a
rd
 

  A
 

            

Page 88


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Half Year Performance Report Quarter 1 and Quarter 2 2010/11
	Q2- Highlight report Safer Communities

	8 Proposals Regarding the Future of Safer Communities Executive Boardâ•Žs Allocation of Area Based Grant
	ABG 2011-12 and SCEB Priority proposals

	9 Towards Integrated Offender Management
	Reducing re-offending - whole

	10 Response to the Governments Consultation on the Drug Strategy
	Response to Drug and Alcohol Consultation - Appendix

	11 Quarter Two Update on Implementation of Alcohol
	Alcohol Strategy Action Plan 2010-11 Quarter 2 2010 sept


